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I. 2022 Business Report

([} Business Plan Implementation Achievements
Linic; TS thousend; earnings per share in %TS

Increase
[tem 2022 2021 {decrease) tatio
%

ﬂff“" i Sty 1,131,956 1,356,663 (16.56)
CHuR osk-om 264,271 495,254 (46.64)
operalions
Profit 45332 233,368 (80.57)
Profit athiibitasie to 26,044 188,017 (86.15)
the company
Basic earnings per - a
<hare (NTS) 0.59 424 (86.08)

{11} Budget Implementation Status

According to the "Regulations Governing the Processing of Financial Forecast
Information by Public Companies.” the Company is not required to disclose its
financial forecast information for 2022, so it is not applicable.

{1l Analysis of Financial Revenue, Expenditure and Profitability

[tem 2022 21
Met cash flows from (used in) operating | 250,115 341,210
activities (MT% thousand)
Ratic of liabilities to tofal assets (%) 3604 .54
Current ratio (%) | 76.69 156.93
Bolvency
Quick ratio (%) 175.75 153.84
Retumn on total assets 127 14.62
()
Return on equity (%) 4.25 23.12
Profitability -
Net profit margin (%) 4.00 17.20
Basic earnings per share (.59 4.24
(MNTS)
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{TV) R&D Status:

L

T

Continuously expand the capabilities and business of vanous electroplating
processes, and diversify the proportion of products in overall revenue,

Strive for precious metal related business and improve per capita performance.

Increase automatic production equipment, reduce dependence on manpower and
shorten reaction speed.

Continwously improve the liguid medicine system, production system and
equipment and improve efficiency and yield.

Continuously supervise the reduction of water, electricity and pollution and
become & green energy enterprise.

Expand upstream and downsiream technologies, such as raw  materials
development, waste recyeling and treatment,

Expand the market related to heat dissipation for new energy vehicles.

[I. 2023 Business Plan Overview

{1} Business Policy:

15

3.

Strictly abide by local laws and regulations, stay away from legal risks and
continucusly invest in the improvement of the environmental safety system.

Recruit‘cultivate talents, establish a knowledge management system and enrich
tearn quality and quantity to facilitate business expansion.

Create maximum value for customers with cost and speed advantages.

(I} Important Production and Sales Palicies:

Pay attention to materials prices and exchange rate fluctuations and make the best
and fastest response.

Always provide feedback to customers and work together to address material
cost pressures.

Expand new business tvpes and applications, reduce enterprise risks and improve
adaptability.

111. Future Company Development Strategies

{Iy Expand Factories in Thailand, Dongguan of China and Taiwan, evaluate the potentizl
in other regions, follow up on customer needs and diversify risks.

(11} Expand the high growth/precious metal market and increase per capita performance.
{11y Increase R&D investment, recruit technical alents and enhance technical strength.

{IV) Strengthen automation and improve basic ability and response speed 1o cope with
changing environment.

(V) Strengthen information technology and information security management.

(VI Follow up on environmental and green energy needs of customers and laws.
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1vV. Impact of External Competitive Environment, Regulatory Environment

and Owverall nomic Environment

i1} External Competitive Environment:

1. The overall environment is shrinking, the terminal demand is declining, and the
visibility is not clear,
The electronic industry is migrating and the supply chain is changing.
3. The international sitwation is tense, and exchange rates and prices are changing

rapidly.

4. The green concept is gaining attention and energy prices are gradually rising.
The Company must always pay attention to extemal information, accelerate reaction
speed, carefully control costs and more rigorously control non-immediate expenses;
we nead to focus more on extending new projects, stepping into new fields and

adhering to our basic skills to cope with sudden environmental headwinds to
accumulate strength to make a breakthrough when the opportunity comes.

(£ ]

(1) Regulatory Environment:

The Chinese government is continuously tightening environmental standards and
effectively controlling wastewater discharge through industrial parks and recently the
State Administration for Market Regulation (State Standardization Administration)
has approved 343 national standards, including the "Classification of Electroplating
Sludge Treatment and Disposal” and "Methods for Copper Containing Sludge
Treatment and Disposal,” as well as 2 national standard medification forms. Among
them, the "Classification of Electroplating Sludge Treatment and Dizposal” came
into effect on September [, 2020. Since 2007, the Chinese govemnment has
successively issued a number of economic and trade measures or regulations. The
adjustment 1o processing trade policies, the revision of the "Catalogue for the
Guidance of Foreign Investment Industries," the implementation of the "Enterprise
Income Tax Law." the "Labor Contract Law" and other regulations will directly
increase operating costs and operational difficulties. In addition, the recent
imposition of bilateral trade tariffs by both the United States and China will have an
operating impact on exporters. The Company will focus more on the updating and
researching of laws and regulations and respond with conservative strategies to
protect shareholders' equity.

{111} Impact on the Overall Business Environment:

Superior Plating Technology Group is committed to hard disk and 3C product
components, auto components and medical cquipment components. In 2022, due to
the changes in the external business environment, the Company encountered an
overall downturn, mainly due to changes in customer supply chain strategy,
continucus increase in labor costs, large fluctuations in exchange rates, great changes
in prices and supply and other factors, which will have an impact on the overall
business environment. The specific impacts are as follows:

l. Inthe 3C product segment, the entry point 15 shrinking, with a short-term impact
of sluggish consumption.

2. Due to the impact of the overall environment, there are many delays in the
expansion process of new cases, but due to the team's performance being highly
praised by customers during the development period, a prosperous luture is
expected.

3. Focus on customer supply chain transfer strategy, its dynamics and subseguent
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effects.

4. The operation is expected to retum to normal in the second half of 2023.

Chairman: Li, Su-Pai Ceneral Manager: Wang, Hzin=Wei  Accounting Manager: Lee, Yu-Hsuan
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II. Company Profile

Date of establishment: September 24, 2008.

Company History:

September, 2008 Taiwan Huidu Co, Ltd. was established with the paid-in capital of NT$500
thousand.

August, 2009  Conducted a capital increase of NT$299,500 thousand in cash, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$300,000 thousand.

September, 2009 Acquired 100% equity of Superior Plating Corp., and thus indirectly obtained
100% equity interests of World Honesty Enterprise Limited, Superior Drilling
(HK) Limited, Superior Plating (HK) Limited, First Plating (Hong Kong)
Limited, and Superior Century (Hong Kong) Limited and its subsidiaries in
Mainland China, Superior Industries (Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd., Huidu Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and HuiHuang Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

November, 2009 Conducted a capital increase of NT$15,000 thousand in cash, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$315,000 thousand.

December, 2009 Changed the Company name to Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

May, 2010 Founded HuiCheng Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. with 100% equity holding
through Superior Century (Hong Kong) Limited.
July, 2010 Conducted a capital increase of NT$10,000 thousand in cash, which increased

the paid-in capital to NT$325,000 thousand.

Acquired 100% equity of Extensive Management Consultant Inc. through Superior Plating Corp.,
and indirectly obtained 100% equity interest of Top-Team Technology (Shen
Zhen) Ltd.

December, 2010 Conducted a capital increase of NT$35,000 thousand in cash, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$360,000 thousand.

January, 2011  Became a public company by the approval of Financial Supervisory
Commission (FSC)

February, 2011  Shares were listed on the Emerging Stock Board of Taipei Exchange.

October, 2012  Conducted a capital increase of NT$12,000 thousand in cash, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$372,000 thousand.

March, 2015 Conducted the initial public offering of NT$46,500 thousand in cash, which
increased the paid-in capital to NT$418,500, and the shares were listed on the
Taipei Exchange on March 30, 2015.

June, 2015 The first issuance of domestic secured convertible corporate bonds of
NT$220,000 thousand was approved by the board of directors.
June, 2015 The indirect investment in Superior Industries (Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd. of US$6



August, 2015

December, 2015

January, 2016

March, 2016

May, 2016

July, 2016

August, 2016

million through the subsidiaries World Honesty Enterprise Limited and Superior
Drilling (HK) Limited was approved by the board of directors.

The first issuance of domestic secured convertible corporate bonds amounting
NT$220,000 thousand was approved by the FSC.

Issued common shares because of employee warrant exercise, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$424,620 thousand.

Issued common shares because of employee warrant exercise, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$427,260 thousand.

Completed the capital injection to the indirect investee Superior Industries (Shen
Zhen) Co., Ltd. of US$6 million through the subsidiaries World Honesty
Enterprise Limited and Superior Drilling (HK) Limited.

Conducted a capital increase of NT$11,288,370 because of the conversion of the
first domestic secured convertible corporate bonds, which increased the paid-in
capital to NT$438,548 thousand.

Established the 100% owned offshore investment company Superior Plating
Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in Seychells through the offshore
investment company World Honesty Enterprise Limited, and subsequently
founded the subsidiary Superior Plating Technology (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in
Thailand through Superior Plating Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Conducted a capital increase of NT$8,977,600 because of the conversion of the
first domestic secured convertible corporate bonds, which increased the paid-in
capital to NT$447,526 thousand.

November, 2016 Issued common shares as a result of employee warrant exercise, which increased

January, 2017

March, 2017

August, 2017

December, 2017

May, 2018

the paid-in capital to NT$448,216 thousand.

Issued common shares as a result of employee warrant exercise, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$449,476 thousand.

The dissolutions of subsidiaries Hui Jin Cheng Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
and Superior Century (Hong Kong) Limited.

Conducted a capital decrease through the cancelation of treasury stock
amounting NT$7,640,000, which decreased the paid-in capital to NT$441,836
thousand.

Issued common shares because of employee warrant exercise, which increased
the paid-in capital to NT$442,376 thousand.

Conducted a capital increase of NT$222,220 because of the conversion of the
first domestic secured convertible corporate bonds, which increased the paid-in
capital to NT$442,598 thousand.

September, 2018 Conducted a capital increase of NT$44,440 because of the conversion of the first

December, 2018

domestic convertible corporate bonds, which increased the paid-in capital to
NT$442,642 thousand.

Conducted a capital increase of NT$5,422,190 because of the conversion of the



April, 2019

June, 2019

March, 2021

first domestic secured convertible corporate bonds, which increased the paid-in
capital to NT$448,065 thousand.

Conducted a capital decrease through the cancelation of treasury stock
amounting NT$3,510,000, which decreased the paid-in capital to NT$444,555
thousand.

The equity disposal of the subsidiaries, Superior Plating (HK) Limited, Huidu
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. , First Plating (Hong Kong) Limited and
HuiHuang Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. was approved by the board of
directors.

Established Ever Superior Technologies Corporation as a joint venture with

Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.

10
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2. Major shareholders of institutional shareholders
Apr 11, 2023

Name of institutional shareholder Major shareholders of institutional shareholders

Li, Su-Pai (31%), Huang, Yue-E (29%), Lee, Yu-Hsuan

HuiSheng Investment Co., Ltd. (21%), Lee, Ming-Cheng (19%)

ChiaChuan Investment Co., Ltd. Wu, Chia-Chuan (50%), Hsiao, Shu-Fang (50%)

Runyi Industries Co., Ltd.(10%)
Jiyi Industries Co., Ltd.(10%)
Yujun International Co., Ltd.(20%)
Chengyang Industries Co., Ltd.(20%)

Yuyi Investment Co., Ltd.

Mingqi Investment Co., Ltd. Wu, Mao-Yuan (50%), Hsu, Sung-Hsiang (50%)

3. Major shareholders of any major shareholder who is an institutional shareholder:

Name of institutional shareholder Major shareholders of institutional shareholder

Chang, Hsiu-Hsiang (39%), Yu, Yun-Hsin (59%), Yu,

Runyi Industries Co., Ltd. Feng-Yi (2%)

Yu, Feng-Yi (53%), Yu, Li-Chien (46%), Chang,

Jiyi Industries Co., Ltd. Hsiu-Hsiang (1%)

Songhe International Enterprise Co., Ltd. (33%)
Yujun International Co., Ltd. Songyuan Enterprise Co., Ltd. (33%)
Junda Industries Co., Ltd. (33%)

Derun Industries Co., Ltd. (50%)

Chengyang Industries Co., Ltd. Ruilin Industries Co.. Ltd. (50%)
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5. Diversity Policy and Independence of the Board of Directors

(1) Diversity Policy of the Board:

According to Article 20 of the Company’s “Corporate Governance Best Practice
Principles”, all members of the board shall have the knowledge, skills, and experience
necessary to perform their duties. The Company’s board of directors is composed of 9
directors, and all directors possess professional expertise in commerce, accounting and etc.
Combining their experience from various backgrounds, the board is equipped with the
abilities to make operational judgments, perform accounting and financial analysis,
conduct management administration, conduct crisis management, lead, and knowledge of
the industry, and make policy decisions with their knowledge of the industry from an
international market perspective to attain diversity and complementarity.
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The Company’s board members are nominated through a rigorous selection process, which
not only takes their professional expertise into account, but also stresses on their reputation
for ethical conducts and leadership. In addition to the professional background of a director
(including an independent director), diversity is also the focus for board member
nomination. The Company’s board members all have the knowledge, skills and experience
to perform their duties, and, at the current stage, the targeted female member ratio is set to
be 20%, to which, the Company aims to increase the ratio of female director seats.

Diversity of the board of directors:

There are 9 directors in the Company’s fifth term of board of directors, and, of which, 6 are
directors and 3 are independent directors. Independent directors comprise 33.3% of the
board members. During the two years before being elected or during their term of office,
the independent directors have not been an employee, director or supervisor of the
Company or any of its affiliates. My spouse, any of relatives within the second degree of
kinship, or any of lineal relatives within the third degree of kinship is neither an employee,
director, supervisor, or officer of the Company or any of its affiliates, nor a spouse or
relative within the second degree of kinship of any of the other directors, nor elected in the
capacity of the government, a juristic person, or a representative thereof under Article 27
of the Company Act.

24



uemie], DmMd
91RI00SS Y
IoTuag JIpny
DN
_ _ _ _ ‘Jojoam( Npny _ _ _ _ _ _ 0N « 190130 Npny
SUON wonEsnpy ST90'810T | oJewof | ury ‘uny)| uemief, [euoN
JOo Ayis1oAtun)
eny3uey)
[euonEN
‘Sununoody
digsuny
30 23133p uensg-nx Io3euR "ouJ 109
U009S [ 120V
P Q91 Sununodoy 9s1reroads
oy urpim .
QATIR[Y A PO
! I -ouf
p¥170D 910N) puereq L, “SO0I09[
(puerreqy) | pue ueyzuodys eduwo
- Suoy)-3ur ABojouyoo | - ur soLIeIpISqNS ﬁwoﬁ:wco - - : ¢ : X 90" oreway | D UBMIE, !
asnodg JU N Suneiq [[2 pue uBMmE], sy 61°0 000°€8 (¥0°0 00091 ST90°610C | orewaq ‘0 e] soueur]
ki : ’ SunoyIeN :
Joudng 10§ Juounredoq D01
1030211 UONENSIUIPY 1onpoid
JATINOAX! 3 Sunoxre
I q Jo 1o5euR)y
diysur WS
sy Ays1oATun
40 22139p 3513y Ted-ng v uBULITE Eomnwho
oy upm fed-n§ 17 e
ATIE[OY
snipeulyy
9sATeuy
Ansnpuy
A1U_) VINDI
‘doueur] Io3euB
- - - - o) o urs 553.2 - - - - 9Ll 000°I8L | SI'10°110T | Sl BH AR uemIe], [elouan)
JueISISSy [e109dg : wumoﬁuw ‘ung : findaqy
reontod pue
SOTUIOU0dyq
Jo [001dg
uopuoT oYL
a Ays1oATun
JI10N) uaYZuYS " enuo TOM-UIS 1o3eue
- - - - uT SOLIBIPISQNS ! D - - - - - - 01°80°020C | 91BN | ° MUISH ueMIE] N
N [euonEN ‘Suep : [e1ouQD)
ITe Jo 108 eueN ook
ISA4d
[e1ouQD)
93eyuoorad SoTeUs 93eyuoorad SoTeUs 93eyuoorad SeIeqs
drgsuonery owEN OBEL soruedwios uoneonpa Surpjoyaue; 0 Surpjoyaue; 0 Surpjoyare 0
IoYJ0 Ul p[oy heonp protoeus IoquinN protoeus IoquinN tPIou-eUS Ioquiny | uoryerngneur
Jrewoy - pue oouatadxo : | opuen | oweN KyTeuoneN apiL
A[JUS1INOU09 oFe Joareq
drysuny Jo 90130p puoosss a1y Iofey SIOYIO JO OWIEU
UM QATIE[QI JO 9snods & ST oym 190150 tonIsod ot ut SurpjoyaIeys HOUH JO USIPIHD 10/puv SuploYRITYS
e : : U asnods jo Surpjoyareys
€20z ‘11 1dy

sjun youeiq
pUE SUOISIAIP [[€ JO s10SIAIodNS 9y} pue ‘s1oeuew [BIAUSS Jue)sIsse ‘S1oFeuew [eI1oud3 Andop ‘1o8euew [e10ud3 s Auedwo) 9yj UO UOIFEWLIOJU]

(2)

25



P71 (uoyz uays) ASojouyoo I wea -do ], pue py7 <00 (Uayz uays) sernsnpuy Jorodng apnjour uoyzuoys ur saLeIpIsqns s Auedwo)) oy :T 9JON

ANSI9ATUN)
MOTD00S
. 10170
- - - - QuoN SOEURMEN - - - - 000°C 61°10°€20T | orewd HUENSH A UBMIE], | QOUBUIIAOD
[elENOY  pue Suny) :
- 9jerodio)
Surourug
[eroueur]
digsuny
momwwwomﬁ mMy-yrg) ‘n !
oﬁ My-ymyo g souruL]
3 urgm
QAR (1 . SHioRd
: — 1sT[edadg
PY170D | 9ION) pue[reyL wpny
digsury (puerreqy) | pue uoyzudyg ur :
) Jo oa139p : A3ojouyod] | soueIpISqNS [[B ) ) ) ) . . _ uensH-nx I03eUR|N
puodas w:oﬁm%o SuIN Suneg 10§ Juaunedoq EMMMMH@ €00 000°¢€l LOTTT610T | oTead 90T ML Sununoooy
o) UIIM 1 Jotadng uoneNSIUIUPY w.o HEE&\M
ATIE[Y 10J0211(] Jo 1oSeuey Ansioatun
QATINOAXY Sununoooy e 101
drgsuny e IOHEH
1J0 90139p 1511 e
oy upm fed-n§ 11 uelIey s
ATIE[Y
-dio)
SONIINDAS
[ende)
‘Joypny
93eyuoorad SoTeUs 93eyuoorad SoTeUs 93eyuoorad SeIeqs
drgsuonery owEN OBEL soruedwios uoneonpa Surpjoyaue; 0 Surpjoyaue; 0 Surpjoyare 0
19710 UT Poy Heonp IPIOYRIEYS JoqunyN IPIOY2IEYS IoquinN tPIou-eUS Ioquiny | uoryerngneur
Jrewoy - pue oouatadxo : *|puen |  oweN | AjeuoneN apiL
A[JUS1INOU09 oFe Joareq
drysuny Jo 90130p puoosss a1y Jolepy SIY}O JO dWEu
uonIsoq JOUTW JO USIPIIYO I0/pue Supjoyareys

UM QATIE[QI JO 9snods & ST oym 190150

a1 ur Surpjoyareys

asnods jo Surpjoyareys

26



“Sunoow  SIOP[OYAILYS Y} 0} ParIodar aq 0} SI I PUB ‘€Z0T ‘07 YOIBJN UO SUNOIU SI0IAIIP JO pIeoq s Auedwio)) oy ur passed Udaq SEY UONEIOUNTIAI SIOJAIIP O], :JON
"0$LN JUEJ[NSU0D 2K0[dUA-UOU € Se FUIAIDS SE [ONS ‘SJUIWIAJL)S [RIOURUIJ ) UT PAPN[OUI sarueduron [[e 0) POIOPUI SIIAAISS I0f SI0JIP oY) Kq PaAIddQI uonesuaduros oy “9A0qe [qe) Ay} ur pasodsip uonewioyur woy pedy g

“UOIEIOPISUOD OJUI PAJIUULIOD SN} PUE dUI0q ST “AN[Iqisuodsar 1oy 10 sty Sursye) £q 305 aq [[Im uonesuadinod A[qeUuOSEdl [EUONIPPE UE ‘UONERISUNUIAI § J0J0IIP Y} 0) UONIPPE Ul “QRIUII0d [euonduny s Aueduwo)) Ay} JO JOQUISUI & ST 10)0211p Juopuadopur ue J] “uonerodioou] o sajonry

ot Jo suorsiaoxd oy 0} juensimd JUNOWE UONEIOUNTIAI A} SOA[OSII SIOJAIP JO preoq Y “Nyoid e sprooar Auedwroy) oy Uy Ay "prepues Ansnpur oy se [[oM Se uonnquyuod pue uonerado s Aueduroy) oY) ur JUSWSA[OAUT JO 92IZOP JIOY) UO PISE( SIOIOAIP 0} UOHEIIUNTIAT OYf) SOUIULIIOP SI0NAIP
J0 p1e0q oY) ‘uonerodroouy Jo SA[ANIY Y} AQ PIZLIOYINY :PANILIIOd JUWIT) PUE DUIOQ SYSLI Ay ‘saniqisuodsar  s10300mp Juspuadopur pue pred junowe ) usoMIOq UONEIOOSSE pue ‘pred ST uonEIOUNWIAI ,S1030011p Juapuadapur yargm Aq arnjonns pue ‘sprepue)s ‘woisAs ‘Korjod oy urepdxo oseor g °|

. %SLT | %SLT| . . . . . %SLT[ %sLTl o1 o o . . 099 | 099 —
SIL SIL - - SIL SIL Bued
VN %SL'T %SL'T %SL'T | %SL'T 01 01 op op 099 099 oep Fueg 103001(
- - - - - - - - IN-] “Sue,
S1L S1L - - S1L S1L Japuadapuy
%SL'T %SL'T %SL'T | %SLT Suays-n
VN - - - - - - 4 4 St St - - 099 099 IS A
L1L L1L - - L1L L1L SUEM
. %IS0 | %Is0| . . . . . %IS0 | %Iso| . el el . . . . WA
€el €el - - €el €el ‘moryd
uenx-oejy
. . . . M
VN %610 %610 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ %610 %610 _ _ 371 371 _ _ _ _ :aAnRIuasAIdaY
8CI 8CI 8CI 8CI “PYI70D
JTUDWSIAU]
1b3ury
SueisH-nisH
. . . . Suey)
VN %95°0 %95°0 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ %95°0 %95°0 o1 o1 9c1 9c1 _ _ _ _ :AnRIUasAIdaY
4! 4! 4! 4! Y700
JTUDWSIAU]
1Ang 1030211
uenyD-eIy)
. . . . M
VN %CS0 %TS0 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ %CS°0 %CS0 _ _ 9c1 9c1 _ _ _ _ :AnRIUasAIdaY
9¢l1 9¢l1 9¢l1 9¢l1 PYI70D
JTUIWSIAU
uenyeryy
ISH-3u9], ‘nJ
yn | %8P0 | wsrol i i i i i i _ | w8y | wsro| i - - i i i N R
STl STl STl STl JuoUnSIAU]
Suaysing
VN 7908 nITs - - - - - - 985°1 196 s 1 Hzs 1 [43 [43 €9¢ £€9¢ - - - - Ted-ng 17
860°C 9G€°l S6¢ S6¢ ' '
SIUAWAIL)S sareys yseop saIeys ysedp SIUAWIL)S SIUAWAIL)S SIUAWAIL)S SIUAWRIL)S SIUAW9IL)S SIUAWAIL)S SIUAWIL)S
[eroueuly wpred | wpred [ wpred | upred [eroueuly [eroueuly [eroueuly [eroueuly [eroueuly [eroueuly [eroueuly
a Auedwo) | Junowy | junowry | junouwry | junoury a Kuedwo) a Kuedwo) a Kuedwo) a Kuedwo) a Kuedwo) a Kuedwo) a Kuedwo)
fuedwoo ur papnpout Eling ur papnpout Eling ur papnpout Eling ur papnpout Ly ur papnpout Ly ur papnpout Ly ur papnpout Eling ur papnpout Eling
Juared oy Kq soruedwoo SJUSWIIL)S [BIOURULY soruedwoo soruedwoo soruedwoo soruedwoo soruedwoo soruedwoo soruedwoo
10 souEIpISqNS v oAE Egnon:_u:_ Auedwo) oy, v v v v 14 14 v
Ay uey) JOYI0 Sotuedod [Iv QweN ML
$29)S9AUT
:o_hw_uﬂmmam 0/) XE) X Wwoour Jou uonesuaduwos s, soKojdwg U (&) 2ouemoye DARCIREN (@) paspual Aomwwé (g) uorsusg (V) uonesuaduwo))
R (%) x®) 1oye dwoour Jou g o T UoISUdJ [eads pue snuoq ‘Arefes (%) xe1 30y QOIAIDS 10 $39] B o
a8ejuoorad e se jey) pue ‘| : : QWooUI Jou JO 338U : UONBIUNWIAT § 10J0I(
ue ‘g ‘g ‘q ‘D ‘g 'V Jo wng vse q pue ) ‘g ‘v jo wny

Apuarmouod 20Kojdwd ue se paArdsal uonesuaduio))

SI0}02IIP 0} UOHEISUNWIY

so1eys puesnoyj} ‘puesnoyl §IN HUN

$1030011(] Judpuddopu] pue $10301(] 0} uonerUNWYY (1)
JedK [BOSIJ JUDIAI ISOW Y} J0J (S)IdFeUBA [BIOUAL) AIndd(] pue JOFeURW [BIJUIL) ‘SI0IDAII(] 0} UONRIdUNWY ][

27



~ (aarsnpaur) 000°000°0S$.LN

(9A18N[9%3) (000 000 0SSN
~ (aArsnpaur) 000‘000°0€$.LN

(9A18N9%3) 000°000°0€$.LN
~ (aArsnpour) 000‘000°ST$.LN

(9A18N9%3) 000°000°ST$LN
~ (aArsnpaur) 000‘000°0T$.LN

(9A18N[9%3) 0000000 T$LN
~ (aArsnpour) 000‘000°S$.LN

(9A18N[9%3) 000°000°S$.LN
~ (aArsnpour) 000005 ‘€$.LN

red-ng r]

(9A1SN[9%3) 000005 €$.LN
~ (aArsnpour) 000‘000°C$.LN

red-ng r]

(9A18N19%3) 000000 C$.LN
~ (aArsnpour) 000000 T1$.LN

ury-resy, ‘suerq)

‘OeIN- ‘Bued SuoyS-nx

‘Suep ‘UM -NA “NOTYD)

‘ueni -oeJN ‘NAA :9AnBIUSSaIdar
PYT 0D JUdUNSIAU

1bSurpy ‘Sueisy-nisy ‘Suey)
:0AneIusaIdal pyT 0D

ur-resy, ‘Suerg)

‘OeIN- ‘Bued SuoyS-nx

‘Suep ‘UM -NA “NOTYD)

‘uenx -oeJN ‘NAA :9AnBIUSSaIdar
PYT 0D JUdUNSIAU

1b3ury (Suersy-nisy ‘Suey)
:aAneIusaxdal pyT 0D

ur-resy, ‘Suerg)

‘OeIN-] ‘Bued SuoyS-nx

‘Suepp ‘UM -NA “NOTYD)

‘ueng -OBJN ‘DA :9AnBIUSSaIdar
PYT 0D JUdUNSIAUT

1b3ury {Suersy-nisy ‘Suey)
:aAneIuosaxdal pyT 0D
JUOUSAAU] IANA ‘ueny)-ery))

ur-resy, ‘Suerg)

SOBIN-] ‘Fueq ‘Suoyg-nx
‘Fuepp “Uap\-NA ‘noryD
‘ueng -oeJ\ ‘AN :oAneIudsaidox
juls| 0D JUSUIISIAU]

1b3ury  ‘Sueisg-nisH  ‘Suey)
:oAneuasardar P 0D
JUOUISIAU] IANK  ‘ueny)-eIy)

000°000°T$LN uey) s3]

JUOUNSAAU] IANA ‘ueny)-eIy)| IJuounsaAu] 1Kng ‘ueny)d-ery)d) nA\ :oARIUSAIdT| AN :0AnBIUsaIdor
NAN :9ATRIUSIdOT NAN :9ATIRIUSIdOT PYT 0D JUDUNISAAU]|'PYT 0D JUDUIISIAU]
PYT 0D JUdUNSIAU PYT 0D JUdUNSIAU ueny)HeIy)) SIH-3ua 1 [ueny)HeIy) ‘STH-3UQ],
ueny)Hery)) SIg-suay, uenyDeIy)) SIg-suay, ‘n:0AnRIUdsIdoy pr] ‘n:eAnRIuasIdoy pr 1
‘n:0AnRIUdsIdoy PI] ‘n:0AnRIUdsIdoy Pr] €00 JUAUSIAUT|“*0)) JUSUIISIAU]
00 JUOUISIAU] SUAYSINH 00 JUOUISIAU] SUSYSINH Suoysmy° red-ng ‘ry|suoysmny* red-ng T
] SIUdWIAILIS H siuowdie)s
[erouBUL} oY) Ul Kuedwo) ay . [erouBUL} oY) Ul Kuedwo) ay .

papnpour saruedwod [y

papnpour saruedwod [y

(O+I+3+A+D+9+V

SWON / ISI1J JO WNG

(A+D+9+V) SWayl § ISI1J JO WNg

101001Ip JO dweN

s1030011p S Auedwo))
a3 03 pred uorjerounwidl Jo a3uey

9[qe) S19YOBIq UONBISUNUIY

28



[eloL,

000°000°00 T $LN Ueq) SI0N

(9A18N[9X3) 000‘000°001 SN

29



(I) Remuneration to the General Manager and Deputy General Manager

Unit: NT$ thousand; thousand shares

Sum of A, B, C
Bonus, special Employee’s compensation (D) and D and that as a
Salary (A) Pension (B) allowance and etc. Loy’ N tp percentage of net | Remunerati
(E) (Note) income after tax | on paid by
(%) investees
All All All All companies All other than
Title Name compani compani compani The Compan included in the compani the
es es es pany financial es subsidiaries
The |. The . The . The |.
Compa 1n‘cluded Compa 1n‘cluded Compa m.cluded statements Compa 11'{cluded or by the
in the in the inthe | Amou | Amou | Amou | Amou in the parent
™| financial ny financial w financial | nt paid | nt paid | nt paid | nt paid v financial | company
statemen statemen statemen in in in in statemen
ts ts ts cash | shares | cash | shares ts
General Wap &
Manager Hsin-
Wel 4,095 5,654
Deputy | Sung, 2,780 | 4,339 - - 480 480 834 - 834 - 15.72% | 21.71% NA
General | Cheng
Manager | -Hsi

Note: The directors’ remuneration has been passed in the Company’s board of directors’ meeting on March 20, 2023, and it is to

be reported to the shareholders’ meeting.

Remuneration brackets table

Range of remuneration paid to the Company’s
general manager and deputy general manager

Name of general manager and deputy general

manager

The Company

All companies included

in the financial
statements

Less than NT$1,000,000

INT$1,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$2,000,000
(exclusive)

Sung, Cheng-Hsi

INT$2,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$3,500,000
(exclusive)

Wang, Hsin-Wei

Wang, Hsin-Wei;
Sung, Cheng-Hsi

INT$3,500,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$5,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$5,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$10,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$10,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$15,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$15,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$30,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$30,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$50,000,000
(exclusive)

NT$50,000,000 (inclusive) ~ NT$100,000,000
(exclusive)

More than NT$100,000,000

Total
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(III) Names of managers entitled to employees’ compensation and amount entitled
Unit: NT$ thousand

Total
amount as a
Title Name Arpount paid Amount paid Total percentage
in shares in cash of net
income after
tax (%)
General Wang,
Manager Hsin-Wei
Deputy Sung,
General Cheng-Hsi
Manager
Finance Lu,
Manager Chih-Hui
Accounting Lee,
Manager Yu-Hsuan - 1,613 1,613 6.19%
Internal Audit .
Officer Chung, Lin
Specml Lee,
Assistant to Mine-Chen
Chairman g g
Corporate Chung,
Governance Yu-Hsuan
Officer

Note 1: Individual names and titles shall be disclosed, but distribution amounts may be disclosed in total.

Note 2: State the amounts of employees’ compensation for managers resolved by the board of directors for the
most recent fiscal year, including shares and cash. If such amounts are unable to be estimated, an amount
for current year calculated using the actual distribution ratio of the past year shall be provided. Net
income after tax is the net income after tax for the most recent fiscal year; If the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been applied, the net income after tax is the net income after tax stated
in the parent company only financial statements or individual financial statements for the most recent

fiscal year.

(IV) Separately compare and describe total remuneration, as a percentage of net income stated
in the parent company only financial statements or individual financial statements, as paid
by the Company and by each other company included in the consolidated financial
statements during the past 2 fiscal years to directors, general managers, and deputy
general managers, and analyze and describe remuneration policies, standards and
packages, and the procedure for determining remuneration, and its linkage to operating
performance and future risk exposure.
1. Analysis of the total remuneration, as a percentage of net income after tax stated in

the parent company only financial statements or individual financial statements during
the past 2 fiscal years to directors, general managers, and deputy general managers

Unit: NTS$ thousand

2022 2021
The Consohdgted The Consohdgted
Compan financial Compan financial
pany statements pany statements
Total remuneration to directors 4,171 4,914 11,354 11,979
Total remuneration to duectors 16.02% 18.87% 6.04% 6.37%
as a percentage of net income
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after tax (%)

Total remuneration to general

4,095 5,654 9,786 11,098
manager and deputy manager
Total remuneration to general
manager and deputy manager as 15.72% 21.71% 5.20% 5.90%

a percentage of net income after

tax (%)

2. Policies, standards and packages, and the procedure for determining remuneration,
and its linkage to operating performance and future risk exposure.

(1

)

Payment policy, criteria, and combination

1)  The remuneration of the Company’s directors shall be determined by the
board meeting in accordance with Article 19 of the Company's Articles of
Association, based on the degree of participation and contribution value of
individual directors in the performance of their duties; in addition, if the
Company makes a profit in the current year, no more than 5% shall be allocated
as the directors' remuneration in accordance with Article 28 of the Company's
Articles of Association. The Company periodically evaluates the remuneration to
directors. Related performance evaluations and legitimacy of compensation and
remuneration have all been reviewed by the Compensation and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors.

2)  For the remuneration to managers, the Company defines respective
allowances and prizes available at work in compliance with the Compensation
Regulations in order to thank and reward employees for their devotion to work.
Related prizes are approved also depending on the annual operational
performance, financial standing, operational status of the Company and the
performance at work of individuals. In addition, in cases of earnings for the year,
5-10% will be set aside as the remuneration to employees as required by the
Article 28 of the Articles of Incorporation. The Company refers to performance
evaluation results while deciding the prizes to be given out to managers. The
manager performance evaluation consists of 1. Financial Indicators: the
contribution of each business group/department to the Company’s profit
according to the Company’s income statements, in addition to the fulfillment of
goals by the managers; and II. Non-financial indicators: implementation of the
Company’s core values and operational/managerial capabilities as well as
involvement in sustainable operation. Based on the two major parts, the
operational performance remuneration is calculated and the remuneration system
is adequately reflected upon according to the actual operational status and related
laws and regulations.

Procedure for deciding the remuneration

1)  Related performance evaluations and the compensation and remuneration
legitimacy of directors and managers of the Company have been periodically
evaluated and approved by the Compensation and Remuneration Committee and
the Board of Directors each year. Besides personal performance fulfillment rate
and contribution to the Company, the overall operational performance of the
Company, the future risks of the industry, and the developmental trends are
referred to and the remuneration system is adequately reflected upon according
to the actual operational status and applicable laws and regulations from time to
time, taking into consideration current corporate governance trends as a whole as
well, in order to give reasonable compensation and to seek a balance between
sustainable operation and risk control of the Company. The actual amount
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3)

released to be the remuneration to directors and managers for 2022 is reviewed
by the Compensation and Remuneration Committee and brought forth to the
Board of Directors to be finalized.

Correlation with operational performance and future risks

1) The payment criteria and the system relevant to the Company’s
remuneration policy are reflected upon primarily taking into consideration the
overall operational outlook of the Company and the payment criteria are
approved reflective of the performance fulfillment rate and contribution in order
to enhance the efficacy of the Board of Directors and the managing department
as a whole. In addition, with reference to the compensation and remuneration
criteria in the industry, it is ensured that the compensation and remuneration to
the management of the Company are competitive so that outstanding
management talent may be retained.

2)  All the Company’s manager performance goals are combined with risk
control in order to ensure that possible risks within the scope of responsibility
can be managed and prevented against and respective human resources and
related compensation and remuneration policies are combined according to the
ratings given on the basis of actual performance. Important decisions are made
by the management of the Company after respective risk factors are weighed.
The related decision-making performance is reflected in the Company’s
profitability. The compensation and remuneration of the management has to do
with the performance in risk control.
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IV.

Implementation status of corporate governance:
(I) Operations of the board of directors

There were 8 board meetings held during 2022 [A], and the attendance of directors is

as follows:
Title Name Actual At(;n:x;)c;an Actual attendance Remark
attendance [B] rate (%) [B/A]
proxy
. . . Re-elected on
Chairman (Li, Su-Pai 8 0 100.00 2020.6.30
HuiSheng
Investment  Co., Bv-clected
Director |Ltd. 4 0 100.00 y-erected on
. 2022.6.22
Representative:
Lu, Teng-Hsi
ChiaChuan
Investment  Co.,
Director |Ltd. 8 0 100.00 Re-clected on
. 2020.6.30
Representative:
Wu, Chia-Chuan
Yuyi Investment
Co., Ltd.
Director |Representative: 8 0 100.00 Re-clected on
2020.6.30
Chang,
Hsiu-Hsiang
Mingqi
Investment  Co.,
Director |Ltd, 5 1 62.50 Re-clected on
. 2020.6.30
Representative:
Wu, Mao-Yuan
. . Newly elected on
Director |Chiou, Yu-Wen 7 1 87.50 2020.6.30
Independe | wang, Yu-Sheng g 0 100.00 Re-glocted on
Independe Newly elected on
it Director| 2% 1Ma0 8 0 100.00 020,630
Independ | hiang, Tsai-Lin g 0 100.00 fewly clected on

Other matters required for disclosure:

1. For a board of directors’ meeting that meets any of the following conditions, state the
date, session, subject matter, all independent directors' opinions and how the Company
responded to such opinions:

(1) Matters provided in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act: The Company
has established the Audit Committee, so Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange
Act does not apply. Please refer to the Operations of Audit Committee section for the
explanation regarding matters provided in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange
Act.

(2) In addition to matters above, any other documented objections or reservations raised
by independent directors against board resolution in relation to matters other than
those described above: None.

2. Regarding the situation of directors’ conflict of interest recusal, the name of the director
with a potential conflict of interest, subject matter, reason for conflict of interest recusal
and his or her participation in vote: In a subject matter involving directors’ remuneration
of the board meeting, a director recuses himself or herself in the discussion or vote
regarding his or her performance and compensation, and the rest directors discuss and




vote for the said matter.

A listed company shall disclose the status of evaluation on the board of directors’
self-performance evaluation (or peer evaluation), including the evaluation frequency and
period, scope of evaluation, method and contents of evaluation, and the implementation
status is as follows:

Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluatio | Evaluatio .
. Evaluation contents
frequency period nscope | nmethod
I.  Criteria for self performance
evaluation of the board of
directors consist of the
following aspects:
1. Participation in the
operation of the Company
2. Improvement of the quality
of the board of directors'
decision making
3. Composition and structure
Self of the board of directors
Performa . .
performan 4. Election and continuing
nce . .
. ce education of the directors
evaluation .
of the evaluation 5. Internal control
2022/01/01 of the II.  Criteria for self performance
Once a board of . A
ar ~ director board of evaluation of individual board
ye 2022/12/31 angc ors directors members include the following
individual and aspects:
individual 1. Alignment of the goals and
board .o,
member board missions of the Company
embers | members 2. Awareness of the duties of a
director
3. Participation in the
operation of the Company
4. Management of internal
relationship and
communication
5. The director's
professionalism and
continuing education
6. Internal control

4.

(1)

)

€)

“4)

Evaluation of targets for strengthening of the functions of the board during the current and
immediately preceding fiscal years:
Strengthening the functions of the board of directors: The Company records on audio
and video tape the entire proceedings of a board of directors meeting, prepares meeting
minutes and implements board resolutions to utilize the functions of the board.
Enhancing directors’ professional knowledge: The Company encourages continuing
education for directors and arranges instructors to give directors lectures in the
Company.
Establishing the Remuneration Committee: the Company has established the
Remuneration Committee, which evaluates the reasonableness of policy, system and
structure of directors’ and managers’ remuneration and submits to the board of directors’
meeting for review.
Establishing the Audit Committee: It is responsible for oversight of the fairness of the
Company’s financial statements, appointment and dismissal of the external auditors and
independence and performance thereof, effective implementation of the Company’s
internal control, compliance with related laws and regulations and control of existing or
potential risks of the Company.
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(5) Enhancing information transparency: The Company adopts the spokesman system,
discloses information that may affects shareholders and stakeholders in a timely manner
and updates such information on the Company’s website and Market Observation Post
System (MOPS).

(6) The Company plans to prepare the English versions of shareholders’ meeting handbook
and supplementary materials, annual report, annual financial statements and material
information to revamp its information disclosure quality and strengthen investor
relations.
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(IT) Operations of Audit Committee

There were 7 Audit Committee meetings held during 2022 [A], and the attendance of
committee members is as follows:

Actual attendan Actual attendance rate
Title Name ot [B]e e (%) Remark
[B/A]
Independent The Audit
Director Wang, Yu-Sheng 7 100.00 Committee
Independent was
Director | 218 I-Mao 7 100.00 established to
replace
In]c;eiferidfnt Chiang, Tsai-Lin 7 100.00 supervisors on
ecto 2020.6.30

Other matters required for disclosure:
1. For an Audit Committee’s meeting that meet any of the following conditions, state the date,
session, subject matter, Audit Committee’s resolution and how the Company responded to

such opinions.

(1) Matters under Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

Date and The C ,
session of the Resolution and ¢ ompany ds'
Audit Subject matter opinion of the response to A? it
Committee’s Audit Committee Comrmttee S
meeting opinions
Loan .t.ransfer of Dongguan Passed as
Guanjie Metal Surface Treatment d without
2022.01.06 | Co., Ltd, an investee ,of which, | PLOPOR= e 208
8th meeting | Superior Industries (Shen Zhen) Ole;Cle?aI;a erthe ra(i)s(e) d sr (:E fmon
of the first | Co., Ltd.. holds 10% of the voting . ¢ by the.
term shares and recognized as an consul-ted with all | Audit Committee
investment accounted for using committee
equity method members present
Lease agreement between the Passed zzls h
2022.01.24 | subsidiary, Top-Team Technology p{)gpoge Wt}t 01111t No oth ..
9th meeting | and Guanjie Metal Surface Ole ection after the ° 0:1 ]Sr OE fnion
of the first | Treatment Co., Ltd. for the airman raised by the )
term factory area on the 2nd floor of consul-t cd withall | Audit Committee
Building A committee
] members present
Passed as
proposed without
objection after the | No other opinion
2021 Business Report Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
2022.03.21 members present
10th meeting Passed as
of the first proposed without
term objection after the | No other opinion
Financial Statements for 2021 Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
. Y Passed as No other opinion
2021 Earnings Distribution Plan proposed without | raised by the
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objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

Audit Committee

2021 “Statement of Internal

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

Control System” Chairman . raisgd by the.
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

Amendments to the Company’s

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

“Regulations for the Acquisition Chairman raised by the

and Disposal of Assets” consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

Amendments to the Company’s

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

“Corporate Governance Chairman raised by the
Principles” consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

2022.05.12
11th meeting
of the first
term

Change of Finance Manager Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

Financial Statements for 2022Q1 | Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

Regular evaluation of

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

independence of the Company’s Chairman raised by the
external auditors consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

Amendments to the Company’s
“Articles of Incorporation”

proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

Amendments to the Company’s
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“ Rules of Procedure for
Shareholders Meetings”

Extension of loan facility between
the Company and its subsidiaries

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

2022.06.22
12th meeting
of the first
term

Proposal of the record date for the
Company’s 2021 cash dividend
distribution.

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

2022.08.08
13th meeting
of the first
term

Financial Statements for 2022Q2

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

Purchase of directors liability
insurance for the year 2022

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

Amendments to the “Articles of
Incorporation”

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

Extension of loan facility between
the Company and its subsidiaries

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

2022.11.07
14th meeting
of the first
term

Financial Statements for 2022Q3

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

Business Report for the first half
of 2022

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee
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consulted with all
committee
members present

Earnings distribution for the first

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

half of 2022 and relevant Chairman raised by the
ex-dividend dates consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

The Company’s 2023 annual audit

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

plan Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

The Company’s 2023 budget Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

CPA fees for the year 2023 Chairman raised by the
consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

Amendments to the “Procedures

proposed without
objection after the

No other opinion

for Handling Material Inside Chairman raised by the
Information” consulted with all | Audit Committee
committee
members present
Passed as

Acquisition of right-of-use assets
from a related party.

proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee

Matters with regard to the
guarantee of the subsidiary,
Superior Industries (Shen Zhen)
Co., Ltd., for the construction
loan facility made to Dongguan
Guanjie Metal Surface Treatment
Co., Ltd. with the amount limited
to its 10% equity interest.

Passed as
proposed without
objection after the
Chairman
consulted with all
committee
members present

No other opinion
raised by the
Audit Committee
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(2) In addition to matters above, any matter that has not been passed by the Audit
Committee, but has been adopted with the approval of two-thirds or more of all
directors: None.

. Regarding conflict-of-interest recusal by an independent director, the name of the
independent director, subject matter, reason for recusal and his or her participation in the

vote.

. Communication between independent directors and internal audit officer and CPAs (which
shall include material matters, method and result of the communication on the Company’s
financial and business conditions).
(1) The Company’s independent directors meet with CPAs regularly, and CPAs report the

financial performance of the Company, financial and overall operations of its domestics
and overseas subsidiaries, and result of internal control audit to the independent
directors and thoroughly communicate about governance. In case of any material
irregularity, a meeting may be held at any time.
(2) The Company has established the Audit Committee, which is composed of the three
independent directors. The internal audit officer is invited to participate in each of the
Audit Committee’s meetings and report the implementation status regarding internal
audit and internal control at least once a quarter. In case of any material irregularity, a
meeting may be held at any time.

Matters communicated between the independent directors and internal audit officer and CPAs

are provided in the table below:

Date Attendee Matters discussed Discussio
n result
2022/3/21 | Independent Internal Audit Report for October~December, | Passed as
Director Wang, 2021 and January, 2022 proposed
Yu-Sheng 2021 Business Report without
Independent Financial Statements for 2021 objection
Director Pang, 2021 Earnings Distribution Plan
1-Mao 2021 “Statement of Internal Control System”
Independent Amendments to the Company’s “Regulations
Director Chiang, | for the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”
Tsai-Lin Amendments to the Company’s “Corporate
Internal Audit Governance Principles”
Officer Chung, Change of Finance Manager
Lin
CPA Liang, Tanti
2022/5/12 | Independent Internal Audit Report for February~March, Passed as
Director Wang, 2022 proposed
Yu-Sheng Financial Statements for 2022Q1 without
Independent Regular evaluation of independence of the objection
Director Pang, Company’s external auditors
1-Mao Amendments to the Company’s “Articles of
Independent Incorporation”
Director Chiang, | Amendments to the Company’s “ Rules of
Tsai-Lin Procedure for Shareholders Meetings”
Internal Audit Extension of loan facility between the
Officer Chung, Company and its subsidiaries
Lin
CPA Liang, Tanti
2022/8/8 | Independent Internal Audit Report for April-June, 2022 Passed as
Director Wang, Financial Statements for 2022Q2 proposed
Yu-Sheng Purchase of directors liability insurance for without
Independent the year 2022 objection
Director Pang, Amendments to the “Articles of
1-Mao Incorporation”

41




Independent Extension of loan facility between the
Director Chiang, | Company and its subsidiaries
Tsai-Lin
Internal Audit
Officer Chung,
Lin
CPA Liang, Tanti
2022/11/7 | Independent Internal Audit Report for July-September, Passed as
Director Wang, 2022 proposed
Yu-Sheng Financial Statements for 2022Q3 without
Independent Business Report for the first half of 2022 objection

Director Pang,
1-Mao
Independent
Director Chiang,
Tsai-Lin

Internal Audit
Officer Chung,
Lin

CPA Liang, Tanti

Earnings distribution for the first half of 2022
and relevant ex-dividend dates

The Company’s 2023 annual audit plan

The Company’s 2023 budget

CPA fees for the year 2023

Amendments to the “Procedures for
Handling Material Inside Information”
Acquisition of right-of-use assets from a
related party.

Matters with regard to the guarantee of the
subsidiary, Superior Industries (Shen Zhen)
Co., Ltd., for the construction loan facility
made to Dongguan Guanjie Metal Surface
Treatment Co., Ltd. with the amount limited
to its 10% equity interest.
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(IV) If the Company has a Remuneration Committee in place, the composition and operation of
such committee shall be disclosed

1. Information on Remuneration Committee members

Capacity

1teria

Name

Professional qualification
and experience

Independence Status

Number of
companies in
which
concurrently
serving as a
remuneration
committee
member

Independent
Director
(Convener)

Wang,
Yu-Sheng

Having more than 5 years of
work experience in finance,
accounting and fields
necessary for the business of
the Company and serving as
an Audit Committee member
of the Company. Past work
experience in finance and
accounting at KPMG, Taipei
Exchange and Chialin
Precision Industrial Co., Ltd.

—

. Not an employee of the Company or any of

its affiliates

. Not a director or supervisor of the Company

or any of its affiliates. (This does not apply to
independent directors appointed in
accordance with the Act or the laws and
regulations of the local country by, and
concurrently serving as such at, the Company
and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of
the same parent.)

. Not a natural-person shareholder who holds

shares, together with those held by the
person's spouse, minor children, or held by
the person under others' names, in an
aggregate of one percent or more of the total
number of issued shares of the Company or
ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

Not a spouse, relative within the second
degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the
third degree of kinship, of a managerial
officer under (1) or any of the persons in (2)
and (3).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of an
institutional shareholder that directly holds
five percent or more of the total number of
issued shares of the Company, or that ranks
among the top five in shareholdings, or that
designates its representative to serve as a
director or supervisor of the Company under
Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company
Act.

. Not a director, supervisor or employee of any

company controlled by the same person that
holds a majority of the director seats or
voting shares of the Company.

. Not a director, supervisor or employee of

another company or institution, of which, the
chairperson, general manager, or person
holding an equivalent position and a person
in any of those positions of the Company are
the same person or are spouses.

. Not a director, supervisor, officer, or

shareholder holding five percent or more of
the shares, of a specified company or
institution that has a financial or business
relationship with the Company.

. Not a professional individual who, or an

owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer
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Number of
companies in

o which
. iteria Professional qualification concurrently
Capacity . Independence Status .
Name and experience serving as a
remuneration
committee
member
of a sole proprietorship, partnership,
company, or institution that, provides audit
services to the Company or any affiliate of
the Company, or that provides commercial,
legal, financial, accounting or related services
to the Company or any of its affiliates for
which the provider in the past 2 years has
received cumulative compensation exceeding
NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof;
10. Not under any of the circumstances set forth
in Article 30 of the Company Act.
Having more than 5 years of
work experience in law and
serving as an Audit
Inde;pendent Pang, Commgittee member of the Same as above 0
Director 1-Mao .
Company. Served as a senior
consultant of Lee and Li,
Attorneys-at-Law.
Having more than 5 years of
work experience in finance,
accounting and fields
necessary for the business of
Independent| Chiang, the Corppany an.d serving as
. . < |an Audit Committee member Same as above 0
Director | Tsai-Lin

of the Company. Worked at
KPMG, and currently
serving as the CFO of
Chinesegamer International
Corp.




2. Operations of the Remuneration Committee

(1) There are totally three members in the Company’s Remuneration Committee.
(2) The term of office of current members: From June 30, 2020 to June 29, 2023. In 2022,

there were 4 [A] Remuneration Committee’s meetings held, and members’ qualification
and attendance are listed below:

Actual Actual
. Att R k
Title Name attendance b en;l;r(we attendance %) emar
[B] Y Pro%y [B/A]

Wang, Acted as the convener since
Convener | y; gheng 4 0 100 June 30, 2020
Member | Pang, -Mao 4 0 100 Newly elected on 2020.6.30
Member | Chiang, 4 0 100 Newly clected on 2020.6.30

Tsai-Lin

The Remuneration Committee performs the following duties and reports its suggestions to the board of

directors’ meeting for discussion:

1. Establishing and periodically reviewing the performance assessment standards, annual and long-term
performance goals, and the policies, systems, standards, and structure for the compensation of the
directors and managerial officers.

2. Periodically evaluating the compensation of directors and managerial officers.

Remuneration Committee’s Meetings:

Remuneration Subject matter Resolution
Committee
members

Distribution of 2021 directors’ remuneration.

Distribution of 2021 managerial officers’ and employees’

compensation. .
2022.03.21 Amepndments to the Company’s “Rules for Performance Passed by all committee

Evaluation of Board of Directors". members.

Adjustments of independent directors’ salaries and directors’

transportation allowance.

Distribution of 2021 directors’ remuneration. Passed by all committee
2022.06.22 Distribution of 2021 managerial officers’ and employees’ members

compensation. )

Reviewing the performance assessment and the policies,

systems, standards, and structure for the compensation of the Passed by all committee
2022.08.08 directors and managerial officers.

Establishment of the employee stock ownership trust of members.

Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

Reviewing the distribution of 2022 annual bonuses for .

. Passed by all committee

2022.11.07 managerial officers. b

2023 annual plan of the Remuneration Committee. MEMPBELS.

Other matters required for disclosure:

1. Ifthe board of directors does not accept, or amends, any recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, specify the board meeting date, session, content of the recommendation(s), the
resolution(s) of the board of directors, and the measures taken by the Company with respect to the
opinions given by of the Remuneration Committee : None in 2022.

2. With respect to any matter for resolution by the Remuneration Committee, if there is any objection or
reservation of a committee member that is on record or stated in writing, specify the remuneration
committee meeting date, session, subject matter, the opinions of all members, and the measures taken
with respect to the members’ opinion:None in 2022,
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(IX) Implementation of internal control system

1.

Statement of Internal Control: Please see below.

For the Company’s internal control system of 2022, it is hereby declared as follows according to
self-assessment findings:

L.

IL.

1L

Iv.

VL

VIL

Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Internal Control System Declaration

Date: March 20, 2023

The Company knows that establishing, enforcing, and maintaining an internal control system is the
responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and managers and has such a system in place
already. It is meant to reasonably ensure fulfillment of the operational efficacy and efficiency
(including profits, performance, and protection of asset security), reporting reliability, timeliness,
transparency, and compliance with applicable regulations and laws and regulatory requirements,
among other goals.

The internal control system has its inherited restrictions that cannot be overcome with improved
design. An effective internal control system can also only reasonably ensure the fulfillment of the
three goals stated above and its effectiveness may change as the environment or situation changes.
There is a self-surveillance mechanism, however, built inside the internal control system of the
Company that helps the Company take corrective action against deficiencies confirmed.

The Company determines the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal control
system in accordance with the items in “Governing Regulations for Public Company’s Establishment
of Internal Control System” (hereinafter called “Governing Regulations”) that are related to the
effectiveness of internal control systems. The items adopted in the Governing Regulations for
determining the internal control system are the five constitutional elements of the internal control
system divided according to the management and control process: 1. control environment, 2. risk
assessment, 3. control process, 4. information and communication, and 5. supervision. Each element
further encompasses several items. For the above-mentioned items, refer to the requirements in the
“Governing Regulations.”

The Company has already adopted the aforesaid items to check the effectiveness in the design and
implementation of its internal control system.

Based on the evaluation results in the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that as of
December 31, 2022, for its internal control systems (covering supervision and management of
subsidiaries), which include understanding of the effectiveness of operations and the extent to which
efficiency goals are achieved, the reporting is reliable, timely, transparent, and compliant with
relevant laws and regulations, and the design and implementation of relevant internal control systems
are effective to reasonably ensure the achievement of the objectives above.

This declaration constitutes a major part of the Company’s Annual Report and the Company’s
Prospectus that are made available to the public. In case of falsification or concealment, among other
illegal conditions, with the above-mentioned released contents, liabilities under Articles 20, 32, 171,
and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act will be sought.

This Declaration was approved at the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors on March 20,
2023 with _ directors expressing dissent out of the _ directors in attendance.
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2. Where a CPA has been hired to carry out a special audit of the internal control system, furnish
the CPA audit report: N/A

(X) Ifthere has been any legal penalty against the Company or its internal personnel, or any
disciplinary penalty by the Company against its internal personnel for violation of the internal
control system, during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the
publication date of the annual report, the penalty, the main shortcomings, and condition of
improvement: None.

(XI) Material resolutions of shareholders’ meetings or board of directors’ meetings during the most
recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report.

1. Material resolutions of the shareholders meetings:

Shar@holders Date Material resolution
meeting
1. Ratification of 2021 annual final accounting books and statements.
2. Ratification of 2021 earnings distribution plan.
2022 general 3. Amendments to part of the “Pfocedure.s for Making Endqr§§ments/Guqrantees”.
shareholders” 12022.06.22 4. Amenc’i’ments to part of the “Regulations for the Acquisition and Disposal of
meeting Assets . .
5. Amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation”.
6. Amendments to the “ Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings”
7. By-election of one director for the Company’s fifth board of directors

2. Material resolutions of the board of directors’ meetings:

Date Material resolution

The record date for the Company’s 2021 cash dividend distribution was
proposed for discussion.

The 2022Q2 Financial Statements were proposed for discussion.

The purchase of director’s liability insurance for the year 2022 was proposed for
discussion.

The amendments to the “Articles of Incorporation” were proposed for
discussion. The proposal was submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for
discussion.

The extension of loan facility between the Company and its subsidiaries was
2022.08.08 proposed for discussion.

The review of the performance assessment and the policies, systems, standards,
and structure for the compensation of the directors and managerial officers was
proposed for discussion.

The establishment of the employee stock ownership trust of Superior Plating
Technology Co., Ltd. was proposed for discussion.

The addition of loan facility of the Company with the First Bank was proposed
for discussion.

The fifth share repurchase was proposed for resolution. The proposal was
submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for reporting.

The 2022Q3 Financial Statements were proposed for discussion.

The Business Report for the first half of 2022 was proposed for discussion. The
proposal was submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for reporting.

The earnings distribution for the first half of 2022 and relevant ex-dividend
dates were proposed for discussion. The proposal was submitted to the
shareholders’ meeting for reporting.

2022.11.07 The Company’s 2023 annual audit plan was proposed for discussion.

The Company’s 2023 budget was proposed for discussion.

The CPA fees for the year 2023 was proposed for discussion.

The review of the distribution of 2022 annual bonuses for managerial officers
was proposed for discussion.

The amendments to the “Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information”
were proposed for discussion.

2022.06.22

2022.10.06
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Date Material resolution

The 2022 self-assessment form for directors was proposed for discussion.

The amendments to the “Regulations for the Transfer of Shares Repurchased to
Employees” for the Company’s fifth share repurchase were proposed for
discussion.

The acquisition of right-of-use asset from a related party was proposed for
discussion.

The matters with regard to the guarantee of the subsidiary, Superior Industries
(Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd., for the construction loan facility made to Dongguan
Guanjie Metal Surface Treatment Co., Ltd. with the amount limited to its 10%
equity interest were proposed for discussion.

The addition of loan facility of the Company with the KGI Bank was proposed
for discussion.

The renewal of loan facility of a subsidiary with the KGI Bank was proposed
for discussion.

The renewal of loan facility of a subsidiary with the KGI Bank was proposed
for discussion.

The renewal of loan facility of the Company with the Cathay United Bank was
proposed for discussion.

The 2023 annual plan of the Remuneration Committee was proposed for
discussion.

The addition of loan facility between the Company’s subsidiaries was proposed
for discussion.

The appointment of the Corporate Governance Officer was proposed for
discussion.

The addition of loan facility of the Company with the KGI Bank was proposed
for discussion.

2022 Business Report for discussion.

2022 Financial Statements for discussion.

Earnings Distribution Proposal for the second half of 2022 for discussion.

2022 “Internal Control System Declaration” for discussion.

Distribution of 2022 remuneration to directors for discussion.

Distribution of 2022 remuneration to independent directors for discussion.
Total budget for the distribution of 2022 remuneration to managers and
employees for discussion.

Revision of some articles of the Company’s “Procedure for Endorsement and
Guarantee” for discussion.

Re-election of the Company’s directors (including independent directors) for
approval.

Nomination and review of the list of directors (including independent directors)
nominated by the Board of Directors for discussion.

Lifting of business strife limitation for new directors for discussion.

Time, venue, and cause of the 2023 General Shareholders’ Meeting for
discussion.

Limits of funds lent between the Company and its subsidiaries for discussion.
Line of credit for an extension of the financing loan with the First Bank for
discussion.

The 2023Q1 Financial Statements were proposed for discussion.

Regular assessment of the independence of visa accountants for discussion.
2023.05.09 The company's cancellation of treasury shares for discussion.

Subsidiary Top-Team Technology (Shen Zhen) Ltd. and Superior Industries
(Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd. purchased machinery and equipment for discussion.

2023.01.19

2023.03.20

(XII) Where, during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of
publication of the annual report, a director or supervisor has expressed a dissenting opinion with
respect to a material resolution passed by the board of directors, and said dissenting opinion has
been recorded or prepared as a written declaration, disclose the principal content thereof: None.

(XIII) A summary of resignations and dismissals, during the most recent fiscal year or during the
current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report, of the Company's
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chairperson, general manager, chief accounting officer, chief financial officer, chief internal

auditor, chief corporate governance officer, and chief research and development officer:
Summary of resignations and dismissals of the Company’s relevant personnel

May 09 2023
) Date of Date of Rpasqn of
Title Name . . .. resignation or
Inauguration dismissal dismissal
Finance Sung, 2011.01.18 2022.03.21 Change in position
Manager Cheng-Hsi
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V.

VL

VIL

Information on the professional fees of the attesting CPAs:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Name of Name of CI:)i/rel;):d Non-audit
accounting CPA h Audit fees f Total Remark
firm Name by the . ces
CPA audit
LTlantgf 2022.01.0
Deloitte ;‘3 ol 12022.12. | 2,550 350 2,900 -
Robert 31

Non-audit public expenditure is the taxation/certification charge and costs of review of the Annual
Report during the shareholders’ meeting, and review of the IT environment.

(1) When the Company changes its accounting firm and the audit fees paid for the fiscal year in
which such change took place are lower than those for the previous fiscal year, the amounts of
the audit fees before and after the change and the reasons shall be disclosed: N/A.

(2)  When the audit fees paid for the current fiscal year are lower than those for the previous fiscal
year by 15 percent or more, the reduction in the amount of audit fees, reduction percentage, and
reason(s) therefor shall be disclosed:N/A.

Information on replacement of CPAs: None

Where the Company's chairperson, general manager, or any managerial
officer in charge of finance or accounting matters has in the most recent year
held a position at the accounting firm of its certified public accountant or at
an affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm: None.

74



VIIIL. Any transfer of equity interests and/or pledge of or change in equity interests
by a director, managerial officer, or sharecholder with a stake of more than 10
percent during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up

to the date of publication of the annual report:

(I) Change in equity interests by a director, managerial officer or major shareholder

Unit: Shares

Current fiscal year up to
2022 April 11
Title Name Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) in | (decrease) in | (decrease) in | (decrease) in
shareholding | share pledged | shareholding | share pledged
Chairman Li, Su-Pai 12,000 (500,000)
HuiSheng Investment Co.,
Director Ltd. (1,000,000) (1,720,000)
Representative: Lu, Teng-Hsi
ChiaChuan Investment Co.,
Director Ld. .
Representative: Wu,
Chia-Chuan
Yuyi Investment Co., Ltd.
Director Representative: Chang, 200,000
Hsiu-Hsiang
Minggqi Investment Co., Ltd.
Director Representative: Wu, (10,000)
Mao-Yuan
Director Chiou, Yu-Wen
gli(rlzgf;dent Wang, Yu-Sheng
Independent
Diregtor Pang, I-Mao
gli(rlzgf;dent Chiang, Tsai-Lin
Sg;?gér Wang, Hsin-Wei
Deputy
General Sung, Cheng-Hsi
Manager
Manager of the
Administration
Department -y |\ Chih-Hui
and
Finance
Department
Special
Assistant to Lee, Ming-Cheng
Chairman
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Assistant
Manager of the
Internal Audit
Department

Chung, Lin

Manager of
Accounting Lee, Yu-Hsuan
Department

Corporate
Governance  |Chung, Yu-Hsuan
Officer

Shareholder
with a stake of |HuiSheng Investment Co.,
more than 10 |Ltd.

percent

(1,000,000) (1,720,000)

(IT) Where the counterparty in any such transfer of equity interests is a related party: None.
(III) Where the counterparty in any such pledge of equity interests is a related party: None.
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IX. Relationship information on any of the Company's top 10 shareholders who
is a related party or a relative within the second degree of kinship of another:

April 11, 2023; unit: shares; %

Personal shareholding

Shareholding of spouse
and/or children of minor

Total shareholding in
the name of others

The name and
relationship of any of
the Company's top 10
shareholders who is a
related party or a

age ) L
Name g relative within the Remark
second degree of
kinship of another.
. . |Number .
Number of| Shareholding| Number of| Shareholding Shareholding . .
of Name [Relationship
Shares | percentage | Shares | percentage percentage
Shares

HuiSheng Investment Co., Ltd. 5,559,776 12.51

Representative Li, Su-Pai 977,000 220
Yuyi Investment Co., Ltd. 1,976,000 4.44

Representative:Chang, Hsiu-Hsiang
ChiaChuan Investment Co., Ltd. 1,947,000 438

Representative:Wu, Chia-Chuan 15,000 0.03 1,000
;)\I\/](éRLDWIDE FREIGHT TERMINALJ 1,500,000 337

Representative:Chang,:

You, Gu-Jia-Zhen 234,000 0.53
Mingqi Investment Co., Ltd. 1,307,592 2.94

Representative:
(Wu, Mao-Yuan
Lin, Ren-Nong 1,114,000 251
Li, Su-Pai 977,000 2.20
Sung, Cheng-Hsi 781,000 1.76
[Xir, Wen- Fu 612,000 1.38
Shen, Chen- Jiao-E 553,000 1.24
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X.  The total number of shares and total equity stake held in any single enterprise
by the Company, its directors and managerial officers, and any companies
controlled either directly or indirectly by the Company

Unit: Thousand shares; %

The Company, managerial
officers, and any companies
controlled either directly or
indirectly by the Company

Investment by the

Total investment
Company

Investee
(Note 1)

Number | Shareholding Number of | Shareholding | Number | Shareholding

of Shares

percentage

Shares percentage

of Shares

percentage

Superior Plating
Corp.

11,271

100

11,271

100

Ever Superior
Technologies
Corporation

6,300

35

6,300

35

Extensive
Management
Consultant Inc.
(Samoa)

1,000

100

1,000

100

Superior Drilling
(HK) Limited

89,000

100

89,000

100

Superior Plating
Technology
Holding (Thailand)
Co. Ltd.

4,830

78

4,830

78

Superior Plating
Technology

(Thailand) Co. Ltd.

2,192

66

2,192

66

Superior Industries
(Shen Zhen) Co.,
Ltd.

Note 2

100

Note 2

100

Top-Team
Technology (Shen
Zhen) Ltd.

Note 2

100

Note 2

100

Dongguan Guanjie
Metal Surface

Treatment Co., Ltd.

Note 2

10

Note 2

10

Note 1: It is a long-term investment accounted for using equity method.
Note 2: It is a limited company, so there is no share.
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I'V. Funding
I.  Capital and shares

(I) Sources of capital:
Unit: thousand shares; NT$ thousand
Authorized capital Paid-in capital Remark
Capital paid
Issued | Number Number Sources of in by
price of Amount of Amount o property Other
Shares Shares capital: other than

cash

Year/Month

Initial capital of

2008/09 10.00 50 500 50 500 NT$500 None Note 1
thousand at

incorporation

Capital increase
2009/08 14.62 50,000 | 500,000 | 22,500 | 225,000 | of NT$224,500 None Note 2
thousand

Capital increase
of
NT$75,000
thousand

2009/08 30.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 30,000 | 300,000 None Note 2

Capital increase
of
NT$15,000
thousand

2009/11 30.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 31,500 | 315,000 None Note 3

Capital increase
of
2010/07 41.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 32,500 | 325,000 NT$10,000 None Note 4

thousand

Capital increase
of

2010/11 41.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 36,000 | 360,000 NT$35,000 None Note 5

thousand

Capital increase
of
2012/10 32.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 37,200 | 372,000 NT$12,000 None Note 6

thousand

Capital increase
of
NT$46,500
thousand

2015/03 35.50 50,000 | 500,000 | 41,850 | 418,500 None Note 7

Common shares
issuance of
NT$6,120

2015/12 10.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 42,462 | 424,620 | thousand for the None Note 8

exercise of

employee
warrants

Common shares
issuance of
NT$2,640

thousand for the
exercise of
employee

2016/01 10.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 42,726 | 427,260 None Note 9

79



Year/Month

Issued
price

Authorized capital

Paid-in capital

Remark

Number
of
Shares

Amount

Number
of
Shares

Amount

Sources of
capital:

Capital paid
in by
property
other than
cash

Other

warrants

2016/05

10.00

50,000

500,000

43,855

438,548

Common shares
issuance of
NT$11,288

thousand for the

convention of
convertible
corporate bonds

None

Note
10

2016/08

10.00

50,000

500,000

44,753

447,526

Common shares
issuance of
NT$8,978

thousand for the

convention of
convertible
corporate bonds

None

Note
11

2016/11

10.00

50,000

500,000

44,822

448,216

Common shares
issuance of
NT$690
thousand for the
exercise of
employee
warrants

None

Note
12

2017/01

10.00

50,000

500,000

44,948

449,476

Common shares
issuance of
NT$1,260

thousand for the
exercise of

employee
warrants

None

Note
13

2017/08

10.00

50,000

500,000

44,184

441,836

Cancellation of
treasury shares
amounting
NTS$7,640
thousand

None

Note
14

2017/12

10.00

50,000

500,000

44,238

442,376

Common shares
issuance of
NTS$540
thousand for the
exercise of
employee
warrants

None

Note
15

2018/05

10.00

50,000

500,000

44,260

442,598

Common shares
issuance of
NT$222
thousand for the
convention of
convertible
corporate bonds

None

Note
16
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Authorized capital Paid-in capital Remark
Capital paid
Issued | Number Number Sources of in by
price of Amount of Amount aital: property Other
Shares Shares captiat other than
cash

Year/Month

Common shares
issuance of
NT$44 thousand
2018/09 10.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 44,264 | 442,642 for the None
convention of
convertible
corporate bonds
Common shares
issuance of
NT$5,422
2018/12 10.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 44,807 | 448,065 | thousand for the None
convention of
convertible
corporate bonds
Cancellation of
treasury shares
2019/04 10.00 50,000 | 500,000 | 44,455 | 444,555 amounting None
NT$3,510
thousand
Note 1: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter N0.09789527310 on September 24, 2008.

Note 2: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.09887649200 on August 18, 2009.

Note 3: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.09890431520 on November 20, 2009.

Note 4: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.09986541500 on August 4, 2010.

Note 5: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter N0.09990876710 on December 27, 2010.

Note 6: Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Letter No. 1010035355 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission on
August 10, 2012.

Note 7: Zheng-Gui-Shen-Letter No.1030035753 issued by Taipei Exchange on January 12, 2015.

Note 8: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10490143810 on December 1, 2015.

Note 9: Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10580339810 on January 22, 2016.

Note 10:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10585626900 on May 20, 2016.

Note 11:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10591445000 on August 23, 2016.

Note 12:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10594457800 on November 22, 2016.

Note 13:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10651042500 on January 25, 2017.

Note 14:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10657377200 on August 21, 2017.

Note 15:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10660555910 on December 5, 2017.

Note 16:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10749333000 on May 24, 2018.

Note 17:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10753017300 on September 5, 2018.

Note 18:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10755978400 on December 3, 2018.

Note 19:Fu-Chan-Ye-Shang-Letter No.10848311410 on April 20, 2019.

Note
17

Note
18

Note
19

Unit: Thousand shares

Authorized capital
Type of stock Outstanding Unissued shares Total Remark
shares
Common stock 44,455 5,545 50,000 Shares listed on the TPEx
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(IT) Shareholder structure

April 11, 202

Structure Shareholder Government .Finjanc.ial Othe? Individual instljt(l)lrtfi::)%lnand Treasury Total
Quantity agency mstitution corporations outsider stock
Number of people - 1 143 11,870 27 1 12,042
N“mbe;e‘l’i shares - 20,000 | 13,652,711 | 29,262,770 | 565,001 | 955,000 |44,455,482
Shareholding ratio - 0.04% 30.71% 65.83% 1.27% 2.15% | 100.00%
(IIT) Diffusion of ownership
1. Common stock
April 11, 2023
Shareholding classification | Number of shareholders | Number of shares held Shareholding ratio
1-999 7,251 58,353 0.13%
1,000-5,000 4,003 7,318,597 16.46%
5,001-10,000 386 3,132,345 7.05%
10,001-15,000 121 1,539,613 3.46%
15,001-20,000 74 1,362,000 3.06%
20,001-30,000 75 1,930,000 4.34%
30,001-40,000 38 1,372,000 3.09%
40,001-50,000 17 791,384 1.78%
50,001-100,000 33 2,323,000 5.23%
100,001-200,000 22 3,169,107 7.13%
200,001-400,000 7 2,222,692 5.00%
400,001-600,000 5 2,507,023 5.64%
600,001-800,000 2 1,393,000 3.13%
800,001-1,000,000 2 1,932,000 4.35%
1,000,001 and more 6 13,404,368 30.15%
Total 12,042 44,455,482 100.00%

2.  Preferred stock: None.
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(IV)List of major shareholders

April 11, 2023

Shares
Number of shares held Shareholding ratio

Name of major shareholde

HuiSheng Investment Co., Ltd. 5,559,776 12.51%
Yuyi Investment Co., Ltd. 1,976,000 4.44%
ChiaChuan Investment Co., Ltd. 1,947,000 4.38%
K(é}'{LDWIDE FREIGHT TERMINAL 1,500,000 3.37%
Mingqi Investment Co., Ltd. 1,307,592 2.94%
Lin, Ren-Nong 1,114,000 2.51%
Li, Su-Pai 977,000 2.20%
Sung, Cheng-Hsi 781,000 1.76%
Xir, Wen- Fu 612,000 1.38%
Shen, Chen- Jiao-E 553,000 1.24%

(V) Share prices, the Company's net worth per share, earnings per share, dividends

per share, and related information for the past 2 fiscal years.

Year Current fiscal
Item 2021 2022 year up to
March 31, 2023
Market Highest 99.0 78.7 69.3
price per Lowest 49.9 46.0 49.35
share Average 67.38 58.72 54.376
Net worth Before distribution 21.38 20.11 19.90
per share After distribution 19.55 20.01 -

. . 44,414 43,825 43,501
Earnings | Weighted average shares thousand shares [thousand shares |thousand shares
per share Earnings per share 2.40 0.59 (0.24)

Cash dividend 1.8 0.30169192 -
Dividend from
.. Stock | retained earnings
Dividend | 1ot 4 I Dividend from
per share i - - -
capital surplus
Accumulated undistributed
dividend i i i
Return on Price/earnings ratio 15.89 99.53 N/A
investment Price/dividend ratio 37.43 194.64 N/A
analysis Cash dividend yield 2.67 0.51% N/A

Note: The board of directors is authorized under the Articles of Incorporation to distribute cash
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dividends by a special resolution.

(VI) Company's dividend policy and implementation status

1.

The dividend policy prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation:

The Company is in the growth stage of its business life cycle when it shall consider the
effects of future business expansion, capital needs and taxation on the Company and its
shareholders, so its dividend policy is mainly based on the capital needs arising from the future
capital budget, and the cash dividend of its future dividend distribution will not be less than 5% in
principle.

2. The dividend distribution plan proposed in this shareholders’ meeting:

Year

Item Cash dividend Per Share Stock dividend

2022 NT$0.30169192 NTS0

Note: The distribution for 2022 of NT$0.30169192 per share from earnings in cash is provided based on the

resolutions made in the board of directors’ meetings on August 8, 2022 and March 20, 2023.

3. Explanation for any expected material change in dividend policy: None.

(VII) Effect upon business performance and earnings per share of any stock
dividend distribution proposed or adopted in this shareholders' meeting:
N/A.

(VIII) Employees’ and directors’ compensation

1.

The percentages or ranges with respect to employees’ and, directors’ compensation set forth in the
Company's Articles of Incorporation:

If the Company records profit before tax in a fiscal year, it shall appropriate 5%~10% as the
employees’ compensation distributed in shares or cash by a resolution of the board of directors.
Employees who are entitled to the compensation include employees of its affiliates who meet
certain requirements; the Company may appropriate no more than 5% of the aforementioned
profit as the directors’ compensation by a resolution of the board of directors’ meeting. The
distribution of employees’ and directors’ compensation shall be first reported to the shareholders’
meeting. However, if there is any accumulated losses, it shall first offset the losses and then
appropriate employees’ and directors’ compensation according to the aforementioned percentages.

The basis for estimating the amount of employees’ and directors’ compensation, for calculating
the number of shares to be distributed as employees’ compensation, and the accounting treatment
of the discrepancy:

If there is any change of the amounts after the announcement date of annual financial
statements, it is treated as changes in accounting estimates and recognized in the following year.

Compensation distributions approved by the board of directors:

(1) The amount of any employees’ and directors’ compensation distributed in cash or shares. If
there is any discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal year
these expenses are recognized, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of treatment: The
estimated employees’ and directors’ compensation for the year 2022 were NT$2,167
thousand and NT$1,156 thousand, respectively.

(2) The amount of any employees’ compensation distributed in stocks, and the amount as a
percentage of the sum of the after-tax net income stated in the parent company only financial
reports or individual financial reports for the current period and total employees’
compensation: N/A.

4. The actual distribution of employees’ and directors’ compensation for the previous fiscal year, and,



if there is any discrepancy between the actual distribution and the recognized employees’ and
directors’ compensation, additionally the discrepancy, cause, and how it is treated: The actual
distribution of employees’ and directors’ compensation for 2021 was NT$25,272 thousand, which
was NT$1,382 thousand less than the estimated figure in 2021, and the discrepancy was treated as
the changes in accounting estimates and adjusted to the profit or loss for the year 2022.
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(IX) Shares repurchases by the Company:

May 09, 2023

Repurchase No.

The 5th

Purpose f repurchase

Share transfer to employees

Repurchase period

2022/10/07~2022/12/02

Repurchase price range 35.00~55.00
Types and number of shares bought back 368,000 shares
Amount of shares bought back NT$19,049,076
The number of shares already repurchased as a

percentage of the number of shares intended to 51.76%

be repurchased (%)

The number of repurchased shares that have
been cancelled or transferred

Accumulated number of the Company’s shares
held by the Company

955,000 shares

The accumulated number of the Company’s
shares held by the Company as a percentage of
the total number of issued shares (%)

0.02

II.  Issuance of Corporate Bonds: None.

III.  Issuance of Preferred Shares: None.

IV. Issuance of Global Depository Receipts: None.
V. Issuance of Employee Share Warrant: None.
V1. Issuance of Restricted Shares: None.

VII. Issuance of new shares in connection with mergers or acquisitions: None.
VIIIL. Implementation of Capital Allocation Plans: None.

86



V. Overview of Business Operation

I. Business overview
() Scope of Operation

1.

Main scope of operation:
Superior Plating Technology is a professional surface treatment R&D and peripheral package

advisory service provider.
Main scope of operation:
I.  R&D and processing of metal and plastic surface treatment technologies.

II. Surface treatment-related package measures advisory service, including environmental
protection, automation, and management.

2. Operational weight:

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Main product 2022 - -
Amount of sales Operational weight (%)
Net processing income 1,130,870 99.90
Net labor income 1,086 0.10
Total 1,131,956 100.00

3. Current products (services) of the Company:

The Company mainly provides various types of professional surface treatment services to
manufacturers of parts and components such as those of hard disk drives, adapters, automobiles,
communication devices, medical devices, and 3C products, including chemical nickel plating,
semi-bright nickel, bright nickel, chemical polishing, pearl nickel, tin nickel, and continuous
gold and nickel plating, among others.

. New products (services) to be developed:

It is expected that the Company will invest 2.5-5% of its revenue in R&D for 2023; it, however,
will be adequately planned and adjusted reflective of the global market condition and the actual

operational status of the Company.

For the future, the R&D plan includes continuous enhancement of the specifications of existing

products and proactive development of techniques or matching equipment needed go to with the
local governmental policy or reflective of the market trends in the coming years as follows:

(1) Low-cost chemical nickel technologies.

(2) Development of roll-to-roll continuous electroplating techniques.

(3) Development of special noble metal electroplating techniques.

(4) Surface treatment required for thermal modules.

(5) Metal recycling and refining equipment.

(6) Industrial wastewater and waste solution-reducing equipment.
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(IT) Industrial Overview

1.

Anodic treatment

Current Status and Development of the Industry

The surface treatment industry is not only known for being technology-intensive and high

value-added, but also crucial and university to add to the value of various types of terminal

products. This is why, the surface treatment industry has been reputed as “product
beautician.” The main characteristics of the surface treatment industry in our country are
described as follows:

(1)Surface treatment mainly exists as a small-to-medium-sized enterprise or an internal
department of a complete plant. It is, however, precision manufacturing in nature and
hence most of the enterprises are professional technology-oriented OEM plants. Surface
treatment is one of the metal product processing techniques and is auxiliary to various
types of products. Therefore, adding value to products is crucial to this industry

(2)Surface treatment is an indispensable industry. Most of the practitioners set up their
presence near the product supply chain. It is an industry highly clustered.

(3)The electroplating sector accounts for a majority, about 44%

Sand blasting/ Chemical

Washing/ ot peening ~~ plating
polishing 3%, 3%

2(;]acuum plating
(1)

Spraying

Electroplating
T 4%

15%

Coating 20%

Structure of surface treatment suppliers in our country
Source: Taiwan Surface Finishing Association, Metal Industries Research & Development Centre (MII-ITIS)

The surface treatment industry in our country had a production value of NTD 158.4 billion
in 2021, including domestic sales of NTD 67.2 billion, a growth of 37.3% from the
preceding year, and exports of NTD 67 billion, a significant growth of 83% from the
preceding year. The domestic metal surface treatment industry consists of hot-dip
zinc-coated steel coils, color steel coils, other plated steel coils, and other metals and metal
products. Hot-dip zinc-coated steel coils, in particular, had a production value of NTD 77.8
billion, a growth of 81% from the preceding year. The production value of color steel coils
was NTD 28.6 billion, a growth of 53% from the preceding year. The production of other
plated steel coils was NTD 16.5 billion, a growth of 60% from the preceding year. As for
the other metal and metal products, the production value was NTD 35.5 billion, a growth of
42% from the preceding year.
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2. Industrial structure
(1) Industrial correlation chart and representative manufacturers

A. Upstream:
The upstream materials for the surface treatment industry mainly consists of substrates
and modifiers or coating materials. Substrates are the fundamental castings such as
blocks and tablets obtained by refining various types of metals and alloys by the metal
parts and components manufacturers or the various types of crude embryos such as
boards, bars, blocks, tablets, and sticks. They are further processed to become parts and
components of specific shapes and properties in order to meet the needs of applied
products in the downstream. As for modifiers or coating materials, they are the various
surface treatment chemicals produced by the surface treatment raw material
manufacturers and sold to metal surface processors reflective of the surface treatment
technique and quality criteria. At present, a majority of chemical agents used in
domestic wet processes still come from Europe and America, such as the world’s largest
solution supplier ATOTECH. To successfully introduce the Company’s products into
domestic production lines, two R&D centers have been set up. Representative domestic
manufacturers, on the other hand, include Shou-Jen Plating Materials Co., Huan Yu
Chemical Industry Co., Ltd., and Taiwan Uyemura Co., Ltd. In terms of the supply of
dry materials, Solar Applied Materials Technology Corp is the only company of scale
and mainly supplies metal target products while most of the others are from America,
Japan, and Europe.

B. Peripherals:
The surface treatment equipment sector is a peripheral support sector crucial to the
surface treatment industry. It is indispensable. Due to the fact that the process
technology in the surface treatment industry is quite diverse and diversified, it has given
rise to respective specialized professional equipment manufacturers, too. Representative
ones include Peruse Technologies Co., Ltd., Hung Li Machinery Industrial Co., Ltd.,
Process Advance Technology Ltd., Rich Sou Technology Co., Ltd., Worldclean
Industrial Co., Ltd., Ei Dorado Crop., Dah Young Vacuum Equipment Co., Ltd., and
Uvat Technology Co., Ltd.

C. Midstream:
Surface treatment practitioners obtain metal materials or metal parts and components
from their upstream and obtain surface treatment raw materials from the raw material
supplier. A suitable surface treatment technique, such as electroplating, chemical plating,
hot-dip plating, chemical treatment and vapor disposition, is selected reflective of the
various characteristics required for different fields of application, such as corrosion
resistance, wear resistance, adhesion, conductivity, and thermal transmission, etc. to
apply the top film over the metal materials or metal parts and components.

D. Distribution network:
Basically, metal surface treatment plants can be divided into two major categories:
professional surface treatment and general product manufacturing surface treatment
(that is, as a side business). The former mainly makes profits through surface treatment
and processing while the latter is only part of the production system. Many automotive,
motorcycle, home appliance, furniture, and electronics manufacturers, for example,
have an electroplating or coating department that is responsible for the surface treatment
of all or part of self-owned parts or products.
Product manufacturers are known for their relatively abundant funds and there are more
self-owned parts or products requiring surface treatment and they are stable, with higher
quality requirements; therefore, investment expenditure on the equipment is relatively
significant. As a result, automotive and motorcycle manufacturers of scale have
transformed towards automation. Among the professional plants, on the other hand, due
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to funds and market, only a few dare to increase their investments and have automatic
equipment. Product plants, however, focus mainly on creating the overall value of
products, unlike professional surface treatment plants that emphasize the cost and profit
of surface treatment.
E. Downstream:

The downstream to apply surface treatment is generally machinery equipment
manufacturers, metal structure and construction component manufacturers, metal
container manufacturers, screw, nut, and rivet manufacturers, computer and peripheral
equipment manufacturers, home appliance manufacturers, automotive and their parts,
ships and their parts manufacturers and repairers, etc.

Surface Treatment Industrial Correlation in our Country

Product chain Industry/representative manufacturer
IATOTECH Taiwan, MACDERMID
Upstream Processing solutions, Taiwan, Shou-Jen, Huan Yu Chemical,
P coatings, and targets Taiwan Uyemura, Merck Taiwan,

Yong-Ji, Kuang-Yang

'Yui-Tai, Hung-Li, Process Advance,
Rich Sou, Worldclean

Yi-Du, Dah Young Vacuum, Longpian

Surface treatment

Peripherals equipment and peripherals

Carbon penetration,
nitrogen penetration, Poteng, Weisu, Superior, Xieshun,

Mid-stream [electroplating, coating,  [Fulong, Fuye, Taiwan Totai, Yiyang,
spraying, vacuum plating, |Teyi, Meishangmei, Hantai, Dechun
polishing, shot peening

Mainly the domestic OEM market and

Distribution Product manufacturers  |then the self-owned distribution network
network
of product manufacturers.
Transport, machinery, Yulong, Ford, Giant, Merida, Acer, Asus,
construction, furniture,  |Foxconn, Victor Taichung Machinery,
Downstreamjelectronic and IAUO, Chi Mei, Globe Union, Taiwan Fu
mechanical, medical Hsing, KMC, King Slide, United
devices Orthopedic.

Source: Industries Research & Development Centre (MII-ITIS)

Despite the fact that electroplating can bring about extremely high value-added for
products, practitioners need to pay huge costs associated with environmental pollution
during the production process. In terms of the cost, most expensive raw materials need
to be imported, such as gold, silver, nickel, and tin. Among the test instruments, 75%
are imported, too. Once prices of international raw materials or regular materials or
foreign exchange rates climb, the practitioners will bear undesirable impacts such as the
production cost. Therefore, to save the cost, a lot of them are relocated in Mainland
China and Southeast Asia.

Surface treatment has been playing a crucial role in both traditional industries and
modern high-tech industries. There are few domestic surface treatment technologies
independently researched and developed. Most of them rely on foreign suppliers or
dealers. In other words, it is inevitable for the quality of our products to be inferior to
that of those from other countries. The reputation and value added of the products can
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hardly be enhanced. To enhance the surface treatment industry, great efforts are
required to enhance the surface treatment technology. The government shall also devote
itself to developing related talent and encourage the R&D to help enhance the industry.
In terms of operation and production, it is a must to increase the scale of the
industry. General professional manufacturers are not of a large scale. Their operation is
relatively decentralized. As a result, the cost of products is relatively high and there are
no competitive advantages in the market; it can hardly attract investors. A surface
treatment industrial park shall be established for centralized management to facilitate
technical upgrade and transformation so that industry clusters can form in both the
upstream and the downstream. Another strength of the surface treatment industrial park
is the improvement and control of pollution. Electroplating is a sector known for its
relatively high ratio of pollution treatment cost to total investment (for a small
electroplating plant, the investment in building environmental protection treatment
facilities accounts for about 75% of the overall electroplating production investment).
Therefore, with centralized management of the manufacturers, pollutants can be
managed centrally, too and the sewage discharge system can be set up to ensure the
safety of the water environment in surrounding watersheds. The ecological circular
economy industry chain of “resources consumption =» product =» regeneration of
resources” can take shape in the park. This way the domestic industry will be able to
compete with its foreign counterparts and bring about greater business opportunities.
(2) Correlation among upstream, mid-stream, and downstream of the industry
The supply chain for the surface treatment industry can mainly be divided into upstream
material suppliers, downstream parts and components manufacturers, and terminal product
manufacturers. Surface treatment plants are in the mid-stream and can be further divided
into captive shops under the product manufacturing sector and job shops that mainly takes
production orders. In the past there were more professional processing plants while for the
past few years, to reduce the transport cost and shorten the lead time, parts and components
manufacturers have begun to have their in-house facilities for self-production. The
processed products, however, are limited to more low-end parts and components. Parts and
components having gone through surface treatment, on the other hand, are handed first to
the parts and components manufacturers for fine assembly and to the terminal
manufacturers for general assembly. The overall production and manufacturing processes
are managed through the supply chain.

Metal Provide items to Hard disk drive
material l_ be plated ] manufacturers
Automotive
Downstream
Electroplating ‘ Surface ‘ parts and manufacturers
solution treatment components
plants manufacturers 3C electronics
| Product .
Related certification at the Other terminal
solutions terminal plant plants

3. Various development trends of main terminal products of the Company
(1) HDD:
Internal parts and components of the hard disk drive include the disk, the disk holder,
the spindle motor, the read/write head, the head-positioning actuator, and the voice coil
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motor while external ones are the top cover and the bottom cover. Those requiring the
electroless nickel include head hold, VCM top/bottom covers, tightening ring, and gasket.
Since the hard disk drive technology and capacity are constantly increasing, requirements
for the surface treatment precision of parts and components are constantly enhanced, too. If
the film is not evenly thick, particles will form and it will impact the operation or shorten
the life span of the HDD. The electroless plated layer, on the other hand, is more even
compared to traditional electroplating and no foreign matters are generated at the end of
plating and it is more resistant to corrosion. Therefore, it better suits the surface treatment of
such precision parts.

Demand has remained high for the HDD industry over the past few years. Despite the
impact on the HDD market for PCs and NBs as a result of the increasingly popular solid
state drives (SSD) and tablet computers, cloud and big data centers will continue to grow,
mobile equipment will reach out to the world, the IoT ecology will be developed and grow,
video-based monitoring will be applied more extensively each day, and consumer electronic
equipment and cryptocurrency block chains will continue to grow and all of these will
continue to drive the huge demand for future data storage solutions and accordingly drive
further grows in the demand for high-storage capacities. The demand for storage in HDDs
and SSDs will spread further, too. Despite the increase of the solid state technology on
many terminal markets, it is determined that in a foreseeable future, greater-capacity storage
solutions will be needed on the market for cloud, traditional business, customers, and
consumers and HDDs, compared to SSDs, can provide the most cost-effective, reliable, and
energy-saving greater-capacity storage equipment.

Keys for the drive data to grow include 1. Sliding cost, 2. Technological advancement
(such as VR and drones, self-driving vehicles), 3. Big data analysis adopted by enterprises
to drive growth in digital content, 4. Construction and development of an excessive number
of cloud data centers, 5. Heated demand for safety monitoring, 6. And smart city, among
others. Due to these factors, it is estimated that the nature and amount of the created content
will require greater and higher-capacity storage equipment. By effectively and economically
storing, managing, distributing, analyzing, and backing up such content, it helps drive the
demand for data storage solutions to grow. All of these exercise positive influences on the
demand for HDDs.

The Seagate -IDC Whitepaper entitled “Data Age 2025” show that by 2025, global
data will surge to 163ZB, which will be 10 times that of 2016. Big data, cloud computing,
artificial intelligence, and edge computing nowadays are dealing mainly with massive data.
More and more data are marked, integrated, and analyzed. The HDD, as the best container
for data storage, impacts the quality and safety of data storage with its quality. A good or
bad performing HDD directly impacts subsequent data “processing.” Therefore, one has to
admit that supported by relatively superior performance, SSDs, with their characteristics of
quick transmission, being seismic and stable, have indeed gradually become a new choice
on the storage market.

As cloud computing, Al, edge computing, and the IoT constantly mature, the overall
global data will grow geometrically. Future application scenarios will surely be more
diversified and complex. The characteristics of hot data and cold data will be more distinct,
too. For quick data like hot data, storage equipment needs to have outstanding performance
parameters in order to maximize the efficacy of data and to create even greater value. In
other words, SSDs are very suitable for storing hot data. For the sophisticated cold data, on
the other hand, the requirements for the storage equipment mainly focus on the capacity,
safety, and stability while there are no excessive requirements for the actual performance.
HDDS that are absolutely superior in terms of cost hence become the best choice. As is
shown in the figure below, the world in the future is one where SSD+HDD exist together
through division of labor. SDDS deal with hot data while HDDs are responsible for greater
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According to the Trendfocus Report, shipments of mechanical HDDs in 2022 nearly
dropped to half; all manufacturers saw significantly reduced shipment size. Shipments from
Seagate and Western Digital nearly reduced to half, too.

Such data led to the significantly reduced sales in 2022 of the three magnates in the
HDD sector. The shipment of HDDs of Seagate in 2022 dropped by 43.7% and that of
Western Digital was equally awful — dropping by 43.0%. The year-on-year shipment of
Toshiba dropped by 39.3% in 2022.

Vendor HDD=E i millian wq--tl'lﬂl-'# ¥y I::hﬂl'lst Marker shars
Seagate 15.10 - 15.60 =3, 0% 0. 7o A3. 7% -41.7% 42.0 - 42.9%
Tashiba T.B0-B.0 -2.06% -0.1% -39 3% -37.7% 21.2% - 22 0%
WD 12.30 - 12.80 S16.2% 12T -43.0% -40.7% 34.58 - 35.2%
TOTAL 35.20 - 36,40 B.3% - 5.2% 425 -a0.5% 100%

A BEF Trendfocus

Generally speaking, shipments of HDDs in 2022 dropped by 42.5% to about 35 million or
36 million.

Trendfocus believes that the biggest disaster for HDD storage manufacturers now is the
dropping demand for corporate cloud storage. In 2022, cloud storage companies merged
and their inventories were modified. The year-on-year number of HDDs purchased in the
fourth quarter dropped by 10 million to 11 million.
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(2) 3C sector:
A. Global smart phone market

fin

Worldwide smartphone shipments and growth
Canalys Preliminary Smartphone Market Pulse: 2022

Vendor 2021 market share 2022 market share
Samsung 20% 22%
Apple 17% 19%
Xiaomi 14% 13%
OPPO 11% 9%
vivo 10% 9%
Others 28% 28%

Preliminary estimates are subject to change on final release
Note: percentages may not add up to 100% due to rounding
Source: Canalys estimates (sell-in shipments), Smartphone Analysis, January 2023

The shipments throughout 2022 dropped by 11.3% to 1.21 billion sets, the lowest since
2013. It is mainly because of the significantly reduced demand from consumers,
inflation, and economic uncertainty.

B. PC market
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The total shipment size of personal computers (desktop and notebook) throughout 2022
was 285 million sets, a decline of 16% from 2021. That of desktop computers, in
particular, dropped by 7% to 61.3 million sets and that of notebook computers by 19%
to 223.8 million sets.

The high growth phase for PCs driven by COVID-19 has come to an end. Despite the
recent decline, the shipment size of PCs throughout 2022 was up to 292 million sets,
higher than the pre-pandemic level. IDC indicates that the PC market is faced with a
demand issue. Most users have relatively new PCs while the global economy is getting
WOrse.

Many large PC suppliers are cautious about the 2023 outlook. Nevertheless, it is
generally believed on the market that part of the PC market will resume growths by the
end of 2023 while the overall market will in 2024. For the commercial segment, in
particular, there are several growth-driving factors, including that updates for Windows
10 will soon be no longer available.

Smart Wearables Market

IDC released its forecast report about the shipment size of wearable devices around the
world in 2022. Although the third quarter of 2022 saw a year-on-year growth of 1.7%
on the wearables market, it is estimated that global shipments throughout 2022 will drop
by 3.3% to 515.6 million sets. The sluggishness in 2022 is the result of the drastic
growths on the market and the challenging global macroeconomic environment for the
first two years of the pandemic. IDC, however, expects that the improving economic
situation and additional demand from emerging markets will drive new growths in 2023
and the shipment size is expected to reach 539 million sets.
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or the future, one can expect that the wearables market will grow soundly at a five-year
GAGR of 5.1% and the shipment size will reach 628.3 million sets by the end of 2026.

4. Competition

Given the increasing prices of electroplating automatic surface treatment equipment (for
HDD parts and components that require a higher level of cleanness, semi-conductor-equivalent
clean room equipment is required and it means higher capital expenditure), the greater difficulty
encountered in personnel training each day, the difficulty in obtaining an environmental
protection license, and the defect rate management, in addition to the technical threshold that
depends on the product (HDDS are precision parts, for example, and hence have a higher
threshold) and the fact that downstream manufacturers screen suppliers not only based on quality
and throughput but also on their scale, experience, and preferred raw material purchase prices,
many small plants have been sold as a result of a shortage in purchase orders and gone out of
business.

For HDD parts and components, the surface treatment certification procedures is strict and
includes questionnaires, site visits and interviews, document review, product prototyping, price
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negotiation, and contract preparation and shall meet screening standards for the throughput,
technology, equipment, cost, and ISO certification. An initial certification process usually takes
around 6 to 12 months (sometimes longer and up to 2 years). In addition, the geographical nature
of this sector is relatively powerful and demands a short lead time. Therefore, surface treatment
plants mostly keep long-term and steady partnerships with their downstream assembly service
providers. The Company, for example, has been in collaboration with Seagate for up to 20 years
and with Toshiba and WD also for more than 12 years.

On the 3C market, the Group is in the leading position given its abundant experience and
topnotch processes, technologies, and equipment, complete production lines, throughput scale,
and technicality for the surface treatment of metals in Taiwan and in China and Southeast Asia.
The quality of products and technicality are certified by leading heavyweights in the US,
indicating that the manufacturing technical capabilities and quality are quite comparable to
compete on the international market and answer to the strict requirements from international
heavyweights for quality and efficacy

(IIT) ~ Technical and R&D Overview
1. Technical level and research and development in the scope of business operation
(1) Definition and classification of surface treatment:
Any technology to change the composition on the surface of a material or give it new
features taking advantage of physical or chemical reactions is referred to as surface
treatment technology. The processing can generally be divided to six major categories,
namely change of the surface shape, surface coating pattern, surface chemical reaction,
surface coating and penetration, implantation of other elements through the surface and
only change of the surface property

Type of surface Description
treatment
Change of surface [Etching or grinding is applied to smoothen the bumpy shape
shape on the surface.
The surface of the base material is covered by a processing

. [layer that differs in composition from the base material.
Surface coating . . . . .
pattern There is a distinct border line between this covering layer

and the base material and hence the adhesiveness between
the two is crucial.
Aluminum anodizing,

Surface chemical for example, helps form the

reaction corrosion-resistant and wear-resistant oxidative layer on the
surface of the aluminum material.
Hot-dip plating or pervasion is applied to change the
. lcomposition on the surface of the base material to a certain
Surface coating

depth and to form a hardened layer. This approach is free of

and penetration

the issue of detachment between the base material and the
surface hardened layer.

Implantation of
other elements
through the surface

Vacuum carburizing and ion nitriding, for example, exactly
take advantage the pervasion of carbon and nitrogen and
penetrate them through the surface of the base material

Only change of the
surface property

High-frequency hardening, for example, is applied to harden
the surface and to enhance the wearable nature of the
material

Source: Industries Research & Development Centre (MII-ITIS
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(2) Surface treatment technology and purpose:

Surface treatment aims primarily to give the surface of a material new properties so that
the value of the product is enhanced, including the surface shape, mechanical,
electromagnetic optics, thermal, physical, chemical, and decorative properties. Different
surface treatment technologies are generated as a result of different properties, including
electroplating (wet plating), grinding, cleaning, coating, and dry plating that has been
developing quickly over the past few years. Corresponding purposes of these processing

technologies are shown in the table below:

Surface treatment method

Major category Medium category

Primary purpose

Rinsing Wet rinsing, dry rinsing

Removal of grease

Washing | Removal of | Dip rust removal, sandblasting,

Removal of obstacles,

rust liquid honing, drum grinding removal of rust

Grinding Mechanical grinding, chemical Smoothing and toning
grinding, electrolyte grinding,
GMP

Etching Chemical etching, electrolyte Creation of surface shape
etching, dry etching

Shot peening Medium/Low-speed spot Fatigue tolerance, removal
peening, high-speed spot of obstacles
peening

Printing Le_ttqpress, 1n‘Fag11F) 0 ffset Surface decoration
printing, stencil printing

Coating Spray coating, electrostatic Corrosion resistance and
coating, electric coating, powder | decoration
coating

Lamination Resin lamination, glass Corrosion resistance and
lamination wear resistance

Decoration, corrosion
Wet plating Electroplating, chemical plating | resistance, and wear
resistance

Phosphate treatment, ferric Corrosion resistance and

Chemical treatment phosphate treatment, chromate sliding property
treatment

.. Anodizing of steel and iron, Corrosion resistance, wear

Anodizing . . . .

non-ferric metal anodizing resistance, coloration
: Physical vapor deposition Wear resistance, sliding

Dry plating (gaseous . .

phase) (PVD),‘chermcal vapor property, optical property
deposition (CVD)
High-performance implantation, | Electrical property, wear

Iron implantation medium-performance resistance, heat tolerance
implantation

Hot-dip zinc-coated, hot-dip

Hot-dip plating aluminum-coated

Corrosion resistance

Surface thermal Surface hardening, carburizing
treatment hardening, oxidation, pervasion

Wear resistance, fatigue
tolerance, and sliding

property

Thermal spray coating, plasm

Spray coating spray coating

Wear resistance, corrosion
resistance, and heat
tolerance

Source: Industries Research & Development Centre (MII-ITIS)
(3) Introduction to the coating technology:

Coating is one of the most commonly applied surface treatment technologies. There are
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dry plating and wet plating. The two are different in that wet plating takes advantage of
chemical solutions in the coating process while dry plating does not. The categorization
and strengths and weaknesses are summarized as follows:

Technology Wet plating Dry plating
Traditional electroplating, dip | Physical vapor deposition
Categorization | electroplating, electroless | (PVD),  chemical  vapor
plating deposition (CVD)

No generation of waste gas or
wastewater, among  other
sources of pollution and
environmental protection is
not so much as an issue

Low equipment cost and

Strengths | - ture technology

Serious environmental
protection issue and required
Weaknesses | purchase of waste gas and
wastewater treatment
equipment

Source: Industries Research & Development Centre (MII-ITIS)

Inability to process large
items or items with complex
shapes, thin plated layer, and
relative undesirable dropping

The Company mainly deals with wet plating, which can be divided into:
(1) Electroplating
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Electroplating is an electrolysis process where the metal sheets to be plated work like the
anode and the electrolyte solution is usually the iron solution for the metals to be plated.
The target of plating, on the other hand, works like the cathode. After direct-current voltage
is entered between the anode and the cathode, the metal ions in the electrolyte solution
swim to the cathode. After reduction, they are plated onto the cathode. Meanwhile, the
metals at the anode dissolve to provide the electrolyte solution with more metal ions. Parts,
furniture, and household supplies of many industrial machines are often plated with a metal
layer, which is meant to prevent corrosion, boost aesthetics, and further enhance the rigidity,
wear tolerance, and conductivity, among other unique properties. Materials that are often
adopted for the electroplated layer include metals such as copper, zinc, tin, chromium,
nickel, gold, and silver and alloys such as copper-zinc, copper-tin, tin-zinc, and tin-nickel.
In addition, to ensure that the atoms between the base material (that is the target of plating)
can be bonded closely, the plated workpiece usually go through treatments such as decaling,
degreasing, and de-oxidation.
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(2) Electroless plating

It is also known as electroless plating. No additional current is needed. The base metal
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contained in the base material to be plated does not need to dissolve in the plating bath
to facilitate electroplating. There has to be, however, appropriate reducing agent in the
plating solution. The rationale is oxidation of the reducing agent in the plating solution
and the metal ions to be plated, on the other hand, are reduced to metals and bind to the
surface of the workpiece. The plating layer of electroless plating, on the other hand, can
be plated to the required thickness and can be applied to non-conductive materials such
as glass, ceramics, and plastics under specific conditions. It is known for an even plating
layer and low porosity, among other strengths, and has been widely applied to
automobiles, dies, and military and 3C electronics products.

(3) Immersion plating

It means that the workpiece is immersed in the plating bath and there will be several
base metals in the workpiece that will be dissolved in the plating bath and an equivalent
number of metals in the plating bath will be analyzed and plated onto the workpiece.
Generally speaking, this approach can only render a rather thick plating layer and the
reaction stops as soon as the whole base material is covered by the plating layer. The
applicable conditions for dip plating are that the metal to be plated has to have a higher
positive standard electrode potential than the metal to be plated onto. As a result, it is
possible to plate metals such as silver, copper, and gold onto steel and iron, not zinc or
cadmium.

(4) Multi-layer plating

It is electroplating where multiple layers of different metals in terms of their property or
composition are deposited one after another onto the same base. It aims primarily to
reduce the overall thickness of the noble metal layer under the premise that the
electroplating feature is maintained or to plate corrosion-resistant metals onto the base.
Only key portion of the parts are selectively plated with functional noble metals in order
to optimize the efficacy and cost, such as nickel and gold or nickel and silver to be plated
onto the surface of a copper material

3. R&D expenditure spent each year over the past five years:

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Item

Fiscal Year First quarter

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 0f 2023
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R&D expenditure 9,212 8,019 10,049 11,219 11,095 1,939

Net operating
income
Ratio of R&D
expenditure to 0.91 1.02 0.97 0.83 0.98 0.96
operating income

1,012,959 785,125 1,039,891| 1,356,633| 1,131,956 201,114

4. Technologies or products successfully developed over the past year:

Technologies or products successfully developed over the past six

years

Titanium-alloy automotive parts chemical nickel, 3C vibration
grinding technique, automatic appearance inspection of products
Passivation surface treatment technology for stainless steel and
copper materials, selective gold plating for adapters
Development of pearl nickel plug products
2019 Introduction of USB automatic up-hanging machines
Titanium-alloy cleaning and passivation
Introduction of hanging devices of novel design and automatic
up-hanging machine for workpieces

Fiscal Year

2017

2018

2020 USB-C shell-series automatic aligners
New-generation wastewater recycling technology
Introduction of USB-C shell-series automatic down-hanging
machines
New-generation adapter terminal gold and silver plating technology
Industrial thick waste solution-reducing equipment
Development and application of electrolysis and nickel recycling
2001 technology in wastewater and waste solution
Development of the chemical plating process for headsets and
introduction of automatic inspection and automatic arrangement
Development of local electroplating techniques of heat-dissipating
products
Development and mass production of automotive heat sink
low-phosphorus chemical plating nickel process
Introduction of platen washers
Introduction of spacers
Waste chemical nickel solution, installation of the nickel electrolysis
system
Installation of the electroplating nickel refining system
2022 Recycling of post-production line water for reuse, drainage of water

out of the platen washing basin, setup of the water supply and
drainage systems for platen washing equipment

Setup of the waste nitric acid nickel extraction system

Setup of the activated carbon nickel extraction system

Installation of the silver-plating line silver-recycling system

(IV) Long/Short-term business development plans
1. Short-term development plan:
(1) Watch closely situational changes to ensure non-disrupted supply.
(2) Watch closely fluctuations in materials and the exchange rate and respond optimally and in
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the quickest way.

(3) Deepen customer relations and extend the scope of surface treatment horizontally.

(4) Enter new markets for applications such as wearables, electric vehicles, and high-frequency
devices, among others.

(5) Develop automation and reduce dependency on manpower.

(6) Examine the technical control and parameters one by one and remove high-performance
consumption and production bottlenecks.

(7) Deepen existing collaborative relations with customers and maximize the ratios of secured
processing business and provide customers with total solutions.

2. Long-term development plan:

Increase the ratio of highly profitable products in the portfolio and proactively reinforce the

driving factors for revenue growths in the future (such as non-metal surface treatment). The

expected development plan is as follows:

(1) Expand the premises in Thailand, Dongguan, and Taiwan and evaluate possibilities in other
areas; follow up on customer demand and decentralize risk.

(2) Nurture R&D and management talent and introduce new applications and models; enhance
one’s own competitive advantages to optimize new process flows.

(3) Reinforce one’s own green competitive advantages, reduce energy consumption, recycle
resources, and follow up on carbon peaks and carbon neutralization.

(4) Introduce smart production systems.

(5) Reinforce information-based information security management.

(6) Proactively research and develop environmentally friendly materials and technologies with
environmental protection and energy conservation as the goals in order to meet applicable
environmental protection regulations of green products.

(7) Strengthen the circulation and utilization of resources, reduce business waste, and continue
to enhance energy efficiency.

II. Market and business summary
(I) Market analysis:

1. Where products (services) are primarily sold or supplied
Unit: NTD thousand; %

Region 2021 2022
Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)
Mainland China 1,049,621 77.37 837,534 73.99
Thailand 303,429 22.37 285,730 25.24
Other 3,583 0.26 8,692 0.77
Total 1,356,633 100.00 1,131,956 100.00

2. Market share:
Since the surface treatment industry is processing-oriented and the required processing is
extensive and complex, there are currently no official authorities available to conduct the
industrial market share research. As a result, it is impossible to get the market share correctly. In
light of the revenue or the allowed pollution discharge, however, the Group shall be the largest
professional surface treatment service provider in South China and a primary surface treatment
supplier of HDD key parts and components
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3. Future supply and demand and growth on the market
The two major types of business as of the end of 2022 of the Group were the surface treatment of
HDD parts and components and 3D product charger adapters/connector terminals, which
accounted for around 33% and 37%, respectively, of the overall revenue. In other words, the
supply and demand condition and the growth potential will mainly rely on the HDDs and 3C
products.
(1) HDD sector
A. Persistent growths in the demand for HDDs over the past few years
Over the past few years, the market for 2.5 HDDs in PC-related fields have been
gradually replaced by SDDs. The demand for 3.5” HDDs, however, has been steadily
growing, thanks to the development trends such as personal and family NASs,
small-to-medium-sized enterprise small servers, cloud storage and computing, 10T, and
5G applications as well as video-based monitoring, among other corporate storage
applications.
Impacted by the pandemic over the past few years, along with the work-from-home
policy adopted by enterprises, the demand for video-conferencing and big data, cloud
storage has surged significantly. The demand for large enterprises to set up their large
data centers has grown accordingly, too. Storage businesses continue to develop
high-capacity HDDs, including 18TB and 20TB that are designed specifically for the
corporate high-capacity HDD market of a super scale specific for the cloud setting and
design technically dual-read head for enhanced operating speed in response to the
demand for quick access by those working remotely.
B. Supply
At present, international manufacturers continue to be integrated on the global market.
Related service providers have also developed towards integrating services. Therefore,
in fields such as IT, netcom, and consumer electronics, it is more desired to rely on
assistance from processors in order to expedite the time to release of products to the
market. At present, international heavyweights are constantly expanding the scope of
outsourcing. Superior Plating, with its outstanding cost control, manufacturing
techniques, production yield control, and production flexibility, among other
competitive advantages, in addition to flexible leverage, quality R&D and innovation,
and outstanding managerial experience, will help the Group secure processing orders. In
addition, the rising awareness of environmental protection and the focused review of
high-energy-consuming and highly polluting sectors in China have led to the
requirement for conforming pollution discharge licensing in related sectors. Given this
threshold, chances to obtain an electroplating license in the future will significantly drop.
High access barriers are in place for the surface treatment industry. Competitors can
hardly access this industry over the short term. The supply in the future will focus on
some businesses.
C Constantly enhanced precision requirements for HDD parts and components with
the increased storage capacity per unit
Internal parts and components of the hard disk drive include the disk, the disk holder,
the spindle motor, the read/write head, the head-positioning actuator, and the voice coil
motor while external ones are the top cover and the bottom cover. Those requiring the
electroless plating include the head hold, voice coil motor, tightening ring, and gasket.
Given the constantly enhanced HDD technology and capacity, requirements for
precision in surface treatment of parts and components are constantly increased, too. As
the quantity of HDD digitigrade pieces climbs, undesirable thickness control will
impact the dimensions and lead to an increase in the parts scrap rate. Uneven thickness,
on the other hand, will give rise to particles during operation that will shorten the life
span of HDDs. Due to the fact that the Group has had more than ten years of experience
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in process control in the HDD sector and has introduced additional smart analysis
equipment over the past few years, it is technically leading now.
(2) 3C sector

A. Demand for 5G mobile phone and tablet computer fast-charging drives up the
USB-C load rate
The penetration of high-end smart phones and tablets, under the 5G network setting and
the rapid developments of high-definition audiovisual streaming is gradually increasing.
With the increased demand from consumers for audiovisual streaming for 5G phones,
the screen and 5G streaming drive up the power-consuming rate. As a result, it has
become mainstream for high-end smart phones and tablets to use USB-C as their main
support fast-charging specification. The Group mainly supplies American customers
with USB-C and plug surface treatment and has been able to provide beautiful-looking
and wear-resistant and plug/unplug-tolerant special types of plating given its extended
joint technical R&D with its customers that help extend the lifespan of customers’
chargers.

B. Increased demand for wearable devices help boost the demand for fast-charging
The market sales of wearable devices such as TWS headsets and smart watches have
been steadily growing and it has driven an increase in the demand for fast-charging.
These mobile devices are known for being compact, light, and easily portable and their
ability to persistently connect with smart phones to be carried at all times by modern
people. While addressing the demand for wearing for an extended period of time and
network connection over an extended period of time, how to enable fast-charging for
wearable devices has also become something that product developers are concerned
about. Due to the fact that USB-C is known for its properties such as high-speed
transmission and fast-charging, it helps streamline the demand for connecting holes and
wiring harness of smart wearables and also further optimize product volumes and
specifications. Wearable devices are still at their fast-growing stage. As is estimated by
foreign research and survey, the shipments of smart wearables this year will reach
around 225 million sets, an annual growth of 25.8% and they will double in 2022 to
reach 453 million sets.

C. Supply
Currently, with both China and the EU indicating that USB-C has become an
internationally acceptable specification, the Council of Europe has introduced the
restriction over small-to-medium-sized electronic products in the future out of the main
appeal over reduced electronic waste since September 2021 and USB Type-C (USB-C)
will become the main connection design. It includes the charger, the mobile phone, the
tablet computer, the digital camera, the headset, the Bluetooth speaker, and the
hand-held game consoles and will reach out to e-books, keyboards, notebook computers,
and electronic toys, among others. All of them need to come with the USB-C port in
order to avoid generating additional electronic garbage. As a result, respective primary
smart phone and tablet computer suppliers, in response to the said appeal, have also
gradually enhanced the ratio of their own products configured with the USB-C port

4. Competitive niche
(1) Highly experienced R&D team
Among the Group’s R&D staff of the Group, as of the end of 2021, those with a college or
higher-level diploma accounted for about 72% and major cadres had a mean number of
years working in related R&D fields exceeding 10. The R&D team includes the new
process development one and the original process improvement one so that the Group can
maintain its competitive advantages on the market for existing products while at the same
time adhering to persistent expansion of its operation over the long term to create new
momentum for the growths of the Group. Besides proactively recruiting outstanding elites
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in the industry, constant efforts are made to ensure persistent advancement in the R&D
technology through collaboration and exchange among internal knowledge management,
internal/external educational training, and academic units of the Company, among other
series of R&D development plans.
The R&D team has been devoted over the past few years to the development of process
surface treatment machinery and equipment, breakthroughs in the wastewater treatment
technology, and continued to apply for patents and certifications in respective regions to
protect its intellectual properties. The subsidiary in Shenzhen was certified as a national
high-tech enterprise in 2021.
(2) Cross-national production site
The Group has production sites in Shenzhen, Dongguan of South China and in Thailand.
They are capable of diversified techniques such as chemical plating, chemical polishing,
continuous plating, hung plating, and precision washing to be imposed onto base materials
that are zinc, nickel, silver plates, copper and steel/iron pieces, or aluminum alloys.
Diversified plating can satisfy the needs of customers in China and in Southeast Asia at
once. Meanwhile, when production cannot successfully begin at a certain operating site due
to natural disasters or manned catastrophes, production can be quickly relocated to the other
sites to keep the supply chain steady
(3) Optimal customer base and diversified portfolio
The Group is a service provider of professional surface treatment, with customers mainly
being well-known brand developers around the world whose financial standing and
corporate operation are both quite robust and the Group maintains long-lasting optimal
partnerships with these major customers and is well received by the customers in both
quality and service.
As IT and consumer electronic products and the digital demand for cloud-based service
quickly grow, products include not only 3D peripheral parts and components but also
servers, electric vehicles, automotive and medical devices. The portfolio is diversified,
wide-ranging, and deep-reaching to serve customers where products in different categories
or of different properties are sold
(4) Competitive advantages that connect management, business operation, production, and
quality in one
The Group’s management consists exclusively of professionals in the industry that have
many years of experience in related fields and have complete track records in business
operation and administration, R&D, and finance. Members on the team work perfectly with
one another and share the same beliefs. They have better control over the overall
organizational leverage and are key to the robust developments of the Group.
The Company emphasizes joint developments of processes with customers. Despite the
relatively lengthy devotion to R&D, it helps form close relations with customers and
upstream and downstream contractors and by jointly developing processes, the Group also
enjoys technical advantages because it increases the entry threshold that keeps competition
off the market.
In addition, out of its commitment to quality and the environment, the Company has been
certified for ISO 9001, ISO 14001, and TS 16949 and has precisely enforced all quality
control requirements in actual operations. Therefore, quality of products of the Company is
quite stable and they have been recognized by major customers each year.

5. Advantageous and disadvantageous factors for future developments and countermeasures
(1) Advantageous factors

A. Geographical location
a. Complete supply chain system for the IT industry in South China
The IT electronics industry in South China has been complete as a whole after having
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gone through multiple industrial developments and systematic changes. Given the
balanced distribution throughout the industry, collaboration among sectors have been
optimal and they are able to support one another. As a result, the IT electronics
industry is becoming more capable each day in its overall external marketability and
has become a focus of procedure for related products around the world
b. Complete supply chain system for the HDD sector in Thailand
With the relocation of the HDD supply chain over the past years, Thailand has become
one of the largest HDD production sites in the world. Nearly all upstream and
downstream HDD contractors have presence set up in Thailand. Subsidiaries in
Thailand, enjoying the geographical advantages, are able to approach customers
directly and also can secure opportunities for joint developments on the emerging
markets with customers taking into consideration their deployments in emerging
countries
B. Mature developments of the parts and components sector and steady supply of key
parts and components
Manufacturers of peripheral 3C products such as HDDs are capable of competing
internationally, including precision metal parts and printed circuit boards. With the IT
sector developing completely and advancing quickly, it is a driving force to boost the
autonomy over IT products.
C. Persistent growths on the market
As IT and consumer electronics products and the digital demand for cloud-based service
quickly grow, persistent growths are seen in the main scope of operation of the Group, such
as HDD parts and components and 3C electronic products surface treatment, too. As the
demand for video-based monitoring, 10T, and big data continues to climb, the development
of cloud storage technology is likely drive up demand on the HDD market. According to
statistics of a research institute, the global data storage size in 2021 will be 40 times that in
2009 (0.8ZB->35ZB) and expansions continue at a CAGR of 3.9%.
Also because of the demand from consumers for smart phones and smart wearable
devices, manufacturers of 3C electronic products are constantly innovating on
specifications and features to motivate consumers to purchase the new products
D. Robust R&D and innovation capabilities
The Company’s R&D team is devoted to the R&D and innovation of products. By
updating its production equipment, solution formula and improving its process and
processing procedure and design, it is help improving the production technique and
high-yield processing service is introduced ahead of counterparts for enhanced
operational efficiency and quality
(2) Disadvantageous factors
A. Main raw materials tend to be affected by fluctuating prices internationally of gold,
silver, and nickel, among other metals and the supply chain experiences a shortage
due to the international situation
Primary raw materials for the Group include electrolysis nickel solution, nickel boards,
solder balls, silver boards, and potassium gold cyanide. Their prices change with
international pricing tendency for nickel, silver, and gold, among others. In other words,
if prices of the said metals climb, the importing prices of related raw materials climb as
well and so does the production cost.
Meanwhile, over the past few years, COVID-19, Indonesia tariff policy, or the
production policy adopted in China to restrict mining of phosphate rocks have all
impacted the supply of raw materials to result in significant price volatilities on the
market and to accordingly drive up the production cost.
Countermeasures:
1. The management and the purchase unit are monitoring trends in prices of
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related metals around the world at any time in order to control the purchase
price and inventory size of raw materials and ensure that there are two or
more suppliers of key production raw materials to ensure supply of such raw
materials.

2. Long-term collaboration agreements are entered into with key suppliers to
ensure supply of materials and competitive purchase prices. If necessary, the
finance unit may take related hedging measures taking into consideration the
financial standing of the Company.

3. The sales unit, on the other hand, will adequately reflect the cost in the
processing price and quotation.

B. Potential shortage of labor and shortage of professional design and R&D

talent in the automation sector

As economies grow in China and in Thailand, young workers are unwilling to
work in factories. The shortage in labor leads to an increase in the base wage and
according to the production cost for the sector.

Countermeasures:

The Group has been proactively developing automatic production equipment to
significantly replace the existing workforce and to lessen the cost impacts brought
about by rising base wages. Meanwhile, the subsidiary in Shenzhen flexibly
allocates workers from other premises in high and low seasons to minimize the
impacts of shortage in labor. The subsidiary in Thailand also introduces foreign
workers to ensure steady workforce

Lengthy cycle of new process development and lengthy time to recovery of invested
funds

Due to the fact that the Group emphasizes joint development of processes with
customers in order to reinforce its own competitive advantages, the unique and
non-universal specifications of these processes are associated with a relatively long
development cycle and accordingly relatively long time to recovery of invested funds
by the Group.

Countermeasures:

Before jointly developing processes with customers, the Group sets short-term,
mid-term, and long-term risk assessment and development strategies according to

the four constructs, namely, financial planning, customer and product evaluation,
internal organization and resources allocation planning, and operational and
managerial risk and reports to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis as needed.
Once it is approved by the Board of Directors, the existing responsible units in the
Company will set up subsequent information communication and supervision
mechanisms to protect the Company against damages and to ensure fulfillment of
goals.

(I) Important purposes and production processes of main products
1. Important purposes of products

NO. | Products Substrate Material
1 EN Plating(High-P ~ Mid-P ~ Steel ~ Copper ~ Stainless Steel ~ Aluminum
Low-P)
2 | Precision Cleaning Stainless Steel ~ Aluminum
3 | Acid Cleaning Aluminium
4 | Passivation Copper ~ Stainless Steel
5 | Chemical Polish Copper ~ Aluminum
6 | Gold Plating Steel ~ Copper ~ Stainless Steel
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NO. | Products

Substrate Material

7 | Immersion gold plating

Steel ~ Copper ~ Stainless Steel

Continuous gold
electroplating

Steel ~ Copper ~ Stainless Steel

Continuous Sliver
electroplating

Steel ~ Copper

10 | IC package plating frame

Copper ~ Stainless Steel

11

PNP plating for copper and
stainless base materials

Copper ~ Stainless Steel

12 | Pearl nickel

Copper ~ Stainless Steel

13 | Bright nickel

Copper ~ Stainless Steel

2. Production processes

Workpiec »| Degreasing »  Washing > Electrolyt ©
j ; degreasing
Electroplating Washing _ Pickling _ Washing
[ |
Washing Post-treatment/ Product
; drying
(III)  Supply of main raw materials
Main raw Sources of materials of main suppliers and overview of suppliers
material
Electroless There are both qualified domestic and international suppliers with steady
nickel lead time and quality; the supply is optimal.
Sodium Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time
hypophosphite and quality; the supply is optimal.

Silver boards

Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time

and quality; the supply is optimal.

Pure solder balls

Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time

and quality; the supply is optimal.

Potassium gold
cyanide

Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time

and quality; the supply is optimal.

Sulfuric acid

Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time

and quality; the supply is optimal.

Nitric acid

Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time

and quality; the supply is optimal.

Passivation Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time
solution and quality; the supply is optimal.
Pearl nickel Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time
supplement and quality; the supply is optimal.
Sulfuric acid Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time

108




nickel and quality; the supply is optimal.
Nickel boards Subsidiary purchases unilaterally from overseas, with steady lead time
and quality; the supply is optimal.

(IV)  Description of major changes to the gross profit rate by the primary product or department over
the past two years

Unit: NTS$ thousand

ltem Gross profit
Net operating Operating P
. . Gross profit rate
Fiscal Year income costs
(7o)
110# & 1,356,633 861,379 495,254 36.51
111# & 1,131,956 867,685 264,271 23.35
Explanation: The reduced revenue of the Group in 2022 and the gross profit rate from
the preceding year were mainly caused by the dropping uptime as a result of
adjustment in purchase orders by primary customers in 2022.

V) List of main suppliers and customers
1. Names of customers with 10% or more sales and the values and ratios of the sales in any of the
past two years:
Unit: NT$ thousand

2021 2022 As of First quarter of 2023
Percentag Percentag Percentag
e in the e in the e in the
Item | Name Amount ;]itmslaglﬁz Item Name Amount ;]itmsgﬁz Item Name Amount ;]itmslaglﬁz Item
ut the ut the ut the
year (%) year (%) year (%)
RACPT RABIT RABIT
1 001 233,406| 17.21| None 001 176,117 15.59| None 001 37,393| 18.59| None
RABIT RACPT RACPT
2 001 187,668 13.84| None 001 163,564| 14.45| None 001 37,088 18.44| None
3 Gr]())up 132,384 9.76| None | HW 132,638 11.72| None | HW 30,315 15.07| None
4 | Other 803,175 59.19| None | Other 659,637| 58.24| None | Other 96,318| 47.90| None
M) 13566331 1000 - | | 1,131,956) 100.000 - | N | 201,114 100.00 -
sales sales sales

Information on the changes (increase/decrease):

(1) RACPTO001: The amount of sales dropped because of reduced demand associated with the
effort to lower the terminal inventory level.

(2) RACPTO001: The amount of sales dropped because of reduced demand associated with the
effort to lower the terminal inventory level.

(3) The customer’s rise in market share led to the increase in the amount of sales and its
inclusion in the list of major customers
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2. Names of suppliers with 10% or more purchases and the values and ratios of purchases in any

of the past two years:
Unit: NTS$ thousand
2021 2022 As of First quarter of 2023 2021
RelaFion Relations Relations . . Relations
Wistkkllllt)he Name Amount hip‘With Name |Amount hip yvith Name ?moun \lz:tl}?ttl}?:?}sléﬁ or Name Amount |hip With
issuer the issuer the issuer the issuer
1 |ACHO01 45,836| 14.47) None |[ACHOO1 40,799| 14.19| None [TP671 4,829| 12.31| None
2 |TP047 32,768 10.35| None [TP052 30,091| 10.47| None |TP052 4,793| 12.22| None
3 |TP052 30,656 9.68| None [TP671 24,150 8.40| None |TP716 3,758 9.58| None
4 |Other 207,437 59.48| None |Other 192,407| 66.94| None |Other 25,847 65.89 None
Net purchases  (316,697| 100.00] - |Netpurchases (287,447| 100.00| - [Netpurchases | 39,227| 100.00 -
Information on the changes (increase/decrease):
(1) ACHOO1: The amount of purchases, on the other hand, dropped slightly because of reduced
demand.
(2) TP052: The amount of purchases did not experience obvious changes.
(3) TP671: The supplier is a raw material manufacturer and hence is competitive in prices and
hence the ratio of purchases from the said supplier was increased in 2022
(VD)  Production volume and value over the past two years
Unit: thousand sets; NT$ thousand
Fiscal Year 2021 2022
Production
volume/ | Production | Productio | Productio | Production | Productio | Production
value capacity nvolume | ncapacity | volume n capacity volume
(Mpcs) (Mpes) | (Mpcs) (Mpcs) (Mpcs) (Mpcs)
Main product
Electroplating 936 594 | 776,488 936 348 | 573,300
nickel
Chemical nickel 556 192 | 537,813 556 197 509,165
Continuous
plating and 5,412 217 42,332 7,035 212 49,491
others
Total 6,904 1,003 | 1,356,633 8,527 757 1,131,956

(VII) Sales volumes/values over the past two years

Unit: thousand sets; NT$ thousand

iscal Year Sales 2021 2022
olume/value
Main produc
Import Export Import Export
Volume | Value | Volume Value Volume Value Volum | Value
e
Net processing - - 1,092,440 1,353,050 - - | 756,647 1,123,264
mcome
Other - 3,583 - 8,692 - -
Total - 3,583 1,092,440 1,353,050 - 8,692 | 756,647 1,123,264

110



III. Number of employees for the past two years and up to the date when the
Annual Report was printed, their mean years in service, mean age, and
distribution of their education levels

Unit: Person; Age; Year; %
For the current
year up to the date

Fiscal Year 2021 2022 when the Annual
Report was
printed
b Direct and indirect
% production staff 33 336 >71
% Staff of the
S Management 165 117 115
° Department
ié R&D staff 35 29 31
Z Total 755 682 717
Mean age 38.0 37.2
Mean years in service 6.2 5.7

Post-graduate school - - -

=

o

*§ g Graduate school 1.59% 1.61% 1.61%

SRR

B 2| College/university 15.89% 22.29% 23.75%

S

.g :% Senior high school 14.04% 20.67% 21.70%

= - -

o | Below scnior high 68.48% 55.43% 58.06%
school

IV. Information on Environmental Protection Expenditure
(I) Explain how the application, payment, or setup status of those that should apply for a permit for
setting up polluting facilities or discharging pollutants or pay pollution control and prevention fees
or and set director, independent exclusive units or staff to take charge of environmental protection as
required abide law:
The subsidiary of the Company in Shenzhen applied for the pollution discharge permit and
information of the staff at the responsible unit for environmental protection is as follows:

1. Pollution discharge permit

Name of Company Issued by Eft(;e; ;\éep(ilrligon
Superior Industries Bao’an Environmental Protection 1141225
(ShenZhen) Co., Ltd. And Water Authority
Top-Team Technology (Shen | Bao’an Environmental Protection 1141226
Zhen) Ltd. And Water Authority

2. Environmental protection personnel

L Title of qualification
Name of Company Name Applicability certificate
Superior Industries Yang Sewage Sewage treatment
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Lin-Chun treatment Identification certificate

111



L Title of qualification
Name of Company Name Applicability certificate
Top-Team Technology Tane Hua Sewage Sewage treatment
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. & treatment Identification certificate

(2) Applicable investments of the Company in primary equipment to prevent environmental pollution
and their purposes and possible benefits:

December 31, 2022 Unit: NT$ thousand

Equipment . . Investment Purpose and
Name of Company Name Quantity| Date received cost Expected possible benefits
Superior Industrics Sewage Purpose: Purification of electroplating sewage
(Slrllj nZhen) C prevention | set December 8, 49 138 Efficacy: Compliance with environmental
Lt de en) +0- and control 2004 >" 7 |protection criteria in the effluent
' equipment
Superior Industries |  Sludge November 1 Purpose: Sludge dehydration and reduction
(ShenZhen) Co., dryer 1 set 2019 ’ BOT |Efficacy: Reduced amount of sludge and
Ltd. equipment reduced cost of clearing the sludge
Superior Industries | Low-temp ‘I?Vl;rslgé)sée(;llxl/z};irlzatlon of high-concentration
(ShenZhen) Co., [vaporization| 1 set 07/31/2020 1,056 ] . .
Ltd equipment Efﬁcgcy. amount of high-concentration waste
' solution to be cleared reduced by 70%
Purpose: Recycling of nickel in waste nickel
. . Recycling solution
Superior Industries equipment December 15, Efficacy: Reduced processing cost of waste
(ShenZhen) Co 1 set 1,056 ) . .
Lid " for waste 2021 ’ solution and transformation of waste nickel to
’ nickel valuable substances and to make profits
accordingly
Top-Team Sewage Purpose: Purification of electroplating sewage
Technology (Shen prevention I'set |March27, 2017 41,577 Efﬁcacy: C0¥np1.131.1ce with environmental
Zhen) Ltd and control protection criteria in the effluent
' equipment
Purpose: Recycling of nickel in waste nickel
Recycling solution
Top-Team equipment Efficacy: Reduced processing cost of waste
quip y p g
Technology (Shen 1 set 2022/1/15 BOT ) . .
Zhen) Ltd for waste solution and transformation of waste nickel to
e ) nickel valuable substances and to make profits
accordingly
Superior Plating bistllation ‘I?Vl;rslz;)sseo:lzzg(r)lrlzatlon of high-concentration
Technology Equipment 3 set June 2021 261 Efficacy: amount of high-concentration waste

(Thailand) Co., Ltd

solution to be cleared reduced by 50%

(III) How the Company improved environmental pollution over the past two years and up to the date
when the Annual Report was printed and the handling process in case of any dispute over pollution:

None.

(IV) The total value of losses (including compensation) and dispositions of the Company over the past
two years up to the date the Annual Rfiport was printed and disclosure of future countermeasures

(including improvement measures) and
losses, dispositions, and compensation i

Igossible expenses (including estimated values of possible
no countermeasures were not adopted; if they cannot be

reasonably estimated, descriptions of facts that they cannot be reasonably estimated should be
provided): None.
(V)Explain current pollution status and the impacts of its improvement on the Company’s earnings,
competitive advantages, and capital expenditure and the expected major capital expenditure on
environmental protection for the coming two years: None
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V. Labor relations
(I) List any employee benefit plans, continuing education, training, retirement systems, and the status
of their implementation, and the status of labor-management agreements and measures for
preserving employees' rights and interests:
1. Employee benefit plans and implementation thereof

(M

)

3)

Q)

6))

Bonuses, subsidies and benefits: Establishing compensation and benefits including the
job subsidies, task subsidies, seniority bonuses, attendance bonuses, environment
subsidies, night-shift subsidies, high-temperature subsidies, license subsidies, meal
subsidies, annual bonuses, employee bonus, and employee stock ownership trust, among
others.

Labor insurance: The Company has made the payments for social insurance and Housing
Provident Fund in compliance with relevant laws and regulations to ensure that its
employees receive corresponding benefits and compensation in case of retirement, illness,
maternity, injury, unemployment and house purchase, and it has additionally purchased
the group accident insurance to stop employees’ worries and provide a more
comprehensive protection.

Health checks: The Company cares about employees’ health, so it organizes one free
health check for all employees every year and periodical health check for employees at
specific positions to have a better understanding about employees’ health.

Other benefits: The Company provides free housing and meals to its employees, as well
as free parking spaces and screening room; it gives holiday gifts to employees on
traditional holidays, organizes regular employee birthday parties every month, and
occasionally arranges recreational activities, team-building, annual dinners and lotteries.
Workplace diversification policy: The Company is devoted to providing its
employees with a respectful and safe workplace. We enforce diversified hiring and

fair pay and promotion opportunities in order to ensure that employees are not
discriminated against, harassed, or treated unfairly because of their ethnicity, gender,
religion, age, political preference, or other conditions protected by applicable laws

and regulations. Female employees accounted for 21% of all in 2022 and female
officers 13%.

2. Employee continuing education and training and implementation thereof

The Company understands the importance of human resources development and believes that
continuous development of employees’ competences fuels its growth, so it is committed to the
constant improvement of the education and training system. Through the initiation of diverse
and multi-dimensional education and training, employees’ overall skills and experience are
enhanced, and thus it maximizes the exploitation of human resource, driving the systematic
facilitation of learning organization. The Company provides the following education and
traimnings:

(M

)

Training plan: Founded on the Company’s development goals, formulating plans

targeting various professions and competences by referring to the surveys of employees’

personal development goals and training needs.

Training activities are categorized as follows:

A. New employee orientation
Trainings including guidance and care, company overview, business concept,
business culture, regulations and systems, attendance management, and salary and
benefit system.

B. On-the-job training
General training courses that involve the entire company and all levels of employees,
including organizational knowledge training, safety and health education, fire drills,
quality knowledge trainings and etc.

C. Management skill trainings
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Training courses for mastering in a management position, including topics in upward
management, issue analysis and solving, and skill training for team leaders.
D. Professional skills training

Professional skills training required for all technical/professional units, such as

engineering technique courses, equipment engineering/maintenance courses, and

finance and accounting courses.

E. External training

Assigning relevant personnel to attend external training courses, including the

trainings for the latest firefighting safety, labor and taxation regulations and licenses.
Retirement system and implementation thereof
The Company’s retirement system observes the provisions of the Labor Standards Act and
relevant laws and regulations and adopts the individual pension account system where the
employer shall deposit 6% of an employee’s salary into his or her pension account at the
Bureau of Labor Insurance every month. In addition to regular reserves made to the pension
account required by the Labor Standards Act and Labor Pension Act, the Company also
established the Employee Stock Ownership Fund Committee. A full-time employee who has
worked for a year or more can decide an amount allocated monthly for the subscription of the
Company’s stock, and the Company will allocate 200% of the said amount as the stock
ownership incentive bonus.
Labor-management agreements
The Company especially pays attention in building a harmonious labor-management
environment and thus has a thorough document management system, of which, employees’
rights, duties and welfare are clearly stated in various regulations. Moreover, it periodically
reviews the welfare in order to practically maintain employees’ rights and interests. The
Company also endeavors to initiate and explore diverse communication channels between
labors and management by establishing the labor union, female employee committee (to
strengthen the protection for rights and interests of female employees), and labor-management
dispute mediation committee (which is an organization to mediate labor-management disputes
and handle employees’ requests in a timely manner to ensure resolution of labor-management
disputes at early stage), to bridge the communication between employees and management
and enable their interactions. Through the implementation of multiple measures, it protects
employees’ rights and interests more thoroughly. Meanwhile, the Company cares about
employees’ opinions, so it has set up the General Manager’s mailbox and employee opinion
box, and proposed the complaint and appeal mechanism allowing full expression of employees’
opinions and thoughts, to understand their opinions regarding business management,
leadership, welfare system and work environment and maintain a good labor-management
relation. In addition, since the Company’s establishment, there has never been any material
labor-management dispute.
Measures for employee rights and interests protection
The Company has a thorough document management system, of which, employees’ rights and
duties and welfare are clearly stated in various regulations. Moreover, it periodically reviews
that welfare in order to protect employees’ rights and interests.

(IT) Any losses suffered by the Company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report

publication date due to labor disputes, and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses that could
be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken: None.

V1. Information and Communication Security Management

1.

(I) It describes the information and communication security risk management framework,
information and communication security policies, specific management plans, and
resources invested in information and communication security management.

Security Risk Management Structure
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2.

(1) The unit responsible for information and communication security risk management of the

Company is the IT Department.

(2) The IT Department now consists of four sub-departments, namely, MIS, ERP &

Programming, Cyber Security, and Automation Technology. Cyber Security, in particular,
is exclusively responsible for information security-related affairs throughout the Group
and directly reports to the President the Board of Directors on major matters.

(3) The responsibilities of Cyber Security include internal netcom of the parent company

and the subsidiaries and external network information security configurations,
periodic risk assessment and planning of information and communication security
tasks as part of daily production and operation, planning of the machine room
information security environment hardware at the corporate level, and software
annual plan and budget allocation, internal rules for employees to use computers and
software/hardware settings, and monthly and quarterly information security system
management and internal training and communication, among other working
procedures. The audit unit provides supervisory advice according to the Audit Plan
and prepares the audit report periodically and submits it to the Board of Directors.
CPAs also inspect the IT operating setting on a yearly basis.

Information and Communication Security Policy

The IT Department first performs the risk assessment of possible hazards such as phishing mails,
ransomware, intentional internal destruction, and malicious external invasion and then defines
related strategies reflective of possible injuries for each category. The policy and system
regulations can primarily be divided into the daily employee computer use regulations, the
information security setting management guidelines for fundamental staff at the IT Department,
and the information security strategic deployment of the management that includes file backup
and rescue management and domestic and internal serial breakpoint, etc.

Substantial management solutions

(M
)

3)

Q)

6))

(6)

Create a proper firewall: Record, observe, and control the inflows and outflows of network,
the gateway transmission speed and frequency, and the software periodically.
Email host management: The domain keys identified mail (DKIM) system and
domain-based message authentication reporting and conformance (DMARC) are adopted as
the primary means to block blackmailing and virus mails. Meanwhile, the password needs
to be changed periodically once every three months and abnormal flows or mails from
suspicious IPs are monitored at all times in the system.
ERP system access setting: The people and units with access to the ERP programs are
clearly defined and the irreversible mode is adopted for the data (that is, modification is
subject to permissions from a higher-ranking officer). The ERP host system is backed up on
a daily basis and the host is set up in a location with strict access control to ensure that
external staff is unable to easily modify or damage it through the network or in the field.
Backup of cloud database and access to data: Besides the fact that respective departments
have distinct reading access (restricted parallel cross-over among departments), the access
to data is also clearly defined for people within the same department with different rankings
(restricted vertical cross-over within the department). The database host is also managed for
its readability through the firewall to ensure that the database will not be freely read and
invaded by an external network. In addition, the database will be backed up in different
hosts periodically to ensure undisrupted production data and operations.
Anti-virus software: Besides the above-mentioned control, at present, the Company’s
individual computers and central control host are installed with corresponding anti-virus
software for preventive purpose and the actual data in the performance of respective major
anti-virus software in blocking viruses for the year were mainly referred to while the
candidate anti-virus software was being rated.

Third-party information security management consultants: Besides the IT team of the
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Group, there are also third-party groups to periodically give advice on and evaluate
the overall information security setting of the Company.
4. Resources devoted to the management of information and communication security

Information security is now an important corporate operation issue. The corresponding

information security management items and resources devoted are as follows:

(1) Exclusive manpower: There is the “Corporate Security Office” to take charge of planning
information security, introducing technologies and related audits throughout the Company
in order to protect and continue to reinforce information security.

(2) Customer satisfaction: There were no major information security events and no complaints
about violations of or losses of customer data.

(3) Educational training: All newcomers completed the information security educational
training program before they report to work and all employees completed two online
information security educational training and evaluations. Throughout the year, a total of
four social engineering phishing mail tests were performed.

(4) Information security announcement: The information security announcement is prepared
each month to communicate important requirements and precautions in the protection of
information security.

(IT) List the losses as a result of major information and communication security events, their
possible impacts, and countermeasures over the past year up to the date when the Annual
Report was printed; if reasonable estimation is impossible, why it is impossible shall be
specified: None.
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VII. Important Contracts

Nature of Parties to the contract Start/End dates of Main contents Restrictions
contract contract
Superior Plating Technology Co., December 1, 2022 —

Lease Ltd. November 30. 2025 House (rental) Lease

ChiaChuan Investment Co., Ltd. ’

Top-Team Technology (Shen Zhen) February 1, 2020 — Workshops and dormitory
Lease Ltd. January 31, 2023 (rental) Lease

Shenzhen Bitou Co., Ltd. Yo

Superior Plating
Lease Technology(Thailand) January 1, 2023 - Workshops (rental) Lease
December 31, 2025
TICON Property Fund
. November 23, 2021 — .

Lease Chailease Auto Rental Co., Ltd. August 22, 2024 Automotive lease Lease
Lease Dongguan Guanjie Metal Surface March 1, 2021 — March | Workshops and dormitory Lease

Treatment Co., Ltd. 1,2026 (rental)
Legal Cheng Yang International Law September 13, 2022 — . Legal
contract Firm September 12, 2023 Executive legal counsel contract
Legal . January 1, 2023 — . Legal
contract Guanghe Law Firm December 31, 2023 Executive legal counsel contract
IT IT
Equipment YU DING TECHNOLOGY CO., December 1, 2022 — IT Equipment Maintenan Equipment
Maintenance | LTD. November 30, 2023 quipme enance Maintenance
Contract Contract
Project TIME INVESTOR RELATIONS August 1, 2021 - Proicct Service Contract Project
Contract CONSULTANTS LTD. December 31, 2023 oject setvice Lontrac Contract
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VI. Financial Status

I.  Condensed balance sheets and statements of comprehensive income for the past
5 fiscal years

(I) Condensed balance sheets and statements of comprehensive income

1. Condensed balance sheets - IFRSs
Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Financial data for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Current fiscal
year up to
Item
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 March 31,
2023(Note 2)
Current assets 687,140 | 621,332 793,005 989,189 781,886 720,335
Property, plant and 574,715 | 475,925 461,836 520,987 534,447 527,369
equipment
Intangible assets 6,383 4,789 3,478 2,974 2,156 2,035
Other assets 140,839 | 237,338 217,178 312,291 335,710 320,055
Total assets 1,409,077 | 1,339,384 1,475,497 | 1,825,441 | 1,654,199 1,569,794
Before 449,968 | 449,727 498,112 630,333 435,131 335,710
Current | distribution
liabilities | = After 449,968 | 449,727 533,625 | 709296 | 439,481 -
distribution
Non-current liabilities 10,835 82,081 44 882 109,162 171,457 148,952
Before 496,319 | 531,808 542,994 739,495 606,588 528,758
Total distribution
liabilities |~ After 496,319 | 531,808 621,957 | 818458 | 610,938 -
distribution
Equity attributable to 830,002 | 732,037 834,232 | 947,097 | 881,470 870,004
owners of parent
Share capital 448,065 | 444555 444555 444555 444555 444555
Capital surplus 501,463 | 408316 324,954 325,322 325,322 325,322
Before
Retsined | distribution (84,132) | (83,362) 102,599 255,103 193,410 178,471
earnings After )
distribution (84,132) | (83,362) 67,086 176,140 189,060
Other equity interest (31,096) | (37,472 (34,757) (44,326) (29,231) (25,758)
Treasury shares (4,298) - (3,119) (33,557) (52,586) (52,586)
Non-controlling interest 82,756 75,539 98,271 138,849 166,141 171,032
Total equity | Before
distributi 912,758 | 807,576 932,503 | 1,085,946 | 1,047,611 1,041,036
on
After
distributi 912,758 | 807,576 896,990 | 1,006,983 | 1,043,261 -
on
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Note 2: The financial data for 2023Q1 were reviewed by CPAs.




2. Condensed statements of comprehensive income - IFRSs

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Financial data for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Current
fiscal year up
Item
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 |toMarch3l,
2023(Note 2)
Operating revenue 1,012,959 785,125 1,039,891 1,356,633 1,131,956 201,114
Gross profit 34,742 52,828 302,283 495,254 264,271 45,073
Operating income (92,006) (72,636) 158,181 295,555 88,178 3,844
Non-operating income
and oxponses (14,224) (28,402) (11,916) (24,685) (26,594) (5,789)
Net income before tax (106,230 (101,038) 146,265 270,870 61,584 (1,045)
Net income from (105,460)|  (103,143) 129,205 233,368 45,332 (6,310)
continuing operations
Loss from discontinued i i i i i i
operations
Net income (loss) for the (105,460)|  (103,143) 129,205 233,368 45,332 (6,310)

current period
Other comprehensive
income for the current (1,966) (2,969) (1,159) (24,580) 25,693 4,085
period (net of tax)
Total comprehensive

income for the current (107,426) (106,112) 128,046 208,788 71,025 (2,225)
period
Net income attributable (80,885)|  (82,205) 106,603 188,017 26,044 (10,589)
to owners of parent
Net income attributable (24,575) (20,938) 22,602 45,351 19,288 4,279

to non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive

income attributable to (83,942) (88,581) 109,318 178,448 41,139 (7,116)
owners of parent

Total comprehensive

income attributable to (23,484) (17,531) 18,728 30,340 29,886 4,891
non-controlling interest
Earnings per share (1.82) (1.85) 2.40 4.24 0.59 (0.24)

Note 1: The financial data for the years from 2018 to 2022 were audited by CPAs.
Note 2: The financial data for 2023Q1 were reviewed by CPAs.
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3. Condensed parent company only balance sheets - IFRSs
Unit: NTS$ thousand

Year Financial data for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Current
fiscal year

Item up to March
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 31,
2023(Note 2)
Current assets 322,557 226,454 202,187 112,628 82,786
Investments
accounted for using 462,774 455,721 581,975 925,022 891,872
equity method
Property, plant and 1,614 1,162 1,227 1,331 1,467
equipment
Intangible assets 6,305 4,781 3,478 2,974 2,156
Other assets 59,232 73,320 64,613 71,88 44,681
Total assets 852,482 761,438 853,480 1,113,837 1,022,962
Before 22,453 27,783 18,279 149,225 100,774
Current |distribution
liabilities | =~ After 22,453 27,783 53,792 228,188 105,124
distribution
Non-current liabilities 27 1,618 969 17,515 40,718
Before
Total distribution 22,480 29,401 19,248 166,740 141,492 N/A
liabilities | = After 22,480 29,401 54,761 245,703 145,842
distribution
Share capital 448,065 444,555 444,555 444,555 444,555
Capital surplus 501,463 408,316 324,954 325,322 325,322
Before
Retained | distribution (84,132) (83,362) 102,599 255,103 193,410
earnings After
distribution (84,132) (83,362) 67,086 176,140 189,060
Other equity interest (31,096) (37,472) (34,757) (44,326) (29,231)
Treasury shares (4,298) - (3,119) (33,557) (52,586)
Non-controlling i i i i i
interest
Before
Total distribution 830,002 732,037 834,232 947,097 881,470
cquity | After 830,002 732,037 798,719 868,134 877,120
distribution

Note 1: The financial data for the years from 2018 to 2022 were audited by CPAs.
Note 2: The Company only prepares the annual parent company only financial statements.
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4. Condensed parent company only statements of comprehensive income - IFRSs

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year Financial data for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Current fiscal
; year up to
tem March 31,
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Operating revenue 42,132 34,159 16,282 20,928 33,077
Gross profit 21,962 14,981 2,158 4,456 16,265
Operating income 7,256 (1,507) (25,777) (40,266) (10,190)
_ Non-operating (89,039) (84,771) 143,446 245,383 35,766
income and expenses
Net e before (81,783) (86,278) 117,669 205,117 25,576
Net income from (80,885) (82,205) 106,603 188,017 26,044
continuing operations
Loss from N/A
disconti.nued - - - - (Note 2)
operations
Net income (loss) for
. (80,885) (82,205) 106,603 188,017 26,044
the current period
Other comprehensive
income for the current (3,057) (6,376) 2,715 (9,569) 15,095
period (net of tax)
Total comprehensive
income for the current (83,942) (88,581) 109,318 178,448 41,139
period
Earnings per share (1.82) (1.85) 2.40 4.24 0.59

Note 1: The financial data for the years from 2018 to 2022 were audited by CPAs.
Note 2: The Company only prepares the annual parent company only financial statements.
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(I) Name of the CPAs and the auditor's opinions given thereby for the past 5 fiscal years

Year Name of accounting firm Name of CPA Opinion
2018 Deloitte Yu, Robert; Chen, Unqualified opinion
Chao-Mei

2019 Deloitte Chen, Chao-Mei; Yu, | Unqualified opinion
Robert

2020 Deloitte Chen, Chao-Mei; Yu, | Unqualified opinion
Robert

2021 Deloitte Liang, Tanti; Yu, Unqualified opinion
Robert

2022 Deloitte Liang, Tanti; Yu, Unqualified opinion
Robert
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II. Financial analyses for the past 5 fiscal years

1. Analysis of consolidated financial data -IFRSs

Fiscal Year Financial analyses for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1) Current fiscal year up
to March 31, 2023
ltem 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (Note 2)
. . Debt to assets ratio 35.22 39.71 36.80 40.51 36.67 33.68
Financial '
structure |Ratio of long-term
0 capital to property, 166.88 186.93 211.63 229.39 228.10 225.65
% p property,
plant and equipment
Current ratio 152.71 138.16 159.20 156.93 179.69 189.66
S"IZ/ency Quick ratio 143.42 128.34 154.74 146.55 163.32 170.38
0
Times interest earned (14.44) (7.79) 16.33 28.23 5.37 0.39
Accounts receivable 2.90 2.27 3.01 2.82 2.90 3.02
turnover (times) ' ' ' ) ) )
?:;;age collection 125.86 160.79 121.26 129.43 125.86 120.86
Inventory turnover 39.48 34.62 56.87 30.5 17.34 12.34
(times)
Operating |Accounts payable 10.48 8.50 7.96 9.82 12.00 11.92
performance |turnover (times) ) ) ) ) ) )
Average days in sales 9.24 10.54 6.42 11.97 21.05 29.58
Property, plant and
equipment turnover 1.76 1.65 2.25 2.60 2.12 1.53
(times)
Total asset turnover 0.72 0.59 0.70 0.74 0.68 0.51
(times)
g/et)“m on fotal assets (6.94) (6.84) 9.72 14.62 3.25 (0.93)
0
Return on equity (%) (11.12) (11.99) 14.85 23.12 4.25 (2.42)
Ratio of income before
Profitability |12 (0 Paid-in capital 2370 (22.73) 32.90 60.93 13.85 (0.44)
%)
Net profit margin (% 10.41 13.14 12.42 17.20 4.00 (3.14)
p g
Earnings per share
. . . .24 . 0.24
NTS) (1.82) (1.85) 2.40 4 0.59 (0.24)
Cash flow ratio (0.38) 4.59 25.90 54.13 57.48 17.71
Cash flow % g‘;sf)‘ flow adequacy 58.84 26.17 25.61 77.79 123.77 150.74
Cash reinvestment (0.11) 1.70 9.17 18.43 10.20 3.53
ratio
Operating leverage (1.69) (2.30) 2.58 2.09 4.58 20.23
Leverage
Financial leverage 0.93 0.86 1.06 1.03 1.19 5.87

Please explain the causes of changes in the financial ratios in the most recent 2 fiscal years. (Analysis is not required if the
increase or decrease is less than 20%.)

1. Decreased interest protection multiples, return on assets (ROA), return on equity (ROE), ratio of net profit before
tax to paid-in capital, earnings per share, and operating leverage: due to dropping operating gains and net profit
before tax of 2022.

2. Decreased inventory turnover ratio and increased average sales days: due to the increase in the mean inventory of
2022.

3. Increased turnover ratio of accounts payable: due to the reduced mean accounts payable of 2022.

4. Increased cash flow adequacy ratio: due to the increase in net cash flows from the operating activities over the
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Fiscal Year

Item

Financial analyses for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1)

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Current fiscal year up
to March 31, 2023
(Note 2)

past five years.

5. Decreased cash re-investment ratio: due to the decline in long-term investments of 2022.

Note 1: The financial data for the years from 2018 to 2022 were audited by CPAs.

Note 2: The financial data for 2023Q1 were reviewed by CPAs.
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2. Analysis of parent company only financial data -IFRSs

Fiscal Year

Financial analyses for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1)

Current fiscal

year up to
Item March 31,
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022|2023 (Note 2)
. . Debt to assets ratio 2.64 3.86 2.26 14.97 13.83
Financial
structure Ratio of long-term
% capital to property, 51,426.83| 63,137.26] 68,068.54| 72,472.73| 62,862.17
plant and equipment
Current ratio 1,436.59 815.08 1,106.12 75.48 82.15
Solvency o ik ratio 1,436.34 815.08)  1,106.12 75.41 82.12
%
Times interest carned (56.59)]  (500.62)  1,033.18]  (312.16) 98.25
Accounts receivable
turnover (times) 1.24 1.24 0.86 2.47 4.28
?:;;age collection 294.51 294.35 422.86 147.53 85.21
Inventory turnover ) ) ) ) _
(times)
Operating  |Accounts payable i i i ) i
performance |turnover (times)
Average days in sales - - - - -
Property, plant and
equipment turnover 22.83 24.61 13.63 16.36 23.64
b N/A
(times)
Total asset turnover 0.05 0.04 0.02 0.02 0.03
(times) ) ) ) ) )
E/et)“m on total assets 8.65)  (10.17) 13.21 19.06 2.46
0
Return on equity (%) (9.44) (10.53) 13.61 21.11 2.85
Ratio of income before
Profitability |12 t0 paid-in capital 18.25 (19.41) 26.47 46.14 5.75
Y es)
Net profit margin (%) (191.98) (240.65) 654.73 898.40 78.74
Earnings per share
NS (1.82) (1.85) 2.40 424 0.59
Cash flow ratio 40.93 @7 (11433)  (18.57) (49.24)
Cash flow % g‘;ff)‘ flow adequacy 84.01 20.86 (49.95)  (3,995.09)| (9,443.57)
Cash reinvestment 1.16 (0.19) (2.64) (2.88) (5.39)
ratio
Operating leverage 3.03 (9.94) (0.18) (0.17) (5.15)
Leverage
Financial leverage 1.24 0.90 1.00 1.02 0.97

2022.

4. Decreased cash flow ratio: due to the declined cash flows of operating activities in 2022.

Please explain the causes of changes in the financial ratios in the most recent 2 fiscal years. (Analysis is not required if the

increase or decrease is less than 20%.)

1. Decreased interest protection multiples, total return on assets (ROA), return on equity (ROE), ratio of net profit before
tax to paid-in capital, net profit rate, and EPS: due to dropping operating gains and net profit before tax of 2022.

2. Increased turnover ratio of accounts receivable and decreased average collection days: due to the decline in accounts
receivable in 2022.

3.  Increased turnover ratio of real estate properties, plants, and that of overall assets: due to the increase in the net sales of
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Item

Fiscal Year

Financial analyses for the past 5 fiscal years (Note 1)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Current fiscal
year up to
March 31,

2023 (Note 2)

6.

Decreased cash flow adequacy ratio: due to the decline in cash flows from operating activities over the past five years.

Decreased cash re-investment ratio: due to the decline in operating funds and non-current assets of 2022.

Note 1: The financial data for the years from 2018 to 2022 were audited by CPAs.

Note 2: The Company only prepares the annual parent company only financial statements.
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The formulas used in this table are as follows:

1. Financial structure
(1) Debt to assets ratio = total liabilities / total assets.
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (total equity + non-current liabilities) / net
property, plant and equipment.
2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventory - prepaid expenses) / current liabilities.
(3) Times interest earned = earnings before tax and interest expenses / current interest expenses.
3. Operating performance
(1) Accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable arising from business activities)
turnover = net sales / average accounts receivable balance (including accounts receivable and notes
receivable arising from business activities).
(2) Average collection days = 365 / accounts receivable turnover.
(3) Inventory turnover = cost of goods sold / average inventory
(4) Accounts payable (including accounts payable and notes payable arising from business activities)
turnover = cost of goods sold / average accounts payable balance (including accounts payable and notes
payable arising from business activities).
(5) Average days in sales = 365 / inventory turnover.
(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales / average net property, plant and equipment.
(7) Total asset turnover = net sales / average total assets.
4. Profitability
(1) Return on total assets = (net income + interest expenses * (1 - effective tax rate)) / average total assets.
(2) Return on equity = net income after tax / average total equity.
(3) Net profit margin = net income after tax / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (income attributable to owners of parent - preferred stock dividends) / weighted
average number of shares outstanding.
5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flows from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = 5-year sum of net cash flow from operating activities / 5-year sum of
(capital expenditures + increases in inventory + cash dividends).
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (cash from operating activities - cash dividends) / (gross property, plant and
equipment + long-term investments + other non-current assets + working capital).
6. Leverage:
(1) Operating leverage = (net operating revenue — variable operating costs and expenses) / operating
income.
(2) Financial leverage = operating income / (operating income — interest expenses)
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III. Audit committee's report for the most recent year's financial statements.
S5 PERIS Ne G Ca 23 o
Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

The Audit Committee Report

The board of directors has prepared the financial statements, consolidated
financial statements, earnings distribution proposal and operating report of the
Company for 2022, which have been audited and certified by Deloitte Taiwan
and audited by the Audit Committee. We deem them to have complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of the Company Law and therefore submit the
report above in accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act
and Article 219 of the Company Act.

Please review and approve.

To

2023 General Shareholders’ Meeting of Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

Audit Committee convener: Wang, Yu-Sheng

March 20, 2023
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IV. Financial statements for the most recent fiscal year

Representation Letter

Affiliated enterprises subject to the preparation of consolidated financial statements of
affiliated enterprises under the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises”
were identical to the affiliated companies subject to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements under International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 (IFRS 10) for fiscal year
2022 (from January 1 to December 31, 2022). All mandatory disclosures of the consolidated
financial statements of affiliated enterprises have been disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements; therefore, no separate consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises were
prepared.

Declared by

=ID'E6

Company Name: SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO.,
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U
ey ¥
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S ==
e J03% | Py

Responsible person: Li, Su-Pai 'ﬁ{ $

March 20, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.:

Audit Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SUPERIOR
PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, based on the results of our audits, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group
as from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations
(IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Audit Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountant and the Auditing Standards in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. The auditors of the firm, subject to the independence regulations, have maintained
independence from the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics and perform other
obligations of such Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are stated as follows:

Authenticity of processing revenue from specific customers

Since SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. is an OTC listed company, the
management is under pressure to achieve the financial objectives. One of the important
indicators for judging profitability and operating performance is the operating revenue, and
revenue recognition is naturally riskier. As a result of the decrease in demand in the overall
market, the Group’s revenue declined in 2022 as compared to the previous year. However, the
sales revenue from certain customers with significant sales amount still kept growing, and their
total sales revenue accounted for approximately 29% of the consolidated sales revenue, which
had a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements and was therefore listed as a
key audit matter for the year ended December 31, 2022. For a description of the revenue
recognition policy, please refer to Note 4 (13) to the consolidated financial statements.

We have performed the following audit procedures:

1.  Understand the Group’s relevant internal control system and operating procedures
concerning the transaction cycle as described in the previous paragraph. Based on this, we
designed the internal control audit procedures in response to the occurrence of the relevant
revenue to confirm and evaluate whether the design and implementation of the relevant
internal control procedures are effective.

2. Evaluate whether the relevant background, transaction amounts and credit limits for the
aforesaid specific customers are reasonable based on their company scale.

3. We randomly selected samples from the aforesaid specific customers’ processing revenue
statement to examine the incoming material orders, shipping orders, sales invoices and
subsequent receipts to confirm the authenticity of the transactions.

Other Matters

SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. has prepared the parent company only
financial statements for 2022 and 2021, to which we have also issued an independent auditor’s
report with an unqualified opinion along with the section on other matters and provided it for
reference.

Responsibilities of Management Level and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and the IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect
by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the R.O.C., and for necessary internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is also responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance, Including the Audit Committee, are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standard
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists in the consolidated financial statements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC Audit Standard, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements due to fraud or error, design and adopt appropriate countermeasures for the risks
assessed, and obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence in order to be used as the
basis for the opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management level.

4.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause SUPERIOR PLATING
TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including relevant notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6.  Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for the financial information of individual
entities of the Group and provide opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
handle the guidance, supervision and execution of the audit on the Group and are
responsible for preparing the opinion for the Group.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the governance units with statements that we have complied with relevant
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and we have also
communicated with the governance units on all relationships and other matters (including
relevant protective measures) that may be considered to affect the independence of auditors.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial
statements and those are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Deloitte Taiwan
CPA Liang, Tanti CPA Yu, Robert
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Financial SupervisoryCommission Approval Securities and FuturesBureau Approval
Document No. Document No.
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1100356048 Tai-Cai-Zeng-VI No. 0930128050

March 30, 2023
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SUPERIOR PLATING T . LT, and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive [ncoime
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
Expressed in Thousands of Wew Taiwan Dollars, Except camings per share

2022 2021
Codle Amount ¥a Amount s
4000  Owperating revenue {Notes 4, 23
and 30 & 1,131,956 100 £ 1,356,633 100
000 Operating cost (Notes 10, 24
and 30) (__8670683) (_II) (_860379) (_6i)
5000 Gross prodit 264271 23 495 254 37
Oiperating expense (Notws 9, 24
and 307
G100 Selling expense i 4481 - i [6422) | 1)
G200 Administrative expense f 16017y o 14) 1770280 ([ [3)
6300 Ré&D expense ( 11,0853 1y 1,219y | 1)
450 Expected credit
impainment losses
(reversal gains) = = 4,970 -
aOan Total cperating
EXPensEs i 176.00%3% (15 199699y (__15)
6900 Owperating income ___ERITR il 293,535 22

Non-operating income and
expenses {(Notes 4, 12, 20, 24

and 30}
7100 Interest ingome 2,352 % 1,424 t
TOL0 Oither income 6,333 - 3.594 .
7020 Oither gains and losses i 2,665 . i 18379 ( 1)
T050 Financial cost i 14082 ( 1) 98y (1)
TG0 Share of profits or lnsses

of associates and joint
ventures accounted for

using the equity method | [E532)y {__ 2} | L 476 =
TOO0 Tatal non-operating
income and
expenses i 26594y (_3) 24685y (__2)
700 Met income before ax 61,584 § 270,870 0
7930  Income tax expense (Notes 4
and 23} (—_16252) | L) 3ITa02y  {__3)
8200  Net Income for the period 45,332 4 233,568 17

{conlimued )
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{continued from previous page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated fmancial statements.

Chairman: Li, Su-Pai Manager: Wang, Hsin-Wei
2 =T
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222 Izl
Code Amount % A oaint D
CHher comprehansive profit and
loss (Motes 4, 22 and 25)
LERRI ltems that will not be
reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
g3l Unrealized gain'{loss)
an inyesiments in
BUILY INstruments s
Farr valuwe through
oher comprehensive
income i 133 - 111 =
83449 Ivgnme taxes related to
items that are nat
reclassified &7 - i 221 -
[ 268 ) B %9 .
R3&D frems that may be
subsequently raclassified
under profit or Joss:
B3t Exchangre differences
o translating the
fimancial statemenis
of foreign operations 29 R0k s { 27083 2}
g109 [ncome taxes related to
items tihet ore
reclassified i R . 2414 o
25061 2 { 24669 ) 2}
2300 Other comprehansive
income for the
current period (net of
=) 25,683 2 [} 24580 ) 2]
8500  Total comprehensive income for
the year § 71028 § 5208788  _Is
R Mat income attribatables 1o
Rl Orwners of the Company & 26,04 2 § 188,047 14
Balh MWonscontrolling interzst 19283 2 45351 3
54533 . 233368 17
B0 Total comprehensive meoms
atiributable o
BTI0 Owners of the Company £ 41,138 3 3 178,448 13
BT Mon-contralling interzst 29 ERE 3 30,340 2
B TL0 = i 208 TEE kel
Eamnings per share (Note 26}
a7Ed Basic 5 .59 i 4.24
LEs0 [luifesd B _0.5% 3 4.2

Accounting Manager: Lee, Yu-Hsuan
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SUPERIOR PLATING .. LTD. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements ot Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
Unit: NT$ thousand

_ Code _ 022 2021
Cash fow from operating activies

A LG000 Mei income before tax For the vear £ 6l,584 5 270,870
A2DO10 Incomelexpenses ems:
A20100 Depreciation expense 137,978 121343
A0200 Amartization expense [1%2 §53
A20300 Expected credit impairment losses

{reversal gamng) - { 4,970
A 20400 Met lass of financial agsets at fair

value through profit or loss 1488 613
AZO) Financial cost 14,082 9948
AZ1200 Intersst income i 2.351) i [,424)
AZ1300 Dividend incoirie i 1,732 i 028y
AZ2304 Share of profits of losses of

associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity

method 18,532 1476
A22500 Property, plant and equipment loss 58 1,857
A23700 Loss for market price decline and

obsolete and 2low-moving

inventories 215 BT
A24100 Met foreign exchange (gain) loss i 3414 f.059
AZR000 Net changes in operating assets and

liabalities

A3L1L5 Financial assets mandatorily at far

vilue through profit or loss i 49,420 T
A1 Mntes receivable 1066 { EFLR]
AJLLE) Accounts receivable (99,451 { LBOT5)
A3LLa0 Accounts receivable - related parties I, 48 | L9273
AJLIED Other receivables ( 4% 53
ATE200 [mventories [ f,600 ) i 7067
A3L230 Prepavment 24603 { T.082)
A32125 Contract liabilities [ 812} 763
A3Z150 Accounts pavahle [ 12,531} \ | 6,644 )
A2 TED Accounts payable - related partics [ 2.267) 4,230
AJ2180 Other payables | 64,686 ) 15,5059
A32190 Other payables - related parties [ 2,TDE) 2.647
A32230 Other current liabilities [ 139 G
AN Cash flow from operating activities 294,333 355,982
A3Z1I00 Interest received 2352 424
AJII00 Irterest paid [ [3,584 ) i 2,808

{continued)
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{continued from previous page)

_ Code

A33 500 Income tax paid

AAAA Met cash generated from operating

activities
Cash Mow from investing activities

BO1800 Acquisition of joint venture

BO2700 Mcquisition of property, plant and
equipment

BO2800 Proceed from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

B3 700 Increase in refundable deposina

BOAE0D [Fecrease in refundable deposits

B 500 Acquisition of intangible assets

BOG 500 Increase in oiher finsancial assets

ROGEO0 Decrease in other financial assets

BOT100 Increase in prepayments for equipment

BOT&00 Other dividends received

BBEBEB Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Co0 1o Increase of short=term borrow ngs

CO0200 Decrease in shorl-term borrowings

01600 Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Co1von Repayment of long-term borrowings

CO3000 Guarantee deposits received

O3 100 Guarantee deposits refunded

CO4020 Repayment of principal portion of lease
liahilities

Cl4500 Dividend paid to the owners of the
Coarmpany

CO4900 Treasury stock buyhack cost

CO5800 Change in non-¢controlling interests

Ci000 Cash dividend paid 1o nes-controlling
interests

CCCC Met cash generated by (used in)

financing activities

DDOD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

EEEE Wet increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the yeir

EGD 100

Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the
Nedr

E0O200

22 2021
(32386} [ 6.208)
250,015 341210
- i 63,000

i 76,256 { 175454)
[,251 -

i 15,052 { 45329
[, 154 37,280

i 3T { 351)
i 30,217 { 1.113)
107,219 =
{ 20241 ) { 12,573)
_ 1,73 93
(__2L744) (__25%3511)
20,000 133,382
(120,848 i 18,361
40, (00 55 444
£ 33,121 { 9,063 )
122 .

i 14,670 -
(  48,662) ( 43631)
( TR963) [ 35513)
i 19,026 i 30,438
- L 0,606
a4 ) -
{___257.371) 62226
16,222 i 807

[ 13,0783 143,017
299,191 156074
286013 i_299.191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Chairman: Li, Su-Pai  Manager: Wang, Hsin-Wei
‘i j_\ BT
12 )

139

Accounting Manager: Lee, Yu-Hsuan
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SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Unless otherwise noted, the amount is in NTD Thousand)

Company History

SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company’’) was incorporated on September 26, 2008 under the original name of Taiwan
Huidu Industries Co., Ltd. The Company changed to current name on December 8, 2009.
The Company is mainly engaged in the wholesale of electrical appliances, wholesale of
industrial catalysts and the management and service of surface treatment technology.

The Company’s shares have been listed and traded on the TPEx since March 30,
2015.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, the
functional currency of the Company.

Approval Date and Procedures of The Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board
of Directors on March 20, 2023.

New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Adopted

Initial application of the amendments to the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations
(IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) (collectively, “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC).

The initial application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into
effect by the FSC did not have a significant effect on the accounting policies of the
Group.

The IFRSs endorsed by the FSC with effective date starting 2023

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Effective date Issued by
Interpretations IASB
Amendments to [AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting January 1, 2023 (Note 1)
Policies”
Amendments to [AS 8 “Definition of Accounting January 1, 2023 (Note 2)
Estimates”
Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to January 1, 2023 (Note 3)
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

Note 1: Amendments are applicable to the reporting period beginning on or after
Sunday, January 1, 2023.

Note 2: Amendments are applicable to the changes on accounting estimates and
accounting policies for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023.
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Note 3: Except for the temporary difference of lease and decommissioning
obligations recognized as deferred income tax on January 1, 2022, the
amendments are applicable to transactions occurred after January 1, 2022.

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue,
the Group has assessed that the application of other standards and interpretations will
not have a material impact on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.

The IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Effective Date Issued by
Interpretations IASB (Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or To be determined by IASB
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture”
Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases Liability in a Sale  January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
and Leaseback”
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 “First time of application of  January 1, 2023
IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 —comparison information”
Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities January 1, 2024
as Current or Non-Current”
Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-Current Liabilities with ~ January 1, 2024
Contractual Terms”

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above-mentioned newly issued/ amended/
revised standards or interpretations are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: A seller-lessee shall apply the Amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of IFRS 16.

Up to the reporting date, the Group will continue evaluating other influences on
financial status and performance resulting from amendments to rules or explanations.
The related influences are to be disclosed once the evaluation is accomplished.

Summary of Significant Accounting Polices

Statement of Compliance

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements is based on the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”
and IFRSsaccepted and effectively published by FSC.

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial instruments that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies below.
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The fair value measurements are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value measurement inputs are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

1. Level I inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

2. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

3. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities
Current assets include:

1. Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance
sheet date; and

3. Cash and cash equivalent (unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the date of statement
of financial position).

Current liabilities include:
1. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;
2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and

Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to
more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as
non-current.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and the entities controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). Income
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisitions up to the effective dates of disposals, as appropriate. Adjustments have
been made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to allow their accounting
policies to be consistent with those used by the Group. During the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, the transaction, account balance, revenue and
expense among entities have been eliminated completely. The total comprehensive
income/loss of the subsidiaries are attributed to the owner’s and non-controlling
interests of the Company, and the same is true when the non-controlling interests
consequently become loss balance.

Changes in equity in the ownership of subsidiaries which do not result in loss of
control are disposed of as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value paid or received is
recognized directly in equity and attributed to shareholders of the Company.
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When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between: (1) the aggregate of the fair
value of consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest at the date
when control is lost; and (2) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. The
Company shall account for all amounts recognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary on the same basis as would be required if the Company had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

For details of subsidiaries, shareholding ratio and operating items, please refer
to Note 11, Table 5 and Table 6 of Note 34.

Foreign currency

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies
(foreign currencies) other than each individual Group entity’s functional currency are
recognized at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency monetary amount is translated at the closing rate at each date
of the balance sheet. Exchange differences arising from settlement or translation are
recognized as profit or loss at the period.

Non-monetary foreign currencies held at fair value at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction; however, non-monetary foreign currencies held
at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items carried at historical cost is reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction and will not be calculated again.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities from
foreign operation, including subsidiaries and associates whose location or currency
are different from the Company, are translated into the presentation currency, the
New Taiwan dollar, at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates at the period.
The resulting currency translation differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and attributed to the owner and non-controlling interests, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are comprised of raw materials and other materials. Inventories are
stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The lower of cost and net realizable
value is based on the individual inventory items. Net realized value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Inventories are recorded at the
weighted-average cost on the balance sheet date.
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Investments in associates and joint ventures

The associates are entities which are material to the Group, but not subsidiaries
or joint venture companies. A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture.

The Group uses the equity method to account for its investments in associates
and joint ventures.

Under the equity method, an investment is initially recognized in the statements
of financial positional cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates and joint ventures as
well as the distribution received. The Group also recognizes the changes in the
Group’s share of the equity of associates and joint ventures.

When the Group subscribes to additional shares in an associate or a joint
venture at a percentage different from its existing ownership percentage, the resulting
carrying amount of the investment differs from the amount of the Group’s
proportionate interest in the net assets of the associate or joint venture. The Group
records such a difference as an adjustment to investments with the corresponding
amount charged or credited to capital surplus — changes in the net equity of the
associate and joint venture accounted for using the equity method and investment
accounted for using the equity method. If the Group’s ownership interest is reduced
due to its additional subscription of the new shares of the associate and joint venture,
the proportionate amount of the gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate and joint venture is reclassified to
profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the investee had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. When the adjustment should be debited to
capital surplus, but the capital surplus recognized from investments accounted for by
using the equity method is insufficient, the shortage is debited to retained earnings.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate and joint venture (which includes any carrying
amount of the investment accounted for by the equity method and long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate and joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses and liabilities are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal obligations, or constructive obligations, or made payments on behalf of that
associate or joint venture.

The entire carrying amount of an investment is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognized shall not be allocated to any asset that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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When a group entity transacts with its associate and joint venture, profit and
loss resulting from the transactions with the associate and joint venture are
recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent that
interests in the associate and the joint venture are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at costs and subsequently
measured at costs of the amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. The depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives. Every significant item is depreciated separately. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method at least at the end of
each reporting period, and with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for
on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
profit or loss.

Intangible assets
1.  Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment loss. Amortization is recognized on
a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, residual values, and
amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

2. Derecognition

On derecognition of an intangible asset, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews whether there is any
indication that its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount, with the resulting impairment loss recognized in
profit or loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of an
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but only to the extent of the carrying amount (less amortization expenses or
depreciation expenses) that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. The reversal of
impairment loss is recognized as profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities shall be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

1. Financial asset

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis.

(1) Classification of measurement

The financial assets held by the Group include financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, financial assets at amortized cost, and
investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are mandatory
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets that are
mandatory measured at fair value through profit or loss include
investments in equity instruments that are not designated by the Group
as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income or loss
and all other debt instruments that are not classified as investments
measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income or loss.

146



Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value. The dividends and interests earned are recognized in
other income and interest income, respectively. The profits or losses
arising from remeasurement are recognized in other income and losses.
Please refer to Note 29 for the fair value measurement.

. Financial assets at amortized cost

When the financial assets invested by the Group satisfies the
following two criteria at the same time, it is classified as the amortized
cost financial assets:

a. Where the financial assets are held under certain business model,
and the purpose of such model is to hold the financial assets in
order to collect contract cash flows; and

b. Where contract terms generated cash flow of a specific date, and
such cash flow is completely for the payment of the interest of
principle and external circulating principal amount.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and
cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable (including
related parties), other receivables, other financial assets — current,
other financial assets — non-current and refundable deposits. When the
recognition commences, effective interest method is used to determine
the carrying amount less any amortized cost of depreciation. Any
exchange gains and losses are recognized as gains and losses.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of such a financial asset, except for:

a. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, for which
interest income is calculated by applying the credit adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets;
and

b. Financial assets that are not credit impaired on purchase or
origination but have subsequently become credit impaired, for
which interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets in
subsequent reporting periods.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when the issuer or the
borrower has significant financial difficulty or risk in default; or that it
is becoming probable that the borrower will undergo bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization; or an active market for that financial
asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties.

Cash equivalents include time deposits with original maturities
within 3 months from the date of acquisition, which are highly liquid,
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These cash equivalents are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.
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C. Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate
investments in equity instruments that is not held for trading and not
recognized as contingent consideration as at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Subsequently
the changes in fair value are reported in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of investments, the
accumulated profit or loss is directly transferred to retained earnings
and it is not reclassified to profit or loss.

The dividend from investments in equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
profit or loss upon the Group’s right to receive payment is established,
except for apparently the dividend representing the recovery of the
partial investment cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the date of each balance sheet, the Group reviews expected credit
losses to estimate the impairment loss of financial assets, including
accounts receivable, other receivables, other financial assets and
refundable deposits measured at amortized cost.

The loss allowance for accounts receivable is measured at an
amount equal to useful lives expected credit losses. Other financial assets
are assessed to determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since the original recognition. If there is no significant increase,
then the allowance loss is recognized according to the 12-month expected
credit loss. If it has increased significantly, then allowance loss is
recognized according to the lifetime expected credit loss.

Expected credit losses are weighted average credit losses with the
probability of default events. The 12-month expected credit losses are
expected credit losses that result from default events possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Lifetime expected credit losses result
from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instruments.

For the purpose of internal controls on credit risk, without
considering the collaterals it holds, the Group determines the following
events as a breach of contract:

A. There is internal or outside information prevails that it is not possible
the borrower pays off the debt.

B. The overdue exceeds 365 days, unless reasonable and supportable
information indicates that a delayed default basis is more appropriate.
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All impairment losses on financial assets have decreased their
carrying amount through contra accounts.

(3) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes the financial assets only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets to another entity.

On derecognition of financial assets at amortized cost in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss. On
derecognition of Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred
directly to retained earnings, without recycling through profit or loss.

2. Equity instrument

Equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

The repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized in
and deducted directly from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

3. Financial liability
(1) Follow-up measurement

All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities

On the derecognition of financial liabilities, the difference between
their carrying amount and the consideration paid and payable, including
any transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities, is recognized as profit or
loss.

Provision

The amount recognized as a provision is measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. A provision is
measured at the estimate of the cash flows to settle obligation.

Revenue recognition
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The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation and
recognizes the revenue when each of the obligations is satisfied after the customer
has identified it.

Processing services provided

Processing service income is recognized when the services are performed.
Unearned revenue is recognized as a contract liability until it meets the criteria for
revenue recognition as described above.

Technical services provided

Technical service income is recognized when the services are performed.
Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease.

The Company as lessee

Except for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value and therefore
qualified for recognition exemption, and short-term leases whose lease payments are
recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis during the lease period, the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of all other leases are recognized at the lease
starting date.

The right-of-use asset is measured at the original cost (the original measured
amount of the lease liability), and subsequently measured at the amount of cost
minus accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted
for the re-measured lease liability. Right-of-use assets are presented on a separate
line in the consolidated balance sheets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement dates to the earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use
assets or the end of the lease terms.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the original lease payment
(fixed payment). The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate in a lease
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is
a change in a lease term, the Group remeasures the lease liabilities with a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use assets. However, if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero, any remaining amount of the
remeasurement is recognized as profit or loss. Lease liabilities are presented on a
separate line in the parent company only balance sheets.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognized as an expense for the current period.
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Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that

the Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses

already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

(XVII) Employee benefits

1.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in
a period and should be recognized as expenses in that period when the
employees render service.

Post-employment benefits

For defined contribution plans, the amount of contribution payable in
respect of service rendered by employees in that period should be recognized
as expenses.

(XVIII) Income Taxes

The income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

1.

Tax currently payable

The Group has determined the current income (losses) and calculated
taxes payable (receivable) in accordance with regulations established by the
jurisdiction for tax return.

According to Income Tax Act in Republic of China, an additional income
tax levied at unappropriated earnings are recognized in shareholders’ annual
meeting.

Income tax payable for prior period is adjusted to the current income tax.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences or loss carryforwards to the extent that taxable profit is probably
available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group can
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deductible
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temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognized to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits to
realize the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the date of
balance sheet and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. The deferred tax assets originally not recognized is also
reviewed at the date of balance sheet and increased to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
recovered, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of balanced sheet. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that arise from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the date of balance sheet, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except the
current and deferred tax that relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity are recognized respectively in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Significant Accounting Assumptions and Judgments, and Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factors that are considered
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Group has taken the possible impact of COVID-19 on domestic development
and economic environment into consideration on significant accounting estimates of
cash flow estimation, growth rate, discount rate and profitability. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period when the estimates are revised if the revisions
affect only that period. If revisions affect both current and future periods, the accounting
estimates are recognized in the current and future periods.

Significant Accounting Assumptions and Judgments, and Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

Estimated impairment of financial assets

The provision for impairment of account receivables is based on assumptions on
probability of default and loss given default. The Group uses judgment in making these
assumptions and in selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s historical experience, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates. For details of the key assumptions and inputs used, see Note 9. Where the
actual future cash inflows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Cash on hand and working capital $ 1,519 $ 1,498
Demand deposits 210,103 297,693
Cash equivalents (investments
with an initial maturity of less
than three months)
Time deposits 74.391 -
$ 286,013 $ 299,191

Range of interest rates for bank deposits as at:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Bank deposits 0.01%~4.00% 0.01%~0.35%
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Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Financial asset — non-current
Mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial
assets
- Wealth management

product (Note) $ 68,407 $ 18,949

Financial asset — non-current
Mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial
assets
- Equity funds from
private placement $ 27,432 $ 30,020

Note: The wealth management products are structured deposits with guaranteed
principal and floating proceeds issued by banks in Mainland China.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current
Investment in equity instrument $ 264 $ 600
Investment in equity instrument
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current
Foreign investment
Listed shares
Dufu Technology Corp.
BERHAD
Common stock $ 264 $ 600

The Group’s investment in Dufu Technology Corp. The purpose of the investment
in BERHAD common stock is not for making short-term profit; therefore, the
management of the Group deems if the short-term volatility at fair value of such
investments recognized in profit or loss is not consistent with the aforementioned
investment plan, it will be determined that such investments are measured through other
comprehensive income at fair value.
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Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Notes receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Arising from operations $ - $ 1,048
Less: Allowance for
impairment loss - -

5 - 1,048
Accounts receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Gross carrying amount $ 290,989 $ 482,705
Less: Allowance for
impairment loss ( 2.288) ( 2.258)
$ 288,701 $ 480,447
Other receivables
Other $ 22 $ 18

Notes receivable

In determining the recoverability of notes receivable, the Group considered any
change in the credit quality of the notes receivable from the date credit was initially
granted to the end of the reporting period. The Group continued to trace and refer to
past default experience of counterparties and analyzed their current financial position
in order to evaluate whether there was a significant increase in credit risk of notes
receivable, and expected credit loss. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group
did not need to recognize expected credit loss on notes receivable.

Aging analysis of notes receivable:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Not overdue $ - $ 1,048

The above aging schedule was based on the number of days past due.
Accounts receivable

The Group’s average credit period for merchandise sales is 30180 days, and no
interest is accrued on accounts receivable.

To mitigate credit risk, the management of the Group has designated functional
working group responsible for decision on the line of credit, credit approval and
other supervision to ensure proper action has been taken to collect overdue accounts
receivable. In addition, the collectible amount of accounts receivable of the Group
shall be reviewed individually at the date of balance sheet to ensure the uncollectible
accounts receivable has been listed to appropriate impairment loss. Accordingly, the
management of the Group considers the Group’s credit risk has significantly
decreased.
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The loss allowance for accounts receivable of the Group is measured at an
amount equal to useful lives expected credit losses. The expected credit losses on
trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by considering
forward-looking factors such as the past default experience of the debtor and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the provision for matrix based on past due status is not further
distinguished according to the Group’s different customer base to set the expected
credit loss.

If any evidence shows the counterparty faces significant financial difficulty and
the collectible amount cannot be reasonably expected, the Group will directly offset
the relevant accounts receivable but keep track of the receivables. The recovered
amount is recognized in profit or loss.

The following table details the loss allowance of trade receivables based on the
Group’s provision matrix:

December 31, 2022

1-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121-365 days More than 365
Not overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue days overdue Total

The expected credit

loss rate 0.06%~0.85% 0.75%~13.61% 17.89% 12.93% 100% 100%
Gross carrying

amount $ 245,054 $ 44,616 $ 778 $ - $ 275 $ 266 $ 290,989
Loss allowance

(lifetime ECLs) ( 973 ) ( 705 ) ( 69 ) - ( 275)  ( 266 ) ( 2288 )

Amortized cost § 244081 h 43911 h 709 h - h - h - § 288701

December 31, 2021

1-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121-365 days More than 365
Not overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue days overdue Total

The expected credit

loss rate 0.06%~0.63% 0.66%~2.05% 12.82% 17.31% 34.12%~100% 100%
Gross carrying

amount $ 446,346 $ 32,870 $ 607 $ 565 $ 2,307 $ 10 $ 482,705
Loss allowance

(lifetime ECLs) ( 709 ) ( 396)  ( 78) ( 97) ( 968 ) ( 10) ( 2258 )

Amortized cost S 445637 h 32,474 h 529 h 468 h 1,339 h - S 480447

The movements of the loss allowance of accounts receivable were as follows:

2022 2021

Balance at the beginning of the
year $ 2,258 $ 7,404
Less:Reversal of impairment

loss - ( 4,970)
Less: Amounts written off

(Note) - ( 127)
Foreign currency translation
differences 30 ( 49)
Balance at the end of the year $ 2,288 $ 2,258

Note: In 2021, the Group assessed that the past due accounts receivable were not
recoverable, so the related accounts receivable and allowance for losses were
written off.

Other receivables

Other receivables primarily included the advances.
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XI.

In determining the recoverability of other receivables, the Group considered any
change in the credit quality of the other receivables from the date credit was initially
granted to the end of the reporting period. The Group continued to trace and refer to
past default experience of counterparties and analyzed their current financial position
in order to evaluate whether there was a significant increase in credit risk of other
receivables since the original recognition, and expected credit loss. As of December
31, 2022 and 2021, the Group did not need to recognize expected credit loss on other

receivables.
Inventories
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Raw Materials $ 51,983 $ 44,796
Materials 2,097 1,181
$ 54,080 $ 45977
The nature of cost of goods sold is as follows:
2022 2021
Cost of inventories sold $ 294,052 $ 275,004
Loss for market price decline and
obsolete and slow-moving
mventories 215 807
$ 294,267 $ 275,811
Subsidiary
D Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements include subsidiaries which are as follows:

Proportion of

Ownership (%)
December December Explan
Investor Subsidiary Main Business 31,2022 31,2021 ation
Superior Plating Superior Plating Corp. Investment Holding 100% 100% (1) (5)
Technology Co., Ltd.
Superior Plating Corp. Extensive Management " 100% 100% (1)
Consultant Inc.
Superior Plating Technology " 78% 78% (1) (6)
Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Superior Drilling (HK) Limited " 100% 100% (2)
SUPERIOR CENTURY (HK) " - - 2@
LIMITED
Extensive Management Top-Team Technology (Shen Electroplating for 100% 100% (2)
Consultant Inc. Zhen) Ltd. components in
computer
peripherals,
communication
equipment and
consumer electronics
Superior Drilling (HK) Superior Industries (Shen Zhen) Surface Treatment 100% 100% (2)
Limited Co., Ltd.
Superior Plating Superior Plating Technology Surface Treatment 66% 66%  (3)(7)
Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ®)

(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Remark:

(M
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The major business risk is exchange rate risk.



)

3)

4

6))

(6)

(7)

®)

The major business risks are political risk and exchange rate risk arising from
changes in political regulations and cross-strait relations.

The major business risks are political risk and exchange rate risk arising from
changes in political regulations.

The Board of Directors resolved on March 27, 2017 to dissolve and liquidate
SUPERIOR CENTURY(HK) LIMITED, and the liquidation was completed in
March 2021.

In October and November 2021, the Company increased the investment in its
subsidiary Superior Plating Corp. by NT$19,682 thousand and NT$14,110
thousand (US$710 thousand and US$507 thousand), respectively.

In October and November 2021, Superior Plating Corp. increased its
investment at a percentage different from its existing ownership percentage in
its subsidiary Superior Plating Technology Holding (Thailand) Co. in the
amount of NT$19,682 thousand and NT$14,110 thousand (US$710 thousand
and US$507 thousand), respectively, resulting in an increase in the percentage
of ownership from 72% to 78%. Since this transaction did not change Superior
Plating Corp.’s control over Superior Plating Technology Holding (Thailand)
Co., Ltd., the transaction was considered as an equity transaction, the Company
recognized an increase in capital surplus of NT$393 thousand in 2021 as a
result of the aforementioned subsidiary transaction.

In October and November 2021, Superior Plating Technology Holding
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. increased its investment at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage in its subsidiary Superior Plating Technology
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. in the amount of NT$19,682 thousand and NT$14,110
thousand (THB 23,792 thousand and 16,480 thousand), respectively, resulting
in an increase in the percentage of ownership from 64% to 66%. Since this
transaction did not change Plating Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd.’s
control over Superior Plating Technology (Thailand) Co., Ltd., the transaction
was considered as an equity transaction, the Company recognized a decrease in
capital surplus of NT$25 thousand in 2021 as a result of the aforementioned
subsidiary transaction.

The non-controlling interest shareholders have contributed capital of NT$8,336
thousand and NT$2,270 thousand (THB 10,076 thousand and THB 2,652
thousand) in October and November 2021, respectively.
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(I1) Details of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Proportion of Ownership and Voting Rights
Held by Non-controlling Interests

Subsidiary December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Superior Plating Technology
Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 22% 22%
Superior Plating Technology
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. 34% 34%

See Table 5 following the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the
information on the places of incorporation and principal businesses.

Profit or loss allocated to

non-controlling interests Non-controlling interest
December 31, December 31,
Subsidiary 2022 2021 2022 2021
Superior Plating
Technology Holding

(Thailand) Co., Ltd. $ 5,725 $ 14,926 $ 50,829 $ 42,250
Superior Plating

Technology
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. 13.563 30,425 115,312 96,599
Total $ 19,288 $ 45,351 § 166,141 $§ 138,849

The following summarized financial information of each subsidiary is prepared
based on amounts before elimination of intercompany transactions:

Superior Plating Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current assets $ 1,938 $ 8
Non-current assets 224,442 188,020
Current liabilities ( 172) ( 3)
Equity $ 226,208 $ 188,025
Equity attributable to:
Owners of the Company $ 175,379 $ 145,775
Non-controlling interest of
Superior Plating
Technology Holding
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. 50,829 42,250
$ 226,208 $ 188,025
(continued)
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(continued from previous page)

Net Income for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Net income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest of

Superior Plating
Technology Holding
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest of
Superior Plating
Technology Holding
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Cash flow
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate
changes
Net cash inflow

Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests

December 31, 2022

$ 25,480
14,346
39,826

$ 19,755

5.725

$ 25480
$ 30,877
8,949
39,826
($  1,103)
2,690
(_ 87)
$ 1,500
$ 370

Superior Plating Technology (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

(continued)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

$ 157,022
293,045
( 65,081)
(_ 45232)
$ 339,754

$ 55,141
(_ 18.212)
$ 36,929

$ 40,215

14,926
$ 55,141

§ 27,046

9.883

$ 36929

December 31, 2021

$ 169,277
246,412
( 81,762)
(_ 49.308)
$ 284.619



(continued from previous page)

Equity attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest of
Superior Plating
Technology (Thailand)
Co., Itd.

Operating revenue

Net Income for the period
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Net income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest of

Superior Plating
Technology (Thailand)
Co., Itd.

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest of
Superior Plating
Technology (Thailand)
Co., Itd.

Cash flow
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate
changes
Net cash inflow

Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests

161

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

(
(

$ 224,442

115,312
$ 339,754

$ 285,730

$ 39,91
21,727

$ 61,688

$ 26,398

13,563
$ 39961

$ 40,751

20,937
$ 61,688

$ 115,383
29,097)
48,752)

10,130
$ 47,664

$ 2224

$ 188,020

96.599
$ 284,619

303,429

$ 85,569
(_ 28.180)
57,389

§ 55,144

30.425
85,569

$ 36,932

20,457
57,389

$ 85,251
( 100,034)
47,008

(_ 3.657)
$ 28568

5 -



XI1I. Investments accounted for using equity method

ey

oy

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Investment in associates $ 43,453 $ 42,594
Investments in joint ventures 39.487 58.419
$ 82,940 $ 101,013
Investment in associates
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Associate that is not
individually material $ 43453 $ 42,594
Aggregate information of individually immaterial associates
2022 2021
The Group’s share of
Net Income for the period $ 400 $ 3,105
Other comprehensive
income - -
Total comprehensive
income $ 400 $ 3,105

The Group’s percentage of ownership in individual immaterial associates is less
than 20%. However, after considering the actual operating conditions and
management, the Group judged that the Group has the substantial ability to influence
the relevant activities of the associates and therefore accounted for it using the equity
method.

Please refer to Note 31 for information on pledges provided by the Group to
financial institutions.

Investments in joint ventures

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Joint venture that is not
individually material $ 39,487 $ 58,419
Aggregate information of individually immaterial joint venture
2022 2021
The Group’s share of
Net loss for the period ($ 18,932) ($ 4,581)
Other comprehensive
income - -
Total comprehensive
income ($_ 18.932) ($_ 4.581)

The Group entered into an investment agreement with Amulaire Thermal

Technology, Inc. on April 30, 2021 to establish a joint venture, Ever Superior
Technologies Corporation. According to the agreement, both parties shall deposit
NT$30,000 thousand, NT$30,000 thousand and NT$120,000 thousand of fund in three
installments on or before May 27, July 31 and November 30, 2021. Under the
agreement, the Group and Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. contributed 51% and
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13.

49% of the capital in Phase I and Phase II, respectively. In Phase III, besides the Group
and Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. contributing 27% and 20.5%, respectively,
Evergreen Aviation Technologies Corp should contribute 52.5% of the capital as well in
Phase II. After the completion of the third phase of the capital contribution, the Group,
Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. and Evergreen Aviation Technologies Corp should
hold 35%, 30% and 35% of the Ever Superior Technologies Corporation’s equity,
respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Group had invested NT$63,000 thousand in
the aforementioned joint venture and held 35% of its shares in it.

Property, plant and equipment

Used by the Company

Machines and Transportation Office Lease Other
Self-Owned Building Equipment Equipment equipment improvement equipment Total

Cost
Balance at January 1,
2022 $ 84,442 $ 297,555 $ 656,015 $ 8,520 $ 3,927 $ 3,004 $ 71,843 $ 1,125,306
Addition 5,819 10,925 51,315 421 400 - 3,386 72,266
Disposal - ( 5310)  ( 58,104) - ( 344) - ( 376)  ( 64,134)
Reclassification (Note) - 2,157 13,038 - - - 165 15,360
Exchange difference 6.310 9.944 12,178 389 - - 1,102 29,923
Balance at December

31,2022 S 96,571 $ 315271 S 674442 h 9.330 h 3,983 h 3,004 $ 76,120 $ 1178721
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance at January 1,
2022 $ - $ 129,820 $ 412,643 $ 5,287 $ 2,889 $ 2,711 $ 50,969 $ 604,319
Depreciation expense - 17,785 67,466 1,294 200 6 5,943 92,694
Disposal - ( 4,059) ( 58,104) - ( 286) - ( 376)  ( 62,825)
Exchange difference - 2,946 6,113 264 - - 763 10,086
Balance at December

31,2022 M - S 146492 $ 428118 M 6,845 M 2,803 M 2,717 $ 57,299 S 644274
Net at December 31,

2022 $ 96,571 $ 168779 $ 246324 h 2,485 h 1,180 h 287 h 18,821 $§ 534447
Cost
Balance at January 1,
2021 $ - $ 302,117 $ 625,611 $ 8,037 $ 3,645 $ 3,004 $ 63,424 $ 1,005,838
Addition 89,197 11,329 50,343 1,058 282 - 12,232 164,441
Disposal - ( 212)  ( 21,422) - - ( 3,780)  ( 25,414)
Reclassification (Note) - - 11,847 - - - 557 12,404
Exchange difference ( 4.755) ( 15,679)  ( 10.364)  ( 575) - - ( 590)  ( 31,963)
Balance at December

31,2021 $ 84442 $ 297,555 $ 656,015 M 8,520 M 3,927 M 3,004 §  71.843 $ 1,125,306
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance at January 1,
2021 $ - $ 116,537 $ 367,859 $ 4,475 $ 2,716 $ 2,706 $ 49,709 $ 544,002
Depreciation expense - 16,043 67,124 1,158 173 5 5,065 89,568
Disposal - ( 86) ( 20,065 ) - - - ( 3,406)  ( 23,557)
Exchange difference - ( 2.674) ( 2275)  ( 346) - - ( 399)  ( 5.694)
Balance at December

31,2021 S - $§  129.820 S 412,643 h 5,287 h 2.889 h 2,711 $ 50969 $ 604319
Net at December 31,

2021 $ 84442 § 167,735 § 243372 h 3233 h 1,038 h 293 $ 20874 $ 5200987

Note: Reclassification from other non-current assets — prepayments for equipment.

No impairment loss was recognized or reversed in 2022 and 2021.
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Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful life:

Building 10 to 30 years
Building improvement 2 to 10 years
Machines and Equipment 2 to 10 years
Transportation Equipment 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Lease improvement 10 years
Other equipment 3 to 10 years

Please refer to Note 31 for information on pledges provided by the Group to
financial institutions.

XIV. Lease agreement

D Right-of-use assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying amount of
right-of-use assets
Lan (Notes 1 and 2) $ 11,888 $ 12,359
Building 113,219 73,476
Transportation Equipment 3.676 6,176
$ 128,783 $ 92,011
2022 2021
Addition to right-of-use assets $ 80,025 $ 60,104
Depreciation expense of
right-of-use assets
Land $ 608 $ 594
Building 42,470 30,988
Transportation Equipment 2,206 193
$ 45,284 $ 31,775

Note 1: Land use rights in Mainland China, for which the Group has obtained a
state-owned land use permit.

Note 2: Please refer to Note 31 for information on pledges provided by the Group to
financial institutions.

No impairment loss was recognized or reversed in 2022 and 2021.
D) Lease liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying amount of lease
liabilities
Current $ 22247 $ 26,366
Non-current $ 80,519 $ 43,224

Ranges of discount rates for lease liabilities are as follow:
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(I10)

(V)

XV.

December 31, 2022
1.73%~5.91%
1.67%

December 31, 2021
3.47%~5.91%
1.67%

Building
Transportation Equipment

Material leases and terms

The Group leases buildings and transportation equipment mainly for the use of
factory and business premise with lease terms of 3 years. Upon the termination of the
lease period, the Group has no bargain purchase option for leased objectives.

Other lease information
2022 2021
Expenses relating to short-term
leases $ 831 $ 655
Lease expense for low-value
assets $ 426 $ 315
Total cash outflow for leases ($_53,354) ($_47.802)

The Group opts for recognition exemption, instead of as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, for the short-term leases of computer equipment, as well as computer
equipment that is qualified as a low value asset.

Other intangible assets

Computer Total
software Patent

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 6,476 $ 1,500 $ 7,976
Intangible assets acquired

separately 374 - 374
Disposal - ( 1.500) ( 1.500)
Balance at December 31,
2022 $ 6,850 $ - $ 6,850
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 3,756 $ 1,246 $ 5,002
Amortization expense 938 254 1,192
Disposal - ( 1.500) ( 1.500)
Balance at December 31,
2022 $ 4,694 $ - $ 4,694
Net at December 31, 2022 $ 2,156 $ - $ 2,156

(continued)

165



(continued from previous page)

XVI.

Computer Total
software Patent

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 7,977 $ 1,500 $ 9,477
Intangible assets acquired

separately 351 - 351
Disposal ( 1.852) - ( 1.852)
Balance at December 31,
2021 $ 6476 $ 1,500 $ 7976
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 4,903 $ 1,096 $ 5,999
Amortization expense 705 150 855
Disposal ( 1.852) - ( 1.852)
Balance at December 31,
2021 $ 3,756 $ 1,246 $ 5,002
Net at December 31, 2021 $ 2,720 $ 254 $ 2974

Amortization is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful life:

Computer software
Patent

Other assets

Current
Other financial assets — current
(Note)

Restricted assets
Refundable deposits

Non-current
Prepayments for equipment
Refundable deposits (Note) (Note
30)
Other financial assets —
non-current (Note)
Restricted assets

Interest Rate Range
Restricted assets

December 31, 2022

3—-10 years
10 years

December 31, 2021

$ 47,678 $ 97,989
_ 4837 9351
$ 52515 $ 107,340
$ 53,739 $ 38,899

15,832 14,921
- - _19.453
$ 69,571 $ 73273

0.40%~4.50%

0.03%~1.70%

Note: The Group considers the historical experience of the debtors and the current
market conditions to measure the 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses on other financial assets and refundable deposits. As of
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(1)

December 31, 2022 and 2021, no expected credit losses are required to be
recognized for other financial assets and refundable deposits held by the Group.

Please refer to Note 31 for information on pledges provided by the Group to
financial institutions.

Loans

Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Secured loan (Note 31) (Note)
Bank loan $ 107,054 $ 205,962
Unsecured loan
Credit loan 75.325 64,968

$ 182,379 $ 270,930

The annual interest rates on bank loans ranged from 1.88% to 6.48% and 1.65%
to 3.85% as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Note: The Group’s bank deposits, buildings and right-of-use assets — land were
pledged as collateral for the bank borrowings.

Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Secured loan (Note 31)
Bank loan $ 33,763 $ 61,496
Unsecured loan
Credit loan 40,000 -
Less: current portion ( 8,639) ( 12,188)

65,124 $ 49,308

The borrowings (loans) of the Group include:

December 31, 2022 December 31

,2021

Financing period and interest repayment Interest rate
Financing Provider Collateral method Amount % Amount

Interest rate
%

Cathay United Bank USD Time From 2021.4.3 to 2024.4.3; the grace $ 33,763 6.03 $ 36,127

Deposit period is six months starting from
April 3, 2021; interest is paid monthly
during the grace period; after the
grace period, the principal will be
repaid in six installments in every six
months. Repaid USD 100 thousand
for the first five installments, and the
remaining principal of USD 900
thousand will be repaid in one lump
sum in the sixth installment, with
monthly interest payments.

Cathay United Bank USD Time From 2021.4.3 to 2024.4.3; the grace - - 16,674

Deposit period is 18 months starting from
April 3, 2021; interest is paid monthly
during the grace period; after the
grace period, the principal will be
repaid in four installments in every
six months. Repaid USD 30 thousand
for the first three installments, and the
remaining principal of USD 510
thousand will be repaid in one lump
sum in the 4th installment, with
monthly interest payments. (Repaid
in advance in December 2022)

(continued)
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Financing Provider Collateral

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Financing period and interest repayment

method Amount

Interest rate

Interest rate
%

USD Time
Deposit

Mega International Commercial
Bank

First Commercial Bank None

First Commercial Bank None

XVIII. Accounts payable

Accounts payable
Arising from operations

Other liabilities

XIX.

Current
Other payables

From 2018.6.14 to 2023.6.14; the
principal and interest will be repaid in
installments in every 3 months
starting from June 14, 2018. (Repaid
in advance in June 2022)

From 2022.9.20 to 2027.9.20; the grace
period is 1 year starting from
September 20, 2022; interest is paid
monthly during the grace period; after
the grace period, the principal and
interest will be repaid in 48 equal
monthly installments.

From 2022.10.7 to 2027.10.7; the grace
period is 1 year starting from October

10,000

30,000

20, 2022; interest is paid monthly
during the grace period; after the
grace period, the principal and interest
will be repaid in 48 equal monthly
installments.

$ 73,763

December 31, 2022

$ 61,755

December 31, 2022

Salary and bonus payable $ 40,962
Tax payable 23,078
Insurance premium payable 12,863
Repairs and maintenance payable 11,180
Payables on equipment (Note 27) 8,177
Payables on environmental
expense 5,605
Dividend payable (Note 27) 8,774
Employee benefit payable 8,363
Processing payable 177
Payables on fuel expense 439
Utilities payable 2,728
Payables on professional service
fees 1,503
Meals payable 1,513
Interest payable 496
Other payables 3.160
$ 129,018
Other liabilities

Guarantee deposits
Receipts under custody
Temporary receipts

$ 4,502
1,532
4

$ 6,038
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% Amount
- 8,695

2.14

$ 61,49

December 31, 2021

76,592

December 31, 2021

$ 71,372
24,610
12,707
12,792
12,167

13,034

8,273
7,792
4,983
4,229

4,217
1,964

449
4,277

$ 182,866

$ 18,760
1,586
2

$ 20,348

3.23



XX.

XXI.

Provision

Non-current

Long-term provision for
decommissioning, restoration
and rehabilitation costs

Balance at January 1, 2022
Interest expense

Exchange difference

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at January 1, 2021
Interest expense

Exchange difference

Balance at December 31, 2021

Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

December 31, 2022

3,092

December 31, 2021

3,008

Long-term
provision for
decommissioning,
restoration and
rehabilitation costs

$ 3,008
51
33

3,092

Long-term
provision for
decommissioning,
restoration and
rehabilitation costs

$ 2949

61
(__2)

3,008

The pension system of the “Labor Pension Act” is applicable to the Company, it is
the defined contribution plan managed by the government. The Company has
contributed 6% of the monthly employee salary into the personal dedicated account
under the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

Employees in the China and Thailand subsidiaries are members of the retirement
benefit plans operated by the governments in those countries. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of salary and wages to the pension funds.
The Group is only obligated to contribute certain amounts to these government-operated

pension funds.
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XXII.  Equity
(D Share capital

Common stock

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Authorized shares (in
thousands) 100,000 100,000
Authorized capital $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Issued and paid shares (in
thousands) 44,456 44,456
Issued capital $ 444,555 $ 444,555

The Company’s board of directors resolved on October 6, 2021 to buy back
treasury shares from the stock exchange. The buyback period is from October 8,
2021 to December 2, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, 523 thousand shares have
been bought back (buyback cost is NT$30,438 thousand).

The Company’s board of directors resolved on October 6, 2022 to buy back
treasury shares from the stock exchange. The buyback period is from October 7,
2022 to December 5, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, 368 thousand shares have
been bought back (buyback cost is NT$19,029 thousand).

(I1) Capital surplus

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

May be used to offset a deficit,

distributed as cash

dividends, or transferred to

share capital (1)
Shares premium from issuance $ 177,375 $ 177,375
Premium from corporate bond
conversion 144,586 144,586
Treasury share transaction 2,993 2,993
May be used to offset a deficit
only
Change in ownership interests

in subsidiaries (2) 368 368

$ 325,322 $ 325,322

1. Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the

Company has no deficit, such capital surplus may be distributed as cash
dividends or transferred to share capital (limited to a certain percentage of the
Company’s capital surplus and once a year).

2. Such capital surplus arises from the effects of changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries resulting from equity transactions other than actual disposal or
acquisitions or from changes in capital surplus of subsidiaries accounted for
using the equity method.
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Retained earnings and dividends policy

The amendments to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation was approved at
the annual general meeting of shareholders held on June 22, 2022. The earnings
distribution policy specified in the amended Articles of Incorporation provided that
the surplus earning distribution or loss off-setting proposal may be proposed at the
close of each half fiscal year. If there is any surplus in the first half fiscal year, the
Company shall first estimate and reserve the taxes, offset the accumulated deficit as
required by law, estimate and reserve the remuneration of employees and directors,
and set aside 10% as legal reserve. However when the legal reserve amounts to the
authorized capital, this shall not apply. Then, set aside or reverse a special reserve in
accordance with relevant regulations or as requested by the competent authorities. If
a surplus remains, the balance combined with undistributed retained earnings from
preceding periods shall be distributed according to the distribution plan proposed by
the Board of Directors. If distributing in the form of new shares to be issued, the
proposal shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution. If
distributing in the form of cash, it shall be resolved by the board of directors without
submitting to the shareholders’ meeting for ratification.

When there is a surplus in the annual final accounts, in addition to paying
income tax and offsetting prior years’ deficits, the remainder is distributed as
follows:

1.  10% of the balance shall be set aside as a legal reserve. However when the
legal reserve amounts to the authorized capital, this shall not apply.

2. When necessary, a special reserve may be allocated or reversed in accordance
with the law.

If a surplus remains, the balance combined with undistributed retained earnings
from preceding periods shall be distributed according to the distribution plan
proposed by the Board of Directors. If distributing in the form of new shares to be
issued, the proposal shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution.

In accordance with Article 240, Paragraph 5 of the Company Act, the Board of
Directors is authorized to distribute dividends and bonuses or the whole or in part of
the legal reserve and capital surplus as provided in Article 241, Paragraph 1 of the
Company Act, in the form of cash, with the a resolution has been adopted by a
majority vote at a meeting of the board of directors attended by two-thirds of the total
number of directors, and to report such distribution to the shareholders’ meeting. If
distributing in the form of new shares to be issued, the proposal shall be submitted to
the shareholders’ meeting for resolution.

According to the Company’s policy on distribution of earnings before the
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, when there is surplus in the final
accounts, the Company shall first offset the deficit and then set aside 10% as legal
reserve. However when the legal reserve amounts to the authorized capital, this shall
not apply. Then, set aside or reverse a special reserve in accordance with relevant
regulations or as requested by the competent authorities. If a surplus remains, the
balance combined with undistributed retained earnings at the beginning of the period
and an adjustment to the current year’s undistributed earnings shall be distributed as
distributable earnings. The Board of Directors shall reserve a portion of the retained
earnings with reference to the earnings disbursement ratio and future business
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conditions, and then prepare a proposal for distributing the remaining balance to
submit to the shareholders for resolution. Earnings distributed shall not be less than
10% of the distributable earnings. However, if the dividends per share distributed by
the aforesaid resolution is less than NT$0.3, it may not be distributed as proposed by
the board of directors and acknowledged in the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company’s policy on the distribution of remuneration to employees and
directors is described in Note 24 (7), Employees’ Compensation and Remuneration to
Directors.

In accordance with Article 237 of the Company Act, a company, when
allocating its surplus profits after having paid all taxes and dues, shall first set aside
ten percent of said profits as legal reserve. Where such legal reserve amounts to the
total paid-in capital, this provision shall not apply. The legal reserve may be used to
offset a deficit. If there is no deficit, 25% of the legal reserve in excess of the paid-in
capital may be transferred to capital or distributed in cash.

The Company’s shareholders’ meeting held on July 15, 2021 resolved to amend
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, which provides that when a special reserve
is set aside for the net decrease in other equity accumulated in previous years, if there
is not enough unappropriated earnings from previous years, the amount of items
adjusted to the current year’s undistributed earnings other than after-tax net income
for the period will be added to the current year’s undistributed earnings. Prior to the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation, the Company appropriated the
undistributed earnings from the previous years as required by law.

At the annual shareholders’ meetings held on June 22, 2022 and July 15, 2021,
the Company resolved the following earnings distribution proposals for 2021 and
2020, respectively:

2021 2020
Legal reserve $ 18,802 $ 10,260
Special reserve $ 9,569 $ 34,757
Cash dividend $ 78,963 $ 35,513
Cash dividend per share (NTS$) $ 1.8 $ 0.8

The Board of Directors resolved the following proposal for the 2022 half-year
earnings distribution:

July 1, 2022 to
December 31,  January 1, 2022

2022 to June 30, 2022

Board of Directors’ November 7,

Resolution Date March 20, 2023 2022
Legal reserve $ 282 $ 2,322
Special reserve (S 5,798) (S 9,297)
Cash dividend $ 4,350 $ 8,774
Cash dividend per share

(NT$) $ 0.1 $ 0.2
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The above cash dividends have been resolved by the board of directors and the
rest are scheduled to be resolved at the shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 9,

2023.

Special reserve

Balance at the beginning of the
year
Provision of special reserves
Deductions for other equity
items
Balance at the end of the year

Other equity items

2022

$ 34,757

272
$ 35,029

2021

34,757
$ 34,757

1. Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign

operations

Balance at the beginning of
the year
Generated in the current year
Exchange difference of
foreign operations
Associated income tax
Other comprehensive
income for the year
Balance at the end of the
year

2022

($ 44,792)

19,204
(___3.841)

15.363

($_29.429)

2021
($ 35,134)
( 12,072)

2,414

(_ 9.658)

($_44.792)

2. Unrealized gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Balance at the beginning of
the year
Generated in the current year
Unrealized gain or loss
Equity instrument
Associated income
tax
Other comprehensive
income for the year
Balance at the end of the
year
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2022

$ 466

( 335)
67
( 268)

$ 198

2021

$ 377

111
(— 22)
89

$ 466



(V)  Non-controlling interest

2022 2021
Balance at the beginning of the

year $ 138,849 $ 98,271
Net Income for the period 19,288 45,351
Other comprehensive income for

the year
Exchange differences on
translating the financial
statements of foreign
operations 10,598 (  15,011)
Acquisition of additional

non-controlling interest of

Superior Plating Technology

(Thailand) Co., Ltd. - 10,606
Changes in ownership interest in

subsidiaries (Note 11) - ( 368)
Cash dividend paid to shareholders

of the subsidiaries ( 2.594) -
Balance at the end of the year $ 166,141 $ 138,849

(VII)  Treasury shares
Shares
Transferred to
Employees Written off Total
(thousand (thousand (thousand

Purpose of Buy-back shares) shares) shares)
Shares held at January 1,

2022 587 - 587
Increased in the year 368 - 368
Shares held at December

31,2022 955 - 955
Shares held at January 1,

2021 64 - 64
Increased in the year 523 - 523
Shares held at December

31,2021 587 - 587

Under the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company shall neither pledge
treasury shares nor exercise shareholders’ rights on these shares, such as the rights to

dividends and to vote.
XXIII. Revenues

2022
Customer contract revenue (Note 30)
Service revenue — processing
service $1,130,870
Service revenue — technical
service 1,086
$1,131,956
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2021

$ 1,354,969

1,664

$ 1,356,633
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Description of Customer Contract

Processing service income

The Group’s processing service revenue is mainly generated from metal surface
treatment services and is recognized when the services are provided. The price of the
processing service is negotiated between the parties.

Technical service income

The Group provides technical services and the contract price is agreed by both
parties.

Contract balances

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021 January 1, 2021

Accounts receivable (Note

9) $ - $ 1,048 $ 670
Accounts receivable —

related parties (Notes 9

and 30) $ 290,728 $ 484,298 $ 468,178
Contract liabilities

Processing service S 76 $ 874 $ 102

The changes in the contract liability balances primarily result from the timing
difference between the satisfaction of performance obligation and the customer’s
payment

The amount recognized from the beginning balance of contract liability is as
follow:

2022 2021

From the beginning balance of
contract liability

$ 874 $ 102

Sales details of customer contracts

For information on sales details of customer contracts, please see Note 35.

XXIV Net Income for the period

ey

(1)

Interest income

2022 2021
Bank deposits $ 2352 $ 1,424
Other income
2022 2021
Dividend income
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss $ 1,732 $ 928
Government grants 2,928 1,212
Other 1,673 1.554
$ 6,333 $ 3,694
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(I11) Other gains and (losses)

2022 2021
Property, plant and equipment
loss ($ 58) ($ 1,857)
Net foreign currency exchange
losses ( 81) (  10,023)
Loss on valuation of financial
assets ( 2,488) ( 6,813)
Other ( 38) 314
($_ 2,665) ($_18,379)
(Iv) Financial cost
2022 2021
Interest on bank loan $ 10,596 $ 6,686
Interest on lease liabilities
(Note 30) 3,435 3,201
Provision interest 51 61
$ 14,082 $ 9,948
(V) Depreciation and amortization
2022 2021
An analysis of depreciation by
function
Operating costs $ 131,017 $ 116,538
Operating expenses 6,961 4.805
$ 137,978 $ 121,343
An analysis of amortization by
function
Administrative expense $ 1,192 $ 855
(V)  Employee benefit expense
2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 246,970 $ 261,662
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans 9,626 8,990
Other employee benefits 25,827 23,774
Total employee benefit expense $ 282,423 $ 294,426
An analysis by function
Operating costs $ 165,001 $ 158,798
Operating expenses 117,422 135,628
$ 282,423 $ 294,426
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(VIII)

Employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors

The Articles of Incorporation of the Company stipulate distributing employees’
compensation and remuneration of directors at the rates from 5% to 10% and no
higher than 5% of the profit, respectively. The estimated employees’ compensation
and remuneration of directors for 2022 and 2021 on the basis described above were
resolved by the Board of Directors on March 20, 2023 and March 21, 2022,

respectively, as follows:

Estimated ratio

2022 2021
Employee’s compensation 7.5% 7.5%
Remuneration to directors 4% 4%
Amount

2022 2021

Cash Cash
Employee’s compensation $ 2,167 $ 17,383
Remuneration to directors 1,156 9271

If there is any change in the amounts after the publication date of annual
consolidated financial statements, it is treated as changes in accounting estimates and
recognized in the following year.

There is no difference between the resolved distributed remuneration of
employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors for 2021 and 2020, and the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements for 2021 and 2020.

For information on the employees compensation and remuneration to directors
resolved in the Board of Directors’ meetings of the Company, please visit MOPS of
the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

Foreign currency exchange gains (losses)

2022 2021
Total foreign currency
exchange gains $ 30,898 $ 16,074
Total foreign currency
exchange losses (__30.979) (__26.097)
Net losses (8 81) ($_10.023)
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Income Taxes

Income tax recognized in profit or loss

Major components of tax (benefit) expense were as follows:

Tax currently payable
Generated in the current year
Levied on unappropriated
earnings
Adjustment on prior years
Non-deductible income from
foreign sources

Deferred tax
Generated in the current year
Income tax expense recognized in
profit or loss

A reconciliation of accounting income and income tax expense is as follows:

Net income before tax

Income tax expense (benefit)
calculated at the statutory rate

Nondeductible expenses in
determining taxable income

Levied on unappropriated earnings

Unrecognized loss
carryforward/Deductible
temporary difference

Effect of deferred income tax on
earnings from subsidiaries

Adjustments to prior years’ tax

R&D credit deduction

Non-deductible income from
foreign sources

Income tax expense recognized in
profit or loss

Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income or loss

Deferred tax
Generated in the current year
- Exchange of foreign
operations
- Unrealized gain/(loss) on
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Income tax recognized in other
comprehensive income or loss
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2022 2021
$ 17,049 $ 27,679
4,034 1,103
( 1,702) ( 7,220)
2,493 1,833
21,874 23,395
(___5.622) __ 14,107
$ 16252 $ 37,502
2022 2021
$ 61,584 $ 270,870
($ 11,822) $ 93,054
12,136 1,857
4,034 1,103
21,664 (  16,370)
( 6,310) (  36,755)
( 1,702) (  7,220)
( 3,741) -
2,493 1,833
$ 16252 $ 37,502
2022 2021
$ 3,841 (S 2,414)
( 67) 22
§ 3774 ($__2.392)



(11 Current tax assets and liabilities
December 31, 2022

Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable $ 12,707

Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable $ 22,930

(Iv) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities:
2022

Recognition in
Balance at the  Recognition other
beginning of  inprofitor = comprehensive
the year loss income

December 31, 2021

$ 12,313

$ 33,248

Balance at the
Exchange end of the
difference year

Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference

Allowance for losses —

accounts receivable $ 542 ($ 44) 3 -
Allowance for market

price decline and

obsolete and

slow-moving

inventory loss 332 8 -
Exchange difference of

foreign operations 10,516 -
Impairment loss 542 ( 285)
Unrealized exchange

loss 1,927  ( 1,927) -
Unrealized loss on

financial assets at fair

value through profit

or loss 1,363 898 -
Other 752 12

$ 6 $ 504

4 344

- 6,675
265

ee]

. 2,261
8 772

$ 15974 ($___1338) ($__ 3.841)

$ 26 § 10,821

Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary difference

Allowance for losses —

accounts receivable $ 10 $ 2 $ -
Gain on investments

accounted for using

equity method 13,495  ( 13,495) -
Unrealized gain on

financial assets at fair

value through other

comprehensive

income 117 - ( 67)
Unrealized exchange

gain - 195 -
Tax effect of lease - 709 -
Investment tax credit - 4,273 -
Other 1,356

- 195
4) 705
24) 4,249

$ 13622 ($__ 6960) ($ 67)

(
(
( 8) 1.348
(8 36) $ 6,559
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Recognition in

Balance at the other
beginning of  Recognition in comprehensive Exchange Balance at the
the year profit or loss income difference end of the year

Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference
Allowance for losses —
accounts receivable $ 224 $ 316 $ - $ 2 $ 542
Allowance for market
price decline and
obsolete and
slow-moving

inventory loss 448 ( 115) - ( 1) 332
Exchange difference of

foreign operations 8,102 - 2,414 - 10,516
Impairment loss 773 ( 229) - ( 2) 542
Unrealized exchange loss 2,177 ( 250) - - 1,927

Loss on investments

accounted for using

equity method 2,257 ( 2,257) - - -
Unrealized loss on

financial assets at fair

value through profit or

loss - 1,363 - - 1,363
Other 678 74 - - 752
$ 14659 (S___1,098) S 2414 (S 1) $ 15974

Deferred tax liabilities
Temporary difference
Allowance for losses —
accounts receivable $ 202 ($ 192) § - $ - $ 10
Gain on investments
accounted for using
equity method - 13,495 - - 13,495
Unrealized gain on
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss 294 ( 294) - - -
Unrealized gain on
financial assets at fair
value through other

comprehensive
incoIr)ne 95 - 22 - 117
$ 501§ 13,009 $ 22 $ -8 1362
V) Deductible temporary differences and unused loss carryforwards on deferred income
tax assets not recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Loss carryforwards
Taiwan
Expires in 2020 $ - $ 44,947
Expires in 2031 43,223 44,211
$ 43223 $ 89,158
China
Expires in 2023 $ 3,364 $ 3,328
Expires in 2024 37,447 37,046
Expires in 2027 119,890 -
$ 160,701 $ 40,374
Total $ 203,924 $ 129,532
Temporary difference $ 85 $ 79
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XXVI.

Income tax examination

The tax authorities have examined the income tax returns of the Company
through 2020. As of December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any tax litigation
outstanding.

Earnings per share

Unit: NTS$ per share

2022 2021
Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations $ 0.59 $ 4.24
Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations $ 0.59 $ 4.22

The net income and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in
calculating earnings per share were as follows:

Net Income for the period

2022 2021
Earnings used in the computation
of basic earnings per share $ 26,044 $ 188,017
Number of Shares Unit: Thousand shares
2022 2021

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in computation

of basic earnings per share $ 43,825 $ 44,295
Effect of potentially dilutive

ordinary shares:

Employee’s compensation 92 239

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the

computation of diluted earnings

per share $ 43917 $ 44,534

Since the Group offered to settle compensation paid to employees in cash or shares,
the Company assumed the entire amount of the compensation would be settled in shares
and the resulting potential shares were included in the weighted average number of
shares outstanding used in the computation of diluted earnings per share, as the effect is
dilutive. Such dilutive effect of the potential shares was included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share until the number of shares to be distributed to employees is
resolved in the following year.
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XXVII. Cash flow information

ey

(1)

Non-cash transaction

The Group had the following non-cash investing and financing activities in
2022 and 2021:

1. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group had outstanding payments of
NT$8,177 thousand and NT$12,167 thousand, respectively, for property, plant
and equipment, which were recognized as other payables.

2. The Company’s board of directors resolved to distribute cash dividends to
shareholders on November 7, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, the balance of
NT$8,774 thousand has not been distributed and is recognized as other

payables.
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
2022
Non-cash changes
Effect of
January 1, Addition of Lease exchange rate December 31,
2022 Cash flow lease modification Financial cost changes Other 2022

Short-term borrowings $ 270,930 (S 100,848 ) $ - $ - $ - $ 12,297 $ - $ 182,379
Long-term borrowings 61,496 6,873 - - - 5,394 - 73,763
Guarantee deposits 18,760 ( 14,548 ) - - - 290 - 4,502
Lease liabilities 69.590 ( 48,662 ) 55,321 24,704 3.435 1.813 ( 3.435) 102,766

$ 420776 ($.157,185) $§ 55321 $§ 24704 § 3435 $ 19794 (S 3435) $ 363.410
2021

Non-cash changes
Effect of
January 1, Addition of Lease exchange rate December 31,
2021 Cash flow lease modification Financial cost changes Other 2021

Short-term borrowings $ 159,681 $ 114,821 $ - $ - $ - (S 3572) $ - $ 270,930
Long-term borrowings 16,586 46,381 - - ( 1,471 ) - 61,496
Guarantee deposits 18,772 - - - - ( 12) - 18,760
Lease liabilities 55,027 ( 43.631) 56,662 3.442 3.201 ( 1910) ( 3.201 ) 69.590

$ 250,066 $ 117,571 $ 56,662 § 3442 $ 3201 (S$_6965) (8§ _3201) $ 420776

XXVIII. Capital risk management

The Group conducts capital management to ensure that the entities in the group can
maximize shareholders’ return by optimizing the balance of debt and equity on the
premises of continuing to operate. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged in
both 2022 and 2021.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash
and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the Group (comprising issued
ordinary shares, capital surplus, retained earnings, other equity and treasury stock) and
non-controlling interests.

The Group does not have to comply with other external capital requirements.

Based on recommendations of the key management personnel, in order to balance
the overall capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, the number of new shares issued or repurchased, and/or the amount of
new debt issued or existing debt redeemed.
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XXIX. Financial Instruments

D Fair value information — financial instruments measured at fair value on a
repeatability basis

1. Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Mutual funds $ - $ - $ 27,432 $ 27,432
Wealth management
product - 68.407 - 68.407
$ - $ 68,407 $ 27432 $ 95,839

Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Domestic and foreign
listed shares
- Equity investment $ 264 $ - $ - $ 264

December 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Mutual funds $ - $ - $ 30,020 $ 30,020
Wealth management
product - 18,949 - 18,949
$ - $ 18,949 $ 30,020 $ 48,969

Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Domestic and foreign
listed shares
- Equity investment $ 600 $ - $ - $ 600

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in 2022 and 2021.

2. Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on financial instruments

2022
Measured at fair
value through profit
or loss
Financial asset Equity instrument

Balance at the beginning of the year $ 30,020
Acquisition 1,902
Recognition in profit or loss (Other gains and losses) ( 4.490)
Balance at the end of the year § 27,432
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Measured at fair
value through profit
or loss

Financial asset

Equity instrument

Balance at the beginning of the year

Acquisition

$ 30,538
7,769

Recognition in profit or loss (Other gains and losses) ( 8.287)
Balance at the end of the year $ 30,020

Valuation techniques and inputs applied for Level 2 fair value measurement

Type of financial
Instruments Valuation Techniques and Inputs
Structured deposit The discounted cash flow approach: The future

cash flows are estimated based on observable
interest rates and return rates specified in the
contracts at the end of the period, and are
discounted separately at rates that reflect the
credit risk of each counterparty.

Valuation techniques and inputs applied for Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of private equity funds is evaluated by using the asset-based
approach and is also estimated with reference to the net worth and operating
performance of the investees’ most recently financial statements.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial asset

Measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at amortized
cost (Note 1)

Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Investment in equity
instrument

Financial liability
Measured at amortized cost
(Note 2)
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December 31, 2022

$ 95,839

645,110

264

357,913

December 31, 2021

$ 48,969

926,269

600

498,639



(I11)

Note 1: The balances included financial assets measured at amortized cost, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
other receivables — related parties, other financial assets and refundable
deposits.

Note 2: The balances included financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
which comprise short-term borrowings, accounts payable (including related
parties), other payables (including related parties); exclude wage and bonus
payables, tax payables, insurance payable, dividend payables and meals
payables), long-term borrowings and guarantee deposits.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in equity
instruments, wealth management product, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
bank loans and lease liabilities. The Group’s corporate treasury function provides
services to the business, coordinates access to financial markets, monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risk reports which analyze exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks
include market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The Group does not trade financial instruments (including derivative financial
instruments) for speculative purposes.

The corporate treasury function reports regularly to the board of directors, who
monitors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

1. Market risk

The Group’s activities exposed it primarily to the financial risks of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates (see (1) below), interest rates (see
(2) below) and other prices (see (3) below).

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the
manner in which these risks were managed and measured.

(1) Foreign currency risk

The Group had foreign currency sales and purchases, which exposed
the Company to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency-denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities (including monetary items
denominated in non-functional currencies that have been eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements) are set out in Note 33.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group was mainly exposed to the fluctuations in the US dollar
and New Taiwan dollar.
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The following table details the sensitivity analysis of the Group on
the effect of 1% fluctuation in the foreign exchange (US dollar and New
Taiwan dollar) rate against the functional currency in each consolidated
entity. The rate of 1% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to the key management and represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably likely change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and the end-of-period exchange
rate is adjusted to 1% increase and decrease. Numbers below indicate the
amount increase in pre-tax profit associated with the New Taiwan dollar
when the functional currency in each consolidated entity depreciates by
1% against the relevant currency. When the functional currency in each
consolidated entity appreciates by 1% against the relevant foreign
currency, the effect on pre-tax profit is the same as the negative amount.

USD Impact
2022 2021
Profit or loss $ 6 $ 301
NTD Impact
2022 2021
Profit or loss ($ 44) $ -

The above impact on the profit or loss was mainly attributable to the
Group’s bank deposits, receivables, other financial assets, payables and
bank loans denominated in U.S. dollars that were still outstanding and
other payables denominated in New Taiwan dollars as of the balance
sheet date.

The Group’s sensitivity to the USD decreased during the current
period mainly because of a decrease in USD bank deposits. The Group’s
sensitivity to the NTD increased during the current period mainly
because of an increase in other payables denominated in NTD.

Interest rate risk

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities of
the Group that are exposed to interest rate risks on the balance sheet date
are as follows:

December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021

Fair value interest rate

risk
- Financial asset $ 121,888 $ 57,206
- Financial liability $ 108,091 $ 74,558
With cash flow interest
rate risk
- Financial asset $ 278,691 $ 376,878
- Financial liability $ 250,817 $ 327,458
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis in the next paragraph was based on the
exposure of the Group’s non-derivative instruments to interest rate risks
at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis
was prepared assuming the amount of the liabilities outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis point increase or decrease was used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Had interest rates been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables been held constant, the Group’s pretax profit for 2022 and 2021
would have increased/decreased by NT$279 thousand and NT$494
thousand, respectively, which was mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risks on its floating-rate bank deposits and loans.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates increased during the current
period mainly because of the decrease in floating-rate bank deposits.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from its
investments in securities (including mutual funds and foreign listed
shares). The risk is controlled by holding portfolios of varying risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the equity price risk at
the balance sheet date.

If the price of securities increases/decreases by 1%, the pre-tax
income or loss for 2022 and 2021 would increase/decrease by NT$274
thousand and NT$300 thousand, respectively, due to the
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The other comprehensive income before tax for fiscal years
2022 and 2021 would increase/decrease by NT$3 thousand and NT$6
thousand, respectively, due to the increase/decrease in financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

There was no significant change in the Group’s sensitivity to price
risk during the year as compared to the previous year.
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Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. As of the end of
the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure of counterparties to discharge
an obligation pertain to (without taking account of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements):

(1) The carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as
stated in the balance sheets.

(2) The maximum amount the entity would have to pay if the financial
guarantee is called upon, irrespective of the likelihood of the guarantee
being exercised.

Except for the major three custumers of the Group, the Group did not have
significant credit risk for any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties with similar characteristics. The Group’s concentration of credit
risk of 22% and 38% of total trade receivables as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, was related to the Group’s three major customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management

monitors the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity
The available unutilized bank loan facilities of the Group, please refer to below

().
(1) Liquidity and interest rate risk tables for non-derivative financial
liabilities
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash

flows of financial liabilities including both interest and principal from the
earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

To the extent that interest flows are at floating rate, the undiscounted
amount was derived from the interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
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December 31, 2022

Less than 3 3 months — 1 More than 5
months year 1 —5 years years
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing
liabilities $ 104,546 $ 5,999 $ - $ -
Lease liabilities 6,136 19,160 85,026 -
Floating interest rate
liabilities 186,001 7,094 67,404 -
Fixed interest rate
liabilities 45 5,327 - -
Financial guarantee
contracts 43,692 - - -
$ 340,420 $ 37,580 $ 152430 $ -
December 31, 2021
Less than 3 3 months — 1 More than 5
months year 1 —5 years years
Non-derivative
financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing
liabilities $ 158,039 $ 8,174 $ - $ -
Lease liabilities 8,055 20,508 45,608 -
Floating interest rate
liabilities 226,062 55,331 50,331 -
Fixed interest rate
liabilities 40 4,973 - -
Financial guarantee
contracts 56.759 - - -
$ 448955 $ 88,986 $§ 95939 $ -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts were
the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Group considers it is more likely than not that no

amount will be payable under the arrangement.

Bank loan facilities

Unsecured bank loan
facilities
- Utilized amount
- Unutilized amount

Secured bank loan
facilities
- Utilized amount
- Unutilized amount

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Related Party Transaction

$ 115,325
7.987

$ 123,312

$ 140,817
134,648

$ 275,465

$ 64,968
7452

$ 72,420

$ 267,458
20,286

$ 287,744

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are
related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties

are disclosed below.
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Related party names and categories

Name

Related Party Category

Guangzhou Bufeng Hardware (Electronics)
Limited

Yishan Precision Industrial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Jia-Quan Investment Co., Ltd.

Dongguan Guanjie Metal Surface Treatment Co.,
Ltd.

Ever Superior Technologies Corporation

Substantive related party
Substantive related party
Substantive related party

Associate

Joint venture

Operating revenue

Related Party
Account Category 2022 2021
Service revenue — Substantive $ 4,464 $ 7,423
processing service related party

1,086 1,664

$§ 5,550 $ 9,087

The price for the processing service to related parties is agreed upon by both
parties. The collection days from related parties for both 2022 and 2021 are set to
60—180 days from the end of the month when the invoice is issued. The processing
service price for general customers is calculated based on the general market price.
The collection days are set to 30 — 180 days from the end of the month when the
invoice is issued.

Service revenue — technical Joint venture
service

The Group provides technical services to the related parties. The contract price
is calculated by the cost-plus of inputs. The price is charged in the following year
after approval by the local foreign exchange authority. The prices and terms of the
aforesaid transactions with related parties are not comparable to those of other
similar transactions.

Operating costs

Account Related Party Category 2022 2021
Processing cost  Associate $ 13,749 $ 12,706

The price for the processing cost to related parties is agreed upon by both
parties. The payment day to related parties is 180 days from the end of the month
when the invoice is issued. The processing service price for general customers is
calculated based on the general market price. The payment days are set to 90 — 180
days from the end of the month when the invoice is issued.

Receivables from related parties

December 31, December 31,
Account Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021
Accounts Substantive related party — $ 1,837 $ 2,103
receivable Guangzhou Bufeng Hardware
(Electronics) Limited
Substantive related party — - 1
Other
Joint venture — Ever Superior 190 1,747

Technologies Corporation

S 2,027 S 3.851
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The outstanding trade receivables from related parties were unsecured. No
allowance for loss has been recognized for receivables from related parties in 2022
and 2021.

Payables to related parties

Related Party December 31, December 31,
Account Category/Name 2022 2021
Accounts Associate — Dongguan $ 2,049 $ 4257
payable Guanjie Metal Surface

Treatment Co., Ltd.

Other payables  Associate — Dongguan $ - $ 2,664
Guanjie Metal Surface

Treatment Co., Ltd.
The outstanding receivables from related parties were unsecured.
Lease agreement

Acquisition of right-of-use assets
Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021

Associate — Dongguan Guanjie
Metal Surface Treatment

Co., Ltd. $ 52,128 $ 50,656
Substantive related party $ 3,150 $ -
Related Party December 31, December 31,
Account Category/Name 2022 2021
Lease liabilities Associate — Dongguan $ 63,357 $ 32,345
Guanjie Metal
Surface Treatment
Co., Itd.
Substantive related 2,498 378
party

$ 65855 $ 32,723

Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021

Interest expense
Associate — Dongguan Guanjie
Metal Surface Treatment

Co., Ltd. $ 2,231 $ 969
Substantive related party 112 52
$§ 2343 $ 1,021

The Group leases factory and office space from its related parties at a rental rate
based on the general market rate. The rental payment is paid monthly. The factory
lease agreement with Dongguan Guanjie Metal Surface Treatment Co., Ltd. was
amended in 2021 to increase the right-of-use asset by NT$3,442 thousand.
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Endorsements/guarantees provided

Endorsements/Guarantees Provided for Others

Related Party Category/Name December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Associate
Dongguan Guanjie Metal
Surface Treatment Co., RMB $9.900 RMB $13,000
Ltd. thousand thousand

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the amount of collaterals provided by the
Group due to the aforesaid endorsement guarantee was NT$43,453 thousand and
NT$42,594 thousand, respectively.

Refundable deposits
Related Party December 31, December 31,
Account Category/Name 2022 2021
Refundable Associate — Dongguan $ 5330 $ 5330
deposits Guanjie Metal Surface
Treatment Co., Ltd.
Substantive related party 200 200

$§ 5,530 $§ 5530

Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method

Related Party
Account Category/Name 2022 2021
Investments Joint venture — Ever $ - $ 63,000
accounted Superior Technologies
for using Corporation
equity
method

Compensation of key management personnel

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 24,430 $ 45,045
Post-employment benefits 582 582
$ 25,012 $ 45,627

The remuneration of directors and key management personnel was determined
by the remuneration committee with regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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Pledged Assets

The following assets have been pledged as collateral loans from financial
institutions:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Pledged time deposits and reserve

account (recorded as other

financial assets — current) $ 47,678 $ 97,989
Pledged time deposits (recorded

as other financial assets —

non-current) - 19,453
Right-of-use assets — land 11,888 12,359
Building 47,489 50,018
Investments accounted for using

equity method 43,453 42,594

$ 150,508 $ 222,413

Significant Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Commitments

Other than those stated in the notes, significant commitments and contingencies of
the Group were as follows:

Unrecognized commitments of the Group were as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment $ 31,499 $ 14,374

XXXIII. Significant Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies

The following information was aggregated by the foreign currencies other than the
functional currencies of the Group entities and the exchange rates between the foreign
currencies and respective functional currencies were disclosed. The significant assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follows:

December 31, 2022

Foreign Carrying
Currency (In Amount
thousands) Exchange Rate (In thousand)
Foreign currency
assets

Monetary items
USD $ 1,668 30.693 (USD: NTD) $ 51,186
USD 1,777 6.955(USD: RMB) $ 54,554
USD 751 34.586(USD: THB) $ 23,059

(continued)
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Foreign Carrying
Currency (In Amount
thousands) Exchange Rate (In thousand)
Non-monetary
items
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss —
non-current
USD 894 30.693 (USD : NTD) $ 27432
Foreign currency
liabilities
Monetary items
USD $ 2,374 6.955(USD: RMB) $ 72,861
USD 1,802 34.586(USD: THB) $ 55315
NTD 4,377 0.227(NTD : RMB) $ 4,377
December 31, 2021
Foreign Carrying
Currency (In Amount
thousands) Exchange Rate (In thousand)
Foreign currency
assets
Monetary items
USD $ 3,947 27.790 (USD : NTD) $ 109,698
USD 1,906 6.3651 (USD: RMB) $ 52,962
USD 857 33.563(USD: THB) $ 23,823
Non-monetary
items
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss —
non-current
USD $ 1,080 27.790 (USD : NTD) $ 30,020
Foreign currency
liabilities
Monetary items
USD 123 27.790 (USD : NTD) $ 3,412
USD 2,931 6.3651 (USD: RMB) $ 81,459
USD 2,573 33.563(USD: THB) $ 71,517
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For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, realized and unrealized net
foreign exchange losses were NT$81 thousand and NT$10,023 thousand, respectively.
It is impractical to disclose net foreign exchange gains (losses) by each significant
foreign currency due to the variety of the foreign currency transactions and functional
currencies of the entities in the Group.

XXXIV. Other Disclosures

Information about significant transactions:

1.
2.
3.

9.

10.

Financing Provided to Others. (Table 1)
Endorsements/Guarantees Provided for Others. (Table 2)

Marketable securities held (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures). (Table 3)

Marketable securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least
$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital. (None)

Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least $300 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital. (None)

Disposal of individual real estate at prices of at least $300 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital. (None)

Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least $100
million or 20% of the paid-in capital. (None)

Receivables from related parties amounting to at least $100 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital. (None)

Trading in derivative instruments. (None)

Other: Intercompany relationships and significant intercompany transactions.
(Table 4)

Information on Investees. (Table 5)

Information on investments in mainland China:

1.

Information on any investee company in mainland China, showing the name,
principal business activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward and
outward remittance of funds, ownership percentage, net income of investees,
investment income or loss, carrying amount of the investment at the end of the
period, repatriations of investment income, and limit on the amount of
investment in the mainland China area. (Table 6)

Any of the following significant transactions with investee companies in
mainland China, either directly or indirectly through a third party, and their
prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or losses: (Table 6)

(1) The amount and percentage of purchases and the balance and percentage
of the related payables at the end of the period.

(2) The amount and percentage of sales and the balance and percentage of
the related receivables at the end of the period.

(3) The amount of property transactions and the amount of the resultant
gains or losses.
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(4) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsements or guarantees or
pledges of collateral at the end of the period and the purposes.

(5) The highest balance, the end of period balance, the interest rate range,
and total current period interest with respect to financing of funds.

(6) Other transactions that have a material effect on the profit or loss for the
period or on the financial position, such as the rendering or receiving of
services.

Information of major shareholders: list all shareholders with ownership of 5% or
greater showing the name of the shareholder, the number of shares owned, and
percentage of ownership of each shareholder. (Table 7)

The following disclosures for affiliates are required to be made in accordance with
the Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business
Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises:

1.

The names of subordinate companies, a description of their relationship with
the controlling company, the nature of their business, and the controlling
company’s shareholding or capital contribution ratio in each. (Note 11, Table 5
and Table 6)

Increases, decreases, or changes in the subordinate companies included in the
current consolidated financial statements of the affiliates. (Note 11)

The names and shareholding or capital contribution ratios of subordinate
companies not listed in the current consolidated financial statements for
affiliates and the reasons they are not included in the consolidated statements.
(None)

The adjustment method and treatment adopted if the opening and closing dates
of the subordinate company’s accounting year are different from those of the
controlling company. (None)

An explanation of any differences in accounting policies between the
subordinate companies and the controlling company. The method and
substance of adjustments adopted in the event of any non-conformity with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of the Republic of China. (None)

Special operational risks of overseas subordinate companies, such as exchange
rate fluctuations. (Note 11)

Statutory or contractual restrictions on distribution of earnings by the various
affiliates. (Note)

Amortization methods and period for consolidated borrowings (loans). (None)

Other matters of significance or explanations that would contribute to the fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the affiliates. (None)

Note: The articles of incorporation of the Group’s subsidiaries located in
Mainland China specify that a reserve fund, employee incentive and
welfare fund shall be set aside from the profit after paying income tax.
The appropriate percentage shall be determined in accordance with the
Company Act and other relevant PRC laws. No profits may be distributed
if losses from the previous fiscal year have not been offset, and any
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undistributed earnings from the previous fiscal year may be included in
the current year’s profit distribution.

The following disclosures for the controlling company and subordinate company are
required to be made in accordance with the Criteria Governing Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial
Statements of Affiliated Enterprises:

1.  Transactions that have been eliminated between the controlling company and
subordinate companies or between subordinate companies. (Table 4)

2. Information regarding financing, endorsements, and guarantees. (Table 1 and
Table 2)

Information regarding trading in derivative products. (None)
Significant contingent matters. (None)

Significant subsequent events. (None)

AN

Names of bills and securities held, and their quantities, cost, market value (or
net par value if a bill or security does not have a market value), shareholding or
capital contribution ratio, description of any pledges, and the highest amount of
shareholding or capital contribution during the period. (Table 3, Table 5 and
Table 6)

7. Other matters of significance or explanations that would contribute to the fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the affiliates. (None)

When subsidiaries hold shares in the parent, the names of the subsidiaries and the
shareholdings, amounts, and reasons shall be separately presented. (None)

Segment Information

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. The reporting segments of the Group are chemical
plating, barrel plating and continuous plating.

The chief operating decision maker treats the subsidiaries in each region as
separate operating divisions, but in preparing its financial statements, the Group
aggregates these subsidiaries into the chemical plating, barrel plating and continuous
plating segments, taking into account the following factors:

1. Similar products and processes:
2. The products are delivered to customers in the same way.
Segment revenue and results

Information of reportable segments’ revenues and operating results:
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2022

Revenue from External
Customers

Intersegment revenue

Segment revenue

Eliminations

Consolidated revenue

Segment profits

Administrative costs and
remuneration of directors

Interest income

Other income

Other gains and losses

Financial cost

Share of profits or losses of
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the
equity method

Net income before tax

2021

Revenue from External
Customers

Intersegment revenue

Segment revenue

Eliminations

Consolidated revenue

Segment profits

Administrative costs and
remuneration of directors

Interest income

Other income

Other gains and losses

Financial cost

Share of profits or losses of
associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the
equity method

Net income before tax

The inter-segment processing price is agreed upon by both parties.

Chemical
plating and
barrel plating

Continuous
plating

Other segment

Total

$ 517,338
63.735

$ 605,926
58,725

$ 8,692
24,386

§ 581,073

$§ 664,651

§ 33,078

(8 27.402)

§ 139,288

§ 15,072

Chemical
plating and
barrel plating

Continuous
plating

Other segment

$ 1,131,956
146,846
1.278.802

(_ 146.846)
1.131.956
126,958

( 38,780)
2,352
6,333

( 2,665)

( 14,082)

( 18,532)
$ 61,584

Total

$ 605,368
155.634

§ 747,682

$ 3,583
17,345

$§ 761,002

§ 747,682

§ 20928

$ 7,081

§ 333002 § $

11,687

$ 1,356,633
172.979
1.529.612
(__172.979)
1.356.633
351,770

( 56215)
1,424
3,694

( 18379)

( 9,948 )

(____1.476)
$ 270.870

Segment profit represented the profit before income tax earned by each segment
without allocation of administration costs, remuneration of directors, interest income,
other income, other gains and losses, finance costs, share of profits and losses of
affiliated companies and joint ventures recognized under the equity method, and
income tax expense. This is the amount reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

Segment assets and liabilities

The information on the assets and liabilities of each segment has not been
reported to the chief operating decision maker; therefore, it is not disclosed.
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Revenue from major products

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing business units’ major
products is as follows:

2022 2021
Chemical plating and barrel
plating $ 517,338 $ 605,368
Continuous plating 605,926 747,682
Other 8.692 3.583
$ 1,131,956 $ 1,356,633

Geographical information
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — China and Thailand.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of operations and
information about its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

Non-current assets

Revenue from External

Customers December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
China $ 837,534 $ 1,049,621 $ 421,159 $ 401,977
Thailand 285,730 303,429 288,210 242,066
Other 8,692 3.583 9.756 10,828

$ 1,131,956 $ 1,356,633 § 719,125 § 654,871

Non-current assets exclude financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
non-current, investments accounted for using the equity method, deferred income tax
assets, other financial assets — non-current and refundable deposits.

Information on major customers

Revenues from a single customer amounting to 10% or more of the Groups total
revenues are as follows:

2022 2021
Customer D (Note 1) 176,117 185,883
Customer F (Note 2) 132,638 NA (Note 3)
$ 308,755

Note 1: It comes from electro nickel plating and electroless nickel plating.
Note 2: It comes from continuous plating and pearl nickel plating.

Note 3: The revenue amount did not reach 10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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Table 7

Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

Information on Major Shareholders

December 31, 2022

Name of Major Shareholder

Shares

Total Shares
Owned

Ownership
Percentage

Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

5,559,776 shares

12.5%

Note:

The information of major shareholders presented in this table is provided by the Taiwan
Depository & Clearing Corporation based on the number of ordinary shares and
preference shares held by shareholders with ownership of 5% or greater, that have been
issued without physical registration (included treasury shares) by the Company as of the
last business day for the current quarter. The share capital in the consolidated financial
statements may differ from the actual number of shares that have been issued without

physical registration because of different preparation basis.
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V. A parent company only financial statement for the most recent fiscal
year, certified by CPAs

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.:

Audit Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SUPERIOR
PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. (the “Company”), which comprise the unconsolidated
balance sheets as from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the unconsolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on the results of our audits, the accompanying parent company only
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the parent company only financial
position of the Company as from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its parent
company only financial performance and its parent company only cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers of the Republic of China.

Basis for Audit Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountant and the Auditing Standards in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements
section of our report. The auditors of the firm, subject to the independence regulations, have
maintained independence from the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics and perform
other obligations of such Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the parent company only financial statements of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the Company’s parent company only financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2022 are stated as follows:
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Authenticity of processing revenue from specific customers

Since SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. is an OTC listed company, the
management is under pressure to achieve the financial objectives. One of the important
indicators for judging profitability and operating performance is the operating revenue, and
revenue recognition is naturally riskier. However, considering the significant amount of sales
from specific customers with higher sales growth ratio which accounts for approximately 23% of
the total revenue, it is considered material to the parent company only financial statements.
Therefore, we consider “the authenticity of processing revenue from specific customers” to be a
key audit matter for the year ended December 31, 2022.

We have performed the following audit procedures:

1.  Understand the Company’s relevant internal control system and operating procedures
concerning the transaction cycle as described in the previous paragraph. Based on this, we
designed the internal control audit procedures in response to the occurrence of the relevant
revenue to confirm and evaluate whether the design and implementation of the relevant
internal control procedures are effective.

2. Evaluate whether the relevant background, transaction amounts and credit limits for the
aforesaid specific customers are reasonable based on their company scale.

3. We randomly selected samples from the aforesaid specific customers’ processing revenue
to examine the incoming material orders, shipping orders, sales invoices and subsequent
receipts to confirm the authenticity of the transactions.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent
Company Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company
only financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for necessary internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is also responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, Including the Audit Committee, are responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing
standard will always detect a material misstatement when it exists in the parent company only
financial statements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the parent company only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC Audit Standard, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements due to fraud or error, design and adopt appropriate countermeasures for the risks
assessed, and obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence in order to be used as the
basis for the opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management level.

4.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. In case where we consider that such events or
circumstances have a material uncertainty, then relevant disclosure of the parent company
only financial statements are required to be provided in our audit report to allow users of
parent company only financial statements to be aware of such events or circumstances, or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. to cease to
continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only
financial statements, including relevant notes, and whether the parent company only
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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6.  Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entity of the Company, and express an opinion on parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the Company. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the governance units with statements that we have complied with relevant
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and we have also
communicated with the governance units on all relationships and other matters (including
relevant protective measures) that may be considered to affect the independence of auditors.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Company’s 2022 parent company only
financial statements and those are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

9

Deloitte Taiwan

CPA Liang, Tanti CPA Yu, Robert
%i%%
Boa [k
fis
A il
Financial SupervisoryCommission Approval Securities and FuturesBureau Approval
Document No. Document No.
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1100356048 Tai-Cai-Zeng-VI No. 0930128050

March 30, 2023

213


User
新建印章

User
新建印章

Leefan
新建印章

Leefan
新建印章


Linit: WS ihowsand

Deparnbar 31 2021

Cde - Asels “a A i T
Clarrem assess
11040 ©ash med cash squivalenis [Nobes 4 amnd 6 4 L T N .
(] Finaacial assets ak Eur value Beough o coamijng hensive
grofic or lass = current (Nobes 4 and B) 26 E M .
(k1] Accours recervable (Motes 4, 9 ainl 195 am - A -
TED] Accoums receivable - reloted parties (Motes 4, 1% s=d 26) L | 3.M15 -
1210 {aher reoevyables - reluted parties | NHes 4 and 26) 433 . 120 -
[ZH0 et ax asset (Motes 4 amd 210 : . Tl .
1410 Prepuymer . . W -
] Later financial ossens - curmend (Piotes 4, 14 and 27) B~ ¥ - [F] | — HiRpE Y |
XX Tatal currem assets —RITEG 1 __lisy _1n
Mrm-curani mmeis
1510 Finsacish assets al Bur valus theomh profil or loss - not=cument
(Biotes 4 and 7 a4 it 3000 3
1550 Inwestrents acceunind far uaing the egaity method [MNoes 4
and 110 B0 A7 KT 25033 E}
1600 Property, plani o eqapment {Posss 4 aud 117 [.AG7 v 1331 =
1755 Righi-of-use assets {otes 4, 11 and 28] &35 i 5523 |
1780 Caher nangible asets (Mol 4 el 13] 13 = 391 -
B0 Deferred tox assets (Mobied 4 and 31} 3955 | 13306 |
|4 Cuber nonscumenl assetd (Moles 4. 14, 25and 27 1B = — b33k S |
15MK Tzl rioe-ourmeni asnei: — M0 | W L. —Ln0E 3640 .
1KY Total msets £ 1000 962 [ S LIEST A0
Cinle Lambaditiiz aind Equiry
Currem habilkies
2200 Cber paynbles (Noles 16 aad 23) 19.E19 - 35,280 3
255 Cumeni iax lsabiligies (Hoies 4 and 21§ 110 | 1,143 .
2380 Lizase Buahilies « cumeni (Mobes 4, £2 and 200 5344 B 3 B a
2520 Cumeni oo of kong=term borromiangs (Mofes £ and 15} 3240 " - i
2500 Other ourrent lisbaiies (ol |5) — = PR b e ol
T Toted currest Liabilitses LT i — ld9 k2 B
Mo carren liakdvies
2540 Lang-venn bormowings (Motes & and 151 ST AN 4 . -
3570 [:fesrred 1o linbilitses {Motes d aand 21§ 137 . 11,622 i
2380 |ease hahilites « ponecament Moty 4, 12 and 25} i — BN .. 1
NN Total mon-curent Lahilites _40.TiH | — 1L —
I Total lmhilaies 141452 4 B | ]
Equity (Mabes £ and |8}
Shrard captal
2014 Coorsvecen shoak — AL 555 43 TR e
ER 1] Capital ssplis — k53 12 O = —ad
Mataiwd swmings
s Legal reserve 18,554 i {1 ed o] |
3320 Rpacial rescrie 15,023 4 34,757 i
EEEIL Unapproptiaiad camings —L36.997 I L k2
13 Total frtieed cirmngs 153414 _ 19 255 10 —ad
3400 Dther exuity |merea 3233y (3 {___d4328) (__d]
3500 Treazury share: (558G ) (3} 133557 (—3d)
IHXN lozal mquity — Bl —i6 7097 a5
il lioel wves sl oguemty £ ool o5 L] R LILGEET =LH

‘The ncoomporying noves ame an nkegsal pord of the pasonl compaey anly linescie malements,
Chairran’ L Ss-Pui ".F‘$ Maaper Wang, Han-vWei {'i' Accounling Manager Lee, Y-linan
g n

=)

214



' = .
i ==0mmMa
=l =1 F] =
s "|I’ '|::
e (e % 5]
- = NG K
| =3lllE==
IF Al
gl |-|" -I_.|—I
——| E=NIRRL :l'

Sup-enna-P!.ntlng Technology Co., Ltd.

Parent Company Only Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022

and 2021

Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except eamings per share

Code
Operating revenue (MNotes 4. 19
and 26)
460 Service Income
4800 Crher operating revenue
4] Total operating
revenue
Orperating cost (Notes 20 and
26)
60 Service Cost
5000 Total operating costs
5900  Gross profit
Orperating expense {Note 20)
61 04 Selling expense
G20 Administrative expense
&0 Total operating
E."CI'!IE'I'!IEEE
G900 Met operating loss
Mon-gperating income and
exipenses (Notes 4, 20 and
26)
Tion [nterest income
Toln Cither income
20 Oither gains and losses
T050 Financial cost
7070 Share of profit (loss) of
subsidiaries and joint
ventures accounted for
using the equity method
7000 Total non-operating
income and
ﬁpﬂﬂ&ﬁ
7900 Met ncome before tax
Tusl Income tax benefit {expenses)
(MNotes 2 and 21)
{continued)

2022 2021

Amount % Aumount 04

£ 31823 ] 17978 e
254 4 2850 14
3o [ 20938 L0
(16812 (__51) [ 16,472 [_79)
{ 1l6Bl2y  {_51) 6472y (_79)
15,263 49 i 456 21

E & ( 12) .
i 16455) (80} 44.710)  (_213)
) 26.455) (_B0) (_44732) (_2I3)
i 10180y  (_31) 02663 (_192)
253 | [ T6 l

I.787T 5 Q68 5
1408 7 i 13065y ( 63)
{ 1,979 ) ( &) { 635) [ 3)
33,287 101 257.959 1232
15,766 _108 245 343 L1723
25,576 17 205,117 G
a4 2 { 17000 (&)
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{continued from previous page)

2022 2021

Code Amount b Amaoimnt b

8200  Net Income for the period 26,044 749 88,017 B0

Other comprehensive profit and
loss
8310 ltems not reclassified
under profit or loss:
#ila Unreahzed
gainioss) on
investments in
equity instruments
al fair value
through ather
comprehensive
income { 335y (1) 111
§349 Income taxes related
to items that are
not reclassified 67 - f ) -
{ 268y L) 89 —_—

8360 ltems that may be
subsequently
reclassified under profi
or loss:
8361 Exchange differences
on translating the
financial
staterments of
foreign operations 19,204 38 ( 12072y { %)
LR Income taxes related
Lo iems that are
reclassified { 1841 (I 2414 12
15363 T 9.658) (__46)

LRI Other comprehensive
income for the
current period {net

of 1ax) | 5,095 435 { 9569) (__46)
8500  Total comprehensive ineome
for the vear 3 41139 24 5 178,448 B33
Eamings per share (Note 22)
o710 Basic 3 029 3424
G810 Diluted 3 039 § 427

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.
Chairmmar: Li, Su-Pai Muanager: Wang, Hsin-Wet  Accounting Manager: Lee, Yu-Hsuan
3 BT Eg
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Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
Unit: NT% thousand

Code 2022 2021
Cash flow from operating activilies
A 10000 Met income before tax for the year 3 25576 £ 205117
A20010 [meomafexpenses fams:
A20100 Depreciation expense 3452 411
A20200 Amortization expense L1592 B35
AMA00 Met boss of financial assets ar fair
value through profit or loss 4,4%0 8287
A0S0 Financial cost |,97Tg 53
A21200 Interest income { 263 ) ( 176)
A21300 Dividend income i 1,732 [ G287
AX2A0 Share of profit (less) of subsidiaries
and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method { 33.287) { 237939}
AZ2300 Property, plant and equipment loss 55 -
AZ4100 Mz gain on foreign currency
exchange i 10,6010 ) i 1,251 )
A0 Met changes in operating assets and
liahilities
A3T115 Financial assets mandatorily at fair
value through profit or loss i 1,802 ) i 7.760
AJ11E0 Aceounts receivable [ ) i 7549
A6 Accounts receivable - related parties [ 5081) Ba5|
AZ1180 Crtheer receivables - 63
A312H) Prepayment e { O )
AJ2LED Crher payables [ 24,235} 20,723
A32330 Crher current liabilities (____ 75) (___3d)
AX3000 Cash generated from operations | 40,485 { 23,619
AZZ00 [mterest received 263 176
A33300 [nterest paid { 1,979} { 633 }
A3500 Income tax paid { 74217 ] 3.619)
AAMA Mer cash used in operating activities {49622 i 27.717)
Cash flow from investing activities
B E00 Acquisition of joint venture - [ f3.000
BO2700 Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment | 400 % i 282)
B3 700 Inerease in refundable deposits { 100y i | 880
B 400 Decrease in other receivables - related
parties 24679 G2073
{continued)
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{continued from previcus page)

Code 222 22
BO4500 Acquisition of intangible assets { il4) { 351)
BO6500 Increase in other financial assets {  17.854) { 1111
BOGHI Decrease in other financial assets 04 289 E:
BOTalH) Other dividends received |, 732 Q28
BOAQ Dividends received from subsidiaries B3.641 5
RBER Met cash generated from

investing activities 165.613 26,377

Cash flow from financing activities

COO100 Increase of short-term bomrowings 20,000 [ 10,000
00200 Drecrease in short-term borrowings (60.000) .
COl&00 Proceeds from long-term barmowings 40,000 .
CO4020 Repaid principal of lease liabilities { 3.210) i |,279)
COo4300 Dividend paid to the owners of the
Company { 789063) { 3531%)
CO5400 Acquisition of shares of subsidiaries - ( 33,792)
Cr4900 Treasury stock buyback cost (__19.029) (___30.438)
CCCC Met cash generated by (used in}
financing activities {__191.202) 8978
DDDD  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents 2913 [ BR1)
EEEE  Net increase in cash and cash equivalents | 7,702 6,757

E00I00  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 21621 |4.864

E00200  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year § 39315 3 _21.631

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

Chairman: Li, Su-Pai  Manager: Wang, Hsin-Wei  Accounting Manager: Lee, Yu-Hsuan

N R
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Unless otherwise noted, the amount is in NTD Thousand)

Company History

SUPERIOR PLATING TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company’’) was incorporated on September 26, 2008 under the original name of Taiwan
Huidu Industries Co., Ltd. The Company changed to current name on December 8, 2009.
The Company is mainly engaged in the wholesale of electrical appliances, wholesale of
industrial catalyst and the management and service of surface treatment technology.

The Company’s shares have been listed and traded on the TPEx since March 30,
2015.

The parent company only financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars,
the functional currency of the Company.

Approval Date and Procedures of The Financial Statements

The accompanying parent company only financial statements were approved by
the Board of Directors on March 20, 2023.

New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Adopted

Initial application of the amendments to the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations
(IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) (collectively, “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC).

The initial application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into
effect by the FSC did not have a significant effect on the accounting policies of the
Company.

The IFRSs endorsed by the FSC with effective date starting 2023

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Effective date Issued by
Interpretations IASB
Amendments to [AS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting January 1, 2023 (Note 1)
Policies”
Amendments to [AS 8 “Definition of Accounting January 1, 2023 (Note 2)
Estimates”
Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to January 1, 2023 (Note 3)
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

Note 1: Amendments are applicable to the reporting period beginning on or after
Sunday, January 1, 2023.

Note 2: Amendments are applicable to the changes on accounting estimates and
accounting policies for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023.
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Note 3: Except for the temporary difference of lease and decommissioning
obligations recognized as deferred income tax on January 1, 2022, the
amendments are applicable to transactions occurred after January 1, 2022.

As of the date the parent company only financial statements were authorized for
issue, the Company has assessed that the application of other standards and
interpretations will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position
and financial performance.

The IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Effective Date Issued by
Interpretations IASB (Note 1)
Amendments to [IFRS 10 and TAS 28 “Sale or To be determined by IASB

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture”

Amendments to [FRS 16 “Leases Liability in a Sale January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
and Leaseback”

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 17 “First time of application of ~ January 1, 2023
IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 —comparison information”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities January 1, 2024
as Current or Non-Current”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-Current Liabilities with ~ January 1, 2024
Contractual Terms”

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above-mentioned newly issued/ amended/
revised standards or interpretations are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: A seller-lessee shall apply the Amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to
sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of IFRS 16.

Up to the reporting date, the Company will continue evaluating other influences
on financial status and performance resulting from amendments to rules or
explanations. The related influences are to be disclosed once the evaluation is
accomplished.

Summary of Significant Accounting Polices

Statement of Compliance

These parent company only financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers.”

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying parent company only financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The fair value measurements are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value measurement inputs are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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1. Level I inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

2. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

3. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, the equity method is
adopted to the investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures. For the purpose of
making the current profit and loss, other comprehensive income and equity in the
parent company only financial statements identical to those in the Company’s owner,
several accounting treatment differences under individual and consolidated basis are
adjusted into “Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method,” “Share of the
Profit or Loss of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures Accounted for Using the Equity
Method,” “Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
Accounted for Using Equity Method” and related items.

Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities
Current assets include:
1. Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;

2. Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance
sheet date; and

3. Cash and cash equivalent (unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the date of statement
of financial position).

Current liabilities include:
1. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading;
2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and

3. Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to
more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as
non-current.

Foreign currency

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, transactions in
currencies (foreign currencies) other than the Company’s functional currency are
recognized at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency monetary amount is translated at the closing rate at each date
of the balance sheet. Exchange differences arising from settlement or translation are
recognized as profit or loss at the period.
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Non-monetary foreign currencies held at fair value at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction; however, non-monetary foreign currencies held
at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items carried at historical cost is reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction and will not be calculated again.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, assets and liabilities
from foreign operation, including subsidiaries and associates whose location or
currency are different from the Company, are translated into the presentation
currency, the New Taiwan dollar, at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates at the period. The resulting currency translation differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Investment in subsidiaries

The Company uses the equity method to account for its investments in
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are entities of which the Company holds control.

Under the equity method, an investment is initially recognized in the statements
of financial positional cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company’s share
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the subsidiaries as well as the
distribution received. In addition, the Company also recognizes its share in the
changes in equities of subsidiaries.

Changes in equity in the ownership of subsidiaries which do not result in loss of
control are disposed of as equity transactions. The difference between carrying
amount invested and the fair value paid and payable or received and receivable is
directly recognized as equity.

The loss of shares of the subsidiary equals or exceeds the Company’s interest in
that subsidiary, including the carrying amount of that subsidiary under equity method
and other long-term equity as the Company’s net investment in that subsidiary, is
recognized as loss according to proportion of shareholding.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary
recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized. Any excess of the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

The Company considers cash-generating unit in the entire financial statement as
testing for impairment and compares its recoverable amount with its carrying amount.
If the recoverable amount of assets increases, the reversal of impairment loss will be
recognized as profit. However, the carrying amount of assets after the reversal of
impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined net of required amortization and have no impairment loss been
recognized. Impairment loss of goodwill shall not reverse in the subsequent period.
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Unrealized profit and loss from downstream transactions with a subsidiary are
eliminated in the parent company only financial statements. Profit and loss from
upstream and sidestream transactions between subsidiaries are recognized in the
Company’s parent company only financial statements only to the extent that interests
in the subsidiary are not related to the Company.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.

Investments in the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, an investment in joint venture is initially recognized
in the statements of financial positional cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Company’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture as well as the distribution received.

When the Company subscribes to additional shares in a joint venture at a
percentage different from its existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying
amount of the investment differs from the amount of the Company’s proportionate
interest in the net assets of the joint venture. The Company records such a difference
as an adjustment to investments with the corresponding amount charged or credited
to capital surplus — changes in the net equity of the joint venture accounted for using
the equity method and investment accounted for using the equity method. If the
Company’s ownership interest is reduced due to its additional subscription of the
new shares of the joint venture, the proportionate amount of the gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture
is reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the investee
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. When the adjustment should
be debited to capital surplus, but the capital surplus recognized from investments
accounted for by using the equity method is insufficient, the shortage is debited to
retained earnings.

When the Company’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in that joint venture (which includes any carrying amount of the investment
accounted for by the equity method and long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Company’s net investment in the joint venture), the Company
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses and liabilities
are recognized only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal obligations, or
constructive obligations, or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

The entire carrying amount of an investment is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognized shall not be allocated to any asset that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases

Profit and loss from downstream transactions with joint ventures are recognized
in the Company’s parent company only financial statements only to the extent that
interests in the joint venture are not related to the Company.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at costs and subsequently
measured at costs of the amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognized using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. Every significant item is
depreciated separately. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method at least at the end of each reporting period, and with
the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
profit or loss.

Intangible assets
1.  Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment loss. Amortization is recognized on
a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, residual values, and
amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

2. Derecognition

On derecognition of an intangible asset, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews whether there is any
indication that its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount, with the resulting impairment loss recognized in
profit or loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of an
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but only to the extent of the carrying amount (less amortization expenses or
depreciation expenses) that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. The reversal of
impairment loss is recognized as profit or loss.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities shall be recognized in the parent company only
financial statements when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

1. Financial asset

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis.

(1) Classification of measurement

The financial assets held by the Company include financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at amortized cost, and
investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are mandatory
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets that are
mandatory measured at fair value through profit or loss include
investments in equity instruments that are not designated by the
Company as measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income or loss and all other debt instruments that are not classified as
investments measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value. The dividends and interests earned are recognized in
other income and interest income, respectively. The profits or losses
arising from remeasurement are recognized in other income and losses.
Please refer to Note 25 for the fair value measurement.

B. Financial assets at amortized cost

When the financial assets invested by the Company satisfies the
following two criteria at the same time, it is classified as the amortized
cost financial assets:
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a. Where the financial assets are held under certain business model,
and the purpose of such model is to hold the financial assets in
order to collect contract cash flows; and

b. Where contract terms generated cash flow of a specific date, and
such cash flow is completely for the payment of the interest of
principle and external circulating principal amount.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable (including related parties), other
receivables — related parties, other financial assets — current, other
financial assets — non-current and refundable deposits. When the
recognition commences, effective interest method is used to determine
the carrying amount less any amortized cost of depreciation. Any
exchange gains and losses are recognized as gains and losses.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of such a financial asset, except for:

a. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, for which
interest income is calculated by applying the credit adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets;
and

b. Financial assets that are not credit impaired on purchase or
origination but have subsequently become credit impaired, for
which interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets in
subsequent reporting periods.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when the issuer or the
borrower has significant financial difficulty or risk in default; or that it
is becoming probable that the borrower will undergo bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization; or an active market for that financial
asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties.

Cash equivalents include time deposits with original maturities
within 3 months from the date of acquisition, which are highly liquid,
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

. Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
investments in equity instruments that is not held for trading and not
recognized as contingent consideration as at FVTOCI.

Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Subsequently
the changes in fair value are reported in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of investments, the
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accumulated profit or loss is directly transferred to retained earnings
and it is not reclassified to profit or loss.

The dividend from investments in equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
profit or loss upon the Company’s right to receive payment is
established, except for apparently the dividend representing the
recovery of the partial investment cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the date of each balance sheet, the Company reviews expected
credit losses to estimate the impairment loss of financial assets, including
accounts receivable, other receivables, other financial assets and
refundable deposits measured at amortized cost.

The loss allowance for accounts receivable is measured at an
amount equal to useful lives expected credit losses. Other financial assets
are assessed to determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since the original recognition. If there is no significant increase,
then the allowance loss is recognized according to the 12-month expected
credit loss. If it has increased significantly, then allowance loss is
recognized according to the lifetime expected credit loss.

Expected credit losses are weighted average credit losses with the
probability of default events. The 12-month expected credit losses are
expected credit losses that result from default events possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Lifetime expected credit losses result
from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instruments.

For the purpose of internal controls on credit risk, without
considering the collaterals it holds, the Company determines the
following events as a breach of contract:

A. There is internal or outside information prevails that it is not possible
the borrower pays off the debt.

B. The overdue exceeds 365 days, unless reasonable and supportable
information indicates that a delayed default basis is more appropriate.

All impairment losses on financial assets have decreased their
carrying amount through contra accounts.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes the financial assets only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets to another entity.
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On derecognition of financial assets at amortized cost in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss. On
derecognition of Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred
directly to retained earnings, without recycling through profit or loss.

2. Equity instrument

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

The repurchase of the Corporation’s own equity instruments is recognized
in and deducted directly from equity, and its carrying amounts are calculated
based on weighted average by share types. No gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

3. Financial liability
(1) Follow-up measurement

All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities

On the derecognition of financial liabilities, the difference between
their carrying amount and the consideration paid and payable, including
any transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities, is recognized as profit or
loss.

Revenue recognition

The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation and
recognizes the revenue when each of the obligations is satisfied after the customer
has identified it.

Technical services provided

Technical service income is recognized when the services are performed.

Processing services provided

Processing service income is recognized when the services are performed.

Other services provided

Other service income is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the service will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably, and sales revenue is recognized when the terms of
the service contract are fulfilled in accordance with the relevant contract.
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Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease.

The Company as lessee

Except for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value and therefore
qualified for recognition exemption, and short-term leases whose lease payments are
recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis during the lease period, the
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of all other leases are recognized at the lease
starting date.

The right-of-use asset is measured at the original cost (the original measured
amount of the lease liability), and subsequently measured at the amount of cost
minus accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted
for the re-measured lease liability. Right-of-use assets are presented on a separate
line in the parent company only balance sheets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement dates to the earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use
assets or the end of the lease terms.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the original lease payment.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate in a lease if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is
a change in a lease term, the Group remeasures the lease liabilities with a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use assets. However, if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero, any remaining amount of the
remeasurement is recognized as profit or loss. Lease liabilities are presented on a
separate line in the parent company only balance sheets.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognized as an expense for the current period.
Employee benefits
1. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in
a period and should be recognized as expenses in that period when the
employees render service.

2. Post-employment benefits

For defined contribution plans, the amount of contribution payable in
respect of service rendered by employees in that period should be recognized
as expenses.

Income Taxes

230



The income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

1. Tax currently payable

The Company has determined the current income (losses) and calculated
taxes payable (receivable) in accordance with regulations established by the
jurisdiction for tax return.

According to Income Tax Act in Republic of China, an additional income
tax levied at unappropriated earnings are recognized in shareholders’ annual
meeting.

Income tax payable for prior period is adjusted to the current income tax.
2. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for temporary differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liability is generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences or loss carryforwards to the extent that taxable profit is probably
available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Company can
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognized to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits to
realize the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the date of
balance sheet and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered. The deferred tax assets originally not recognized is also
reviewed at the date of balance sheet and increased to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
recovered, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of balanced sheet. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that arise from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the date of balance sheet, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3. Current and deferred tax for the year
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Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except the
current and deferred tax that relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity are recognized respectively in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Significant Accounting Assumptions and Judgments, and Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factors that are
considered relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Company has taken the possible impact of COVID-19 on domestic
development and economic environment into consideration on significant accounting
estimates of cash flow estimation, growth rate, discount rate and profitability. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period when the estimates are revised if the
revisions affect only that period. If revisions affect both current and future periods, the
accounting estimates are recognized in the current and future periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Cash on hand and working capital $ 10 $ 5
Demand deposits 23,967 21,616
Cash equivalents (investments
with an initial maturity of less
than three months)
Time deposits 15,346 -
$ 39.323 $ 21.621
Range of interest rates for bank deposits as at:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Bank deposits 0.01%~4.00% 0.01%~0.20%

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Financial asset — non-current
Mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets
- Equity funds from
private placement $ 27,432 $ 30,020

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current
Investment in equity instrument $ 264 $ 600
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Investment in equity instrument

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current
Foreign investment
Listed shares
Dufu Technology Corp.
Common stock of
BERHAD $ 264 $ 600

The Company’s investment in Dufu Technology Corp. The purpose of the
investment in BERHAD common stock is not for making short-term profit; therefore,
the management of the Company deems if the short-term volatility at fair value of such
investments recognized in profit or loss is not consistent with the aforementioned
investment plan, it will be determined that such investments are measured through other
comprehensive income at fair value.

Accounts receivable

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accounts receivable
Measured at amortized cost
Gross carrying amount $ 920 $ 800
Less: Allowance for
impairment loss - -

$ 920 § 800

Accounts receivable

The Company’s average credit period for merchandise sales is 120 days, and no
interest is accrued on accounts receivable.

To mitigate credit risk, the management of the Company has designated functional
working group responsible for decision on the line of credit, credit approval and other
supervision to ensure proper action has been taken to collect overdue accounts
receivable. In addition, the collectible amount of accounts receivable of the Company
shall be reviewed individually at the date of balance sheet to ensure the uncollectible
accounts receivable has been listed to appropriate impairment loss. Accordingly, the
management of the Company considers the Company’s credit risk has significantly
decreased.

The loss allowance for accounts receivable of the Company is measured at an
amount equal to useful lives expected credit losses. The expected credit losses on trade
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by considering forward-looking
factors such as the past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position. As the Company’s historical credit loss experience does not
show significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision
for matrix based on past due status is not further distinguished according to the
Company’s different customer base to set the expected credit loss.
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If any evidence shows the counterparty faces significant financial difficulty and the
collectible amount cannot be reasonably expected, the Company will directly offset the
relevant accounts receivable but keep track of the receivables. The recovered amount is
recognized in profit or loss.

The following table details the loss allowance of trade receivables based on the
Company’s provision matrix:

December 31, 2022

More than
1-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days  121-365 days 365 days

Not overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
The expected credit loss rate 0% - - - - -
Gross carrying amount $ 920 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 920
Loss allowance (lifetime ECLs) - - - - - - -
Amortized cost S 920 S - S - S - S - S - S 920

December 31, 2021

More than
1-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days  121-365 days 365 days

Not overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total
The expected credit loss rate 0% - - - - -
Gross carrying amount $ 800 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 800
Loss allowance (lifetime ECLs) - - - - - - -
Amortized cost S 800 S - S - S - S - S - S 800

Investments accounted for using equity method

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Investment in subsidiaries $ 852,385 $ 866,603
Investments in joint ventures 39.487 58.419
$ 891.872 $ 925,022
Investment in subsidiaries
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Superior Plating Corp. $ 852,385 $ 866,603
Percentage of ownership interests and voting
rights
Subsidiary December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Superior Plating Corp. 100% 100%

In October and November 2021, the Company increased the investment in its
subsidiary Superior Plating Corp. by NT$19,682 thousand and NT$14,110 thousand
(US$710 thousand and US$507 thousand), respectively.

In October and November 2021, the Company’s subsidiary Superior Plating
Corp. increased its investment at a percentage different from its existing ownership
percentage in its subsidiary Superior Plating Technology Holding (Thailand) Co. in
the amount of NT$19,682 thousand and NT$14,110 thousand (US$710 thousand and
USS$507 thousand), respectively, resulting in an increase in the percentage of
ownership from 72% to 78%. Since this transaction did not change Superior Plating
Corp.’s control over its subsidiary, the transaction was considered as an equity
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transaction, the Company recognized an increase in capital surplus of NT$393
thousand in 2021 as a result of the aforementioned subsidiary transaction.

In October and November 2021, the Company’s sub-subsidiary Superior Plating
Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd. increased its investment at a percentage
different from its existing ownership percentage in its subsidiary Superior Plating
Technology (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in the amount of NT$19,682 thousand and
NT$14,110 thousand (THB 23,792 thousand and 16,480 thousand), respectively,
resulting in an increase in the percentage of ownership from 64% to 66%. Since this
transaction did not change Plating Technology Holding (Thailand) Co., Ltd.’s control
over its subsidiary, the transaction was considered as an equity transaction, the
Company recognized a decrease in capital surplus of NT$25 thousand in 2021 as a
result of the aforementioned subsidiary transaction.

For information on the subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company, please refer
to Table 4 and Table 5 of Note 29.

Investments in joint ventures

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Joint venture that is not
individually material $ 39,487 $ 58,419
2022 2021
The Company’s share of
Net loss for the period ($ 18,932) ($ 4,581)
Other comprehensive
income - -
Total comprehensive
income ($ 18,932) ($ 4,581)

The Company entered into an investment agreement with Amulaire Thermal
Technology, Inc. on April 30, 2021 to establish a joint venture, Ever Superior
Technologies Corporation. According to the agreement, both parties shall deposit
NT$30,000 thousand, NT$30,000 thousand and NT$120,000 thousand of fund in
three installments on or before May 27, July 31 and November 30, 2021. Under the
agreement, the Company and Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. contributed 51%
and 49% of the capital in Phase I and Phase II, respectively. In Phase III, besides the
Company and Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. contributing 27% and 20.5%,
respectively, Evergreen Aviation Technologies Corp should contribute 52.5% of the
capital as well in Phase II. After the completion of the third phase of the capital
contribution, the Company, Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. and Evergreen
Aviation Technologies Corp should hold 35%, 30% and 35% of the Ever Superior
Technologies Corporation’s equity, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the
Company had invested NT$63,000 thousand in the aforementioned joint venture and
held 35% of its shares in it.
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Property, plant and equipment

Used by the Company

Office Lease
equipment improvement Total
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 3,927 $ 3,004 $ 6,931
Addition 400 - 400
Disposal 344) - ( 344)
Balance at December 31, $ 3,983 $ 3,004 $ 6,987

2022
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 2,889 $ 2,711 $ 5,600
Depreciation expense 200 6 206
Disposal 286) - ( 286)
Balance at December 31,

2022 $ 2,803 $ 2717 $ 5,520
Net at December 31, 2022 $ 1,180 $ 287 $ 1,467
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 3,645 $ 3,004 $ 6,649
Addition 282 - 282
Balance at December 31, $ 3,927 $ 3,004 $ 6,931

2021
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 2,716 $ 2,706 $ 5,422
Depreciation expense 173 S 178
Balance at December 31,

2021 $ 2,889 $ 2,711 $ 5,600
Net at December 31, 2021 $ 1,038 $ 293 $ 1,331

No impairment loss was recognized or reversed in 2022 and 2021.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful life:

Office equipment
Lease improvement

Lease agreements

Right-of-use assets
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Carrying amount of
right-of-use assets

Building $ 2,457 $ 347
Transportation Equipment 3.676 6,176
$ 6,133 $ 6,523
2022 2021
Addition to right-of-use assets $ 3,150 $ 6369

Depreciation expense of
right-of-use assets

Building $ 1,040 $ 1,040
Transportation Equipment 2,206 193
$ 3,246 $ 1,233

No impairment loss was recognized or reversed in 2022 and 2021.

Lease liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Carrying amount of lease
liabilities (Note 26)
Current $ 3,244 $ 2,666
Non-current $ 2,961 $ 3,893

Ranges of discount rates for lease liabilities are as follow

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Building 1.73% 5.91%
Transportation Equipment 1.67% 1.67%

Material leases and terms

The Company leases buildings and transportation equipment mainly for the use
of offices with lease terms of 3 years.

Upon the termination of the lease period, the Company has no bargain purchase
option for leased objectives.

Other lease information

2022 2021
Expenses relating to short-term
leases $ 29 $§ 29
Lease expense for low-value
assets $ 48 § 43
Total cash outflow for leases ($  3.478) ($  1412)

The Company opts for recognition exemption, instead of as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, for the short-term leases of computer equipment, as well as
computer equipment that is qualified as a low value asset.
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XIII.  Other intangible assets
Computer
software Patent Total
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 6,476 $ 1,500 $ 7,976
Intangible assets acquired

separately 374 - 374
Disposal - ( 1.500) ( 1.500)
Balance at December 31,

2022 $ 6,850 $ - $ 6,850
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 3,756 $ 1,246 $ 5,002
Amortization expense 938 254 1,192
Disposal - ( 1.500) ( 1.500)
Balance at December 31,

2022 4,694 5 - 4.694
Net at December 31, 2022 $ 2,156 $ - $ 2,156
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 7975 $ 1,500 $ 9475
Intangible assets acquired

separately 351 - 351
Disposal ( 1.850) - ( 1.850)
Balance at December 31,

2021 $ 6476 $ 1,500 $ 7976
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 4,901 $ 1,096 $ 5997
Amortization expense 705 150 855
Disposal ( 1.850) - ( 1.850)
Balance at December 31,

2021 $ 3,756 $ 1,246 $ 5,002
Net at December 31, 2021 $ 2,720 $ 254 $ 2974

Amortization is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated

useful life:

Computer software 3—-10 years

Patent 10 years

XIV.  Other assets
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current
Other financial assets — current

(Note)

Restricted assets $ 34,610 $ 83,928
(continued)
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Non-current
Refundable deposits (Note) (Note 26) $ 2,180 $ 2,080
Other financial assets — non-current
(Note)

Restricted assets - 19,453

$ 2,180 $ 21,533

Interest Rate Range
Restricted assets 1.05%~2.80% 0.03%~1.70%

Note: The Company considers the historical experience of the debtors and the current
market conditions to measure the 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses on other financial assets and refundable deposits. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, no expected credit losses are required to be
recognized for other financial assets and refundable deposits held by the
Company.

Please refer to Note 27 for information on pledges provided by the Company to
financial institutions.

Loans

Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Secured loan (Note 27) (Note)
Bank loan $ - $ 50,000
Unsecured loan
Credit loan 70,000 60,000
$ 70,000 $ 110,000

The annual interest rates on bank loans ranged from 1.88% to 2.03% and 1.65%
to 1.70% as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Note: The bank loans were secured by the Company’s bank deposits.

Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Unsecured loan
Bank loan $ 40,000 $ -
Less: current portion ( 2.,500) -
Long-term borrowings $ 37,500 s -
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The borrowings (loans) of the Company include:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Financing period and interest repayment Interest rate Interest rate

Financing Provider Collateral method Amount % Amount %
First Commercial Bank None From 2022.9.20 to 2027.9.20; the grace $ 10,000 2.14 $
period is 1 year starting from October
20, 2022; interest is paid monthly during
the grace period; after the grace period,
the principal and interest will be repaid
in 48 equal monthly installments.
First Commercial Bank None From 2022.10.7 to 2027.10.7; the grace 30,000 2.14
period is 1 year starting from October
20, 2022; interest is paid monthly during
the grace period; after the grace period,
the principal and interest will be repaid
in 48 equal monthly installments.
p— I
XVI.  Other liabilities
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current
Other payables
Salary and bonus payable $ 7,469 $ 30,632
Dividend payable (Note 23) 8,774 -
Payables for purchases on
behalf of others 2,553 3,413
Insurance premium payable 267 250
Business tax payable 53 121
Other 703 864
$ 19,819 $ 35,280
Other liabilities
Receipts under custody $ 101 $ 176
XVII. Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

The pension system of the “Labor Pension Act” is applicable to the Company, it is
the defined contribution plan managed by the government. The Company has
contributed 6% of the monthly employee salary into the personal dedicated account
under the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

XVIIIL. Equity
(D Share capital

Common stock

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Authorized shares (in

thousands) 100,000 100,000
Authorized capital $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Issued and paid shares (in

thousands) 44,456 44,456
Issued capital $ 444,555 $ 444,555
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The Company’s board of directors resolved on October 6, 2021 to buy back
treasury shares from the stock exchange. The buyback period is from October 8,
2021 to December 2, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, 523 thousand shares have
been bought back (buyback cost is NT$30,438 thousand).

The Company’s board of directors resolved on October 6, 2022 to buy back
treasury shares from the stock exchange. The buyback period is from October 7,
2022 to December 5, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, 368 thousand shares have
been bought back (buyback cost is NT$19,029 thousand).

Capital surplus
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

May be used to offset a deficit,

distributed as cash

dividends, or transferred to

share capital (1)
Shares premium from issuance $ 177,375 $ 177,375
Premium from corporate bond
conversion 144,586 144,586
Treasury share transaction 2,993 2,993
May be used to offset a deficit
only
Change in ownership interests

in subsidiaries (2) 368 368

$ 325,322 $ 325,322

1. Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the

Company has no deficit, such capital surplus may be distributed as cash
dividends or transferred to share capital (limited to a certain percentage of the
Company’s capital surplus and once a year).

2. Such capital surplus arises from the effects of changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries resulting from equity transactions other than actual disposal or
acquisitions or from changes in capital surplus of subsidiaries accounted for
using the equity method.
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Retained earnings and dividends policy

The amendments to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation was approved at
the annual general meeting of shareholders held on June 22, 2022. The earnings
distribution policy specified in the amended Articles of Incorporation provided that
the surplus earning distribution or loss off-setting proposal may be proposed at the
close of each half fiscal year. If there is any surplus in the first half fiscal year, the
Company shall first estimate and reserve the taxes, offset the accumulated deficit as
required by law, estimate and reserve the remuneration of employees and directors,
and set aside 10% as legal reserve. However, when the legal reserve amounts to the
authorized capital, this shall not apply. Then, set aside or reverse a special reserve in
accordance with relevant regulations or as requested by the competent authorities. If
a surplus remains, the balance combined with undistributed retained earnings from
preceding periods shall be distributed according to the distribution plan proposed by
the Board of Directors. If distributing in the form of new shares to be issued, the
proposal shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution. If distributing
in the form of cash, it shall be resolved by the board of directors without submitting
to the shareholders’ meeting for ratification.

When there is a surplus in the annual final accounts, in addition to paying
income tax and offsetting prior years’ deficits, the remainder is distributed as
follows:

1.  10% of the balance shall be set aside as a legal reserve. However when the
legal reserve amounts to the authorized capital, this shall not apply.

2. When necessary, a special reserve may be allocated or reversed in accordance
with the law.

If a surplus remains, the balance combined with undistributed retained earnings
from preceding periods shall be distributed according to the distribution plan
proposed by the Board of Directors. If distributing in the form of new shares to be
issued, the proposal shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution.

In accordance with Article 240, Paragraph 5 of the Company Act, the Board of
Directors is authorized to distribute dividends and bonuses or the whole or in part of
the legal reserve and capital surplus as provided in Article 241, Paragraph 1 of the
Company Act, in the form of cash, with the a resolution has been adopted by a
majority vote at a meeting of the board of directors attended by two-thirds of the total
number of directors, and to report such distribution to the shareholders’ meeting. If
distributing in the form of new shares to be issued, the proposal shall be submitted to
the shareholders’ meeting for resolution.

According to the Company’s policy on distribution of earnings before the
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, when there is surplus in the final
accounts, the Company shall first offset the deficit and then set aside 10% as legal
reserve. However when the legal reserve amounts to the authorized capital, this shall
not apply. Then, set aside or reverse a special reserve in accordance with relevant
regulations or as requested by the competent authorities. If a surplus remains, the
balance combined with undistributed retained earnings at the beginning of the period
and an adjustment to the current year’s undistributed earnings shall be distributed as
distributable earnings. The Board of Directors shall reserve a portion of the retained
earnings with reference to the earnings disbursement ratio and future business
conditions, and then prepare a proposal for distributing the remaining balance to
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submit to the shareholders for resolution. Earnings distributed shall not be less than
10% of the distributable earnings. However, if the dividends per share distributed by
the aforesaid resolution is less than NT$0.3, it may not be distributed as proposed by
the board of directors and acknowledged in the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company’s policy on the distribution of remuneration to employees and
directors is described in Note 20 (7), Employees’ Compensation and Remuneration to
Directors.

In accordance with Article 237 of the Company Act, a company, when
allocating its surplus profits after having paid all taxes and dues, shall first set aside
ten percent of said profits as legal reserve. Where such legal reserve amounts to the
total paid-in capital, this provision shall not apply. The legal reserve may be used to
offset a deficit. If there is no deficit, 25% of the legal reserve in excess of the paid-in
capital may be transferred to capital or distributed in cash.

The Company’s shareholders’ meeting held on July 15, 2021 resolved to amend
the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, which provides that when a special reserve
is set aside for the net decrease in other equity accumulated in previous years, if there
is not enough unappropriated earnings from previous years, the amount of items
adjusted to the current year’s undistributed earnings other than after-tax net income
for the period will be added to the current year’s undistributed earnings. Prior to the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation, the Company appropriated the
undistributed earnings from the previous years as required by law.

At the annual shareholders’ meetings held on June 22, 2022 and July 15, 2021,
the Company resolved the following earnings distribution proposals for 2021 and
2020, respectively:

2021 2020
Legal reserve $ 18,802 $ 10,260
Special reserve $ 9,569 $ 34,757
Cash dividend $ 78,963 $ 35,513
Cash dividend per share (NTS$) $ 1.8 $ 0.8

The Board of Directors resolved the following proposal for the 2022 half-year
earnings distribution:

July 1, 2022 to
December 31,  January 1, 2022

2022 to June 30, 2022

Board of Directors’ November 7,

Resolution Date March 20, 2023 2022
Legal reserve $ 282 $ 2,322
Special reserve ($ 5,798) ( 9,297)
Cash dividend $ 4,350 $ 8,774
Cash dividend per share

(NT$) $ 0.1 $ 0.2
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The above cash dividends have been resolved by the board of directors and the
rest are scheduled to be resolved at the shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 9,

2023.
Special reserve

2022

Balance at the beginning of the
year $ 34,757
Provision of special reserves

Deductions for other equity

items 272
Balance at the end of the year $ 35,029

Other equity items

2021

34,757
$ 34,757

1. Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign

operations

2022

Balance at the beginning of
the year ($ 44,792)
Generated in the current year
Exchange difference of

foreign operations 19,204
Associated income tax ( 3.841)
Other comprehensive
income for the year 15,363
Balance at the end of the
year ($ 29,429)

comprehensive income

2022

2021

Balance at the beginning of
the year $ 466
Generated in the current year
Unrealized gain or loss

Equity instrument ( 335)
Associated income
tax 67
Other comprehensive
income for the year ( 268)
Balance at the end of the
year $ 198
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( 12,072)

2,414
(_ 9.658)

($_44,792)

Unrealized gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through other

2021

$ 377

111

( 22)
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Treasury shares

Shares
Transferred to
Employees Written off
(thousand (thousand Total (thousand

Purpose of Buy-back shares) shares) shares)
Shares held at January 1,

2022 587 - 587
Increased in the year 368 - 368
Shares held at December

31,2022 955 - 955
Shares held at January 1,

2021 64 - 64
Increased in the year 523 - 523
Shares held at December

31,2021 587 - 587

Under the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company shall neither pledge
treasury shares nor exercise shareholders’ rights on these shares, such as the rights to
dividends and to vote.

19. Revenues

2022 2021
Customer contract revenue

Service income — technical

service income (Note 26) $ 24217 $ 16,058
Service revenue — processing

service 7,606 1,920
Other operating income —

commission income (Note

26) 1,254 2,950

$ 33,077 $ 20,928

Description of Customer Contract

Technical service income

The Company provides technical services and the contract price is calculated
based on the cost-plus pricing on the inputs.

Processing service income

The Company’s processing service revenue is mainly generated from metal
surface treatment services and is recognized when the services are provided. The
price of the processing service is negotiated between the parties.

Commission income

Commission income is the revenue received from purchasing raw materials on
behalf of the related parties, and the price is determined by the contract.
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December 31, December 31,

2022 2021 January 1, 2021
Accounts receivable (Note
9) $ 920 $ 800 $ 46
Accounts receivable —
related parties (Note 26) $ 7.111 $ 2,005 $ 10,256
XX. Net Income for the period
D Interest income
2022 2021
Bank deposits $ 263 $ 176
(I1) Other income
2022 2021
Dividend income
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss $ 1,732 $ 928
Other 55 40
$ 1,787 $ 968
(I11) Other gains and (losses)
2022 2021
Property, plant and equipment loss ($ 58) $ -
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) 6,963 ( 4,768)
Loss on valuation of financial
assets ( 4,490) ( 8,287)
Other ( 7) (_ 10)
$ 2,408 ($ 13,065)
(Iv) Financial cost
2022 2021
Interest on bank loan $ 1,788 $ 594
Interest on lease liabilities (Note
26) 191 61
$ 1,979 $ 655
(V) Depreciation and amortization
2022 2021
An analysis of depreciation by
function
Operating expenses $ 3,452 $ 1411
An analysis of amortization by
function
Administrative expense $ 1,192 $ 855
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Employee benefit expense

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 20,871 $ 45,280
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans 861 881
Other employee benefits 2.499 2,302
Total employee benefit expense $ 24231 $ 48,463
An analysis by function
Operating costs $ 10,442 $ 12,711
Operating expenses 13.789 35,752
$ 24231 $ 48,463

Employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors

The Articles of Incorporation of the Company stipulate distributing employees’
compensation and remuneration of directors at the rates from 5% to 10% and no
higher than 5% of the profit, respectively. The estimated employees’ compensation
and remuneration of directors for 2022 and 2021 on the basis described above were
resolved by the Board of Directors on March 20, 2023 and March 21, 2022,
respectively, as follows:

Estimated ratio

2022 2021
Employee’s compensation 7.5% 7.5%
Remuneration to directors and 4% 4%
supervisors
Amount
2022 2021
Cash Cash
Employee’s compensation $ 2,167 $ 17,383
Remuneration to directors and $ 1,156 $ 9,271
supervisors

If there is any change in the amounts after the publication date of annual parent
company only financial statements, it is treated as changes in accounting estimates
and recognized in the following year.

There is no difference between the actually distributed remuneration of
employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors for 2021 and 2020, and the

amounts recognized in the parent company only financial statements for 2021 and
2020.
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For information on the employees compensation and remuneration to directors
and supervisors resolved in the Board of Directors’ meetings of the Company, please
visit MOPS of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

(VIII) Foreign currency exchange gains (losses)

2022 2021
Total foreign currency
exchange gains $ 11,350 $ 5,023
Total foreign currency
exchange losses ( 4,387) ( 9.791)
Net gain (loss) $ 6,963 ($_ 4,768)

XXI.  Income Taxes
D Income tax recognized in profit or loss

Major components of tax (benefit) expense were as follows:

2022 2021
Tax currently payable
Generated in the current year § 5274 $ -
Levied on unappropriated
earnings 4,034 1,103
Adjustment on prior years - 10
Non-deductible income from
foreign sources 2,493 1,833
11,801 2,946
Deferred tax
Generated in the current year (__12,269) 14,154
Income tax (benefit) expense
recognized in profit or loss ($ 468) $ 17,100
A reconciliation of accounting income and income tax (gain) expense is as
follows:
2022 2021
Net income before tax $ 25,576 $ 205,117
Income tax expense (benefit)
calculated at the statutory rate $ 5,115 $ 41,023
Nondeductible expenses in
determining taxable income 3,887 917
Effect of deferred income tax on
earnings from subsidiaries ( 6,810) ( 36,755)
Levied on unappropriated earnings 4,034 1,103
Unrecognized loss carryforward ( 9,187) 8,969
Adjustments to prior years’ tax - 10
Non-deductible income from
foreign sources 2,493 1,833
Income tax expense recognized in
profit or loss ($ 468) $ 17,100
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Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income or loss

Deferred tax
Generated in the current year
- Exchange of foreign
operations
- Unrealized gain/loss on
financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Income tax recognized in other
comprehensive income or
loss

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable

Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2022 2021
$ 3,841 ($  2,414)

( 22
$ 3774 (S 2,392)

December 31, 2022

5 -

$§ 5.110

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities:

2022

Deferred tax assets

Temporary difference
Exchange difference of foreign
operations
Unrealized exchange loss
Unrealized loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary difference

Unrealized gain on financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Unrealized exchange gain

Allowance for losses — accounts
receivable

Gain on investments accounted for
using equity method

December 31, 2021

$ 373

$ 1,103

Recognition in

Balance at the other

beginning of  Recognition in comprehensive Balance at the
the year profit or loss income end of the year

§ 10,516 $ - (8 3,841) $ 6,675

1,927  ( 1,927) - -

1,363 898 - 2,261

§ 13806 (% 1,029) (8 3.841) $ 8,936

$ 117 $ - (8 67) $ 50

- 195 - 195

10 2 - 12

13.495 ( 13.495) - -

§ 13,622 ($__ 13,298) ($§ 67) $ 257
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XXII.

Recognition in

Balance at the other
beginning of  Recognition in comprehensive Balance at the
the year profit or loss income end of the year
Deferred tax assets
Temporary difference
Exchange difference of foreign
operations $ 8,102 $ - $ 2,414 $ 10,516
Unrealized exchange loss 2,177 ( 250) - 1,927
Unrealized loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - 1,363 - 1,363
Loss on investments accounted for
using equity method 2258 ( 2.258)

§ 12537 (3% 1,145) § 2,414 § 13,806

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary difference
Unrealized gain on financial assets at
fair value through other

comprehensive income $ 95 $ - $ 22 $ 117
Unrealized gain on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss 294 ( 294) - -
Allowance for losses — accounts

receivable 202 ( 192) - 10
Gain on investments accounted for

using equity method - 13.495 - 13.495

$ 591 § 13,009 $ 22 § 13,622

Unused loss carryforwards on deferred income tax assets not recognized in the parent
company only balance sheets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Loss carryforwards
Expires in 2020 $ - $ 44,947
Expires in 2031 43,223 44,211
$ 43223 $ 89,158

Income tax examination

The tax authorities have examined the income tax returns of the Company
through 2020. As of December 31, 2022, the Company did not have any tax litigation
outstanding.

Earnings per share

Unit: NTS$ per share

2022 2021
Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations $ 0.59 $ 4.24
Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations $ 0.59 $ 4.22
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The net income and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in
calculating earnings per share were as follows:

Net Income for the period

2022 2021
Earnings used in the computation
of basic earnings per share $ 26,044 $ 188,017
Number of Shares Unit: Thousand shares
2022 2021

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in computation

of basic earnings per share 43,825 44,295
Effect of potentially dilutive

ordinary shares:

Employee’s compensation 92 239

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the

computation of diluted earnings

per share 43917 44,534

Since the Company offered to settle compensation paid to employees in cash or
shares, the Company assumed the entire amount of the compensation would be settled
in shares and the resulting potential shares were included in the weighted average
number of shares outstanding used in the computation of diluted earnings per share, as
the effect is dilutive. Such dilutive effect of the potential shares was included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share until the number of shares to be distributed to
employees is resolved in the following year.

Cash flow information

Non-cash transaction
The Company had the following non-cash financing activities in 2022:

The Company’s board of directors resolved to distribute cash dividends to
shareholders on November 7, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, the balance of
NT$8,774 thousand has not been distributed and is recognized as other payables.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2022
Non-cash changes
Lease December 31,
January 1, 2022 Cash flow Addition of lease modification Financial cost Other

Short-term

borrowings $ 110,000 ($ 40,000 ) $ - $ - $ - $ - $
Long-term

borrowings - 40,000
Lease

liabilities 6.559 ( 3210 ) 3.150 ( 294 ) 191 ( 191)

S 116,559 (S 3210) S 3,150 (@ 294 ) S 191 (@ 191 ) S
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Non-cash changes

Addition of lease December 31,
January 1, 2021 Cash flow Financial cost Other 2021
Short-term
borrowings $ - $ 110,000 S - S - $ - $ 110,000
Lease
liabilities 1.469 ( 1.279 ) 6.369 61 ( 61 ) 6.559
S 1,469 $ 108,721 S 6,369 S 61 (S 61 ) S 116,559

XXIV. Capital risk management

XXV.

ey

The Company conducts capital management to ensure that the entities in the group
can maximize shareholders’ return by optimizing the balance of debt and equity on the
premises of continuing to operate. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged
in both 2022 and 2021.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by
cash and cash equivalents) and equity (comprising issued ordinary shares, capital
surplus, retained earnings, other equity and treasury stock).

The Company does not have to comply with other external capital requirements.

Based on recommendations of the key management personnel, in order to balance
the overall capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, the number of new shares issued or repurchased, and/or the amount of
new debt issued or existing debt redeemed.

Financial Instruments

Fair value information — financial instruments measured at fair value on a
repeatability basis

1. Fair value hierarchy
December 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Mutual funds $ - $ - $ 27.432 $ 27432

Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Domestic and foreign listed
shares
- Equity investment $ 264 $ - $ - $ 264

December 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Mutual funds $ - $ - $ 30,020 $ 30,020

Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Domestic and foreign listed
shares
- Equity investment $ 600 $ - $ - $ 600
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There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in 2022 and 2021.

2. Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on financial instruments

2022
Measured at fair
value through profit
or loss
Financial asset Equity instrument
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 30,020
Acquisition 1,902
Recognition in profit or loss (Other gains and
losses) ( 4.490)
Balance at the end of the year § 27,432
2021
Measured at fair
value through profit
or loss
Financial asset Equity instrument
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 30,538
Acquisition 7,769
Recognition in profit or loss (Other gains and
losses) ( 8,287)

Balance at the end of the year $ 30,020

3. Valuation techniques and inputs applied for Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of private equity funds is evaluated by using the asset-based
approach and is also estimated with reference to the net worth and operating
performance of the investees’ most recently financial statements.

(ID) Categories of financial instruments
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Financial asset
Measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss $ 27,432 $ 30,020
Financial assets at amortized cost
(Note 1) 84,676 133,098
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instrument 264 600

Financial liability
Measured at amortized cost (Note
2) 113,256 114,277
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Note 1: The balances included financial assets measured at amortized cost, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (including related
parties), other receivables — related parties, other financial assets and
refundable deposits.

Note 2: The balances included financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
which comprise short-term borrowings, other payables (excluding salaries
and bonuses payable, dividends payable, insurance premiums payable and
business tax payable) and long-term borrowings.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s major financial instruments included include investments in
equity instruments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, loans and lease liabilities.
The Company’s corporate treasury function provides services to the business,
coordinates access to financial markets, and monitors and manages the financial risks
relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports that analyze
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company does not trade financial instruments (including derivative
financial instruments) for speculative purposes.

The corporate treasury function reports regularly to the board of directors, who
monitors risks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures.

1. Market risk

The Company’s activities exposed it primarily to the financial risks of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates (see (1) below), interest rates (see
(2) below) and other prices (see (3) below).

There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which these risks were managed and measured.

(1) Foreign currency risk

The Company had foreign currency sales and purchases, which
exposed the Company to foreign currency risk.

The  carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign
currency-denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities are set
out in Note 28.
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Sensitivity analysis

The Company was mainly exposed to the fluctuations in the US
dollar.

The following table details the sensitivity analysis of the Company
on the effect of 1% fluctuation in the foreign exchange rate against the
New Taiwan dollar. The rate of 1% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to the key management and
represents the management’s assessment of the reasonably likely change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and the
end-of-period exchange rate is adjusted to 1% increase and decrease.
Numbers below indicate the amount increase in pre-tax profit when the
New Taiwan dollar depreciates by 1% against the relevant currency.
When the New Taiwan dollar appreciates by 1% against the relevant
foreign currency, the effect on pre-tax profit is the same as the negative
amount.

USD Impact
2022 2021
Profit or loss $ 512 $ 1,063

The above impact on the profit or loss was mainly attributable to the
Company’s bank deposits, receivables and payables denominated in U.S.
dollars that were still outstanding as of the balance sheet date.

The Company’s sensitivity to the U.S. dollar exchange rate
decreased during the year mainly due to the decrease in bank deposits
denominated in U.S. dollars.

Interest rate risk

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities of
the Company that are exposed to interest rate risks on the balance sheet
date are as follows:

December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021

Fair value interest rate

risk
- Financial asset $ 49,953 $ 57,206
- Financial liability $ 6,205 $ 6,559
With cash flow interest
rate risk
- Financial asset $ 23,970 $ 67,791
- Financial liability $ 110,000 $ 110,000
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis in the next paragraph was based on the
exposure of the Company’s non-derivative instruments to interest rate
risks at the end of the reporting period. A 100 basis point increase or
decrease was used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Had interest rates been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables been held constant, the Company’s pretax profit for 2022 and
2021 would have increased/decreased by NT$860 thousand and NT$422
thousand, respectively, which was mainly attributable to the Company’s
exposure to interest rate risks on its floating-rate bank deposits and loans.

The Company’s sensitivity to interest rates increased during the
current period mainly because of the decrease in floating-rate bank
deposits and increase in net cash flow interest rate risk liabilities.

Other price risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from its
investments in securities. The risk is controlled by holding portfolios of
varying risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the equity price risk at
the balance sheet date.

If the price of securities increases/decreases by 1%, the pre-tax
income or loss for 2022 and 2021 would increase/decrease by NT$274
thousand and NT$300 thousand, respectively, due to the
increase/decrease in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The other comprehensive income before tax for fiscal years
2022 and 2021 would increase/decrease by NT$3 thousand and NT$6
thousand, respectively, due to the increase/decrease in financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

There was no significant change in the Company’s sensitivity to
price risk during the year as compared to the previous year.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its

contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. As at the end
of the reporting period, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Company because of the failure of the
counterparty to discharge its obligation and the financial guarantees provided
by the Company (without taking account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements) could arise from:
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(1) The carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as
stated in the parent company only balance sheets; and

(2) The maximum amount the entity would have to pay if the financial
guarantee is called upon, irrespective of the likelihood of the guarantee
being exercised.

The Company’s receivables are primarily generated from transactions
with subsidiaries and are not considered to be exposed to significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Company’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management

monitors the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Company relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity The available unutilized bank loan facilities of the Company, please
refer to below (2).

(1) Liquidity and interest rate risk tables for non-derivative financial
liabilities

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash

flows of financial liabilities including both interest and principal from the

earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay. Specifically,

bank loans with a repayment on demand clause as a result of the

Company’s endorsement of guarantees for its subsidiaries were included

in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks

choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other

non-derivative financial liabilities were based on the agreed repayment

dates.
December 31, 2022
Less than 3 3 months to 1 More than 5
months year 1 to 5 years years
Non-derivative
financial
liabilities

Non-interest

bearing liabilities ~ $ 12,030 $ - $ - $ -
Lease liabilities 850 2,550 3,023 -
Floating interest

rate liabilities 70,499 3,100 38,948 -
Financial guarantee

contracts 96,683 -

§ 180,062 § 5,650 § 41971 $ -
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December 31, 2021

Less than 3 3 months to 1 More than 5
months year 1 to 5 years years
Non-derivative
financial
liabilities

Non-interest

bearing liabilities $ 4,277 $ - $ - $ -
Lease liabilities 878 1,873 3,945 -
Floating interest

rate liabilities 110,248 - - -
Financial guarantee

contracts 130,138 -

§ 245,541 $ 1,873 § 3,945 $ -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts were
the maximum amounts the Company could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Company considers it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement.

Bank loan facilities

December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021

Unsecured bank loan

facilities
- Utilized amount $ 110,000 $ 60,000
- Unutilized amount - -
$ 110,000 $ 60,000
Secured bank loan
facilities
- Utilized amount $ - $ 50,000
- Unutilized amount 50,000 -
$ 50,000 $ 50,000
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Related Party Transaction

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, details of transactions between the
Company and other related parties are disclosed below:

Related party names and categories

Related Party
Name Category
Jia-Quan Investment Co., Ltd. Substantive related
party
Superior Industries (Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
Top-Team Technology (Shen Zhen) Ltd. Subsidiary
Superior Plating Technology(Thailand) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary
Superior Plating Technology Holding(Thailand) Co., Subsidiary
Ltd.
Ever Superior Technologies Corporation Joint venture
Operating revenue
Account Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021
Service revenue —  Subsidiary
technical
Service income Superior Industries § 5,618 $ 466
(Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd.
Top-Team Technology 11,928 11,203
(Shen Zhen) Ltd.
Superior Plating 4,924 2,726
Technology(Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
Superior Plating 662 -
Technology
Holding(Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
Joint venture
Ever Superior 1,086 1,664
Technologies
Corporation
$ 24218 $ 16,059
Other operating Subsidiary
revenue
- Commission Superior Industries $ 1,254 $ 2950
Income (Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd.

The Company provides technical services to the related parties. The contract
price is calculated by the cost-plus of inputs. The price is charged in the following
year after approval by the local foreign exchange authority.

Commission income is the revenue received from purchasing raw materials on
behalf of the related parties, and the price is determined by the contract. The
collection terms for 2022 and 2021 are less than 180 days from the end of the month
when the invoice is issued.

The prices and terms of the aforesaid transactions with related parties are not
comparable to those of other similar transactions.
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Operating costs

Account Related Party Category 2022 2021
Processing cost Subsidiary
Superior Industries $ 5945 $ 1876
(Shen Zhen) Co.,
Ltd.

The price of the processing costs is calculated based on the cost-plus pricing of
the subsidiaries’ inputs. The payment day to related parties is 180 days from the end
of the month when the invoice is issued.

The prices and terms of the aforesaid transactions with related parties are not
comparable to those of other similar transactions.

Receivables from related parties (excluding loans to related parties)

Related Party Category/Name December 31, December 31,
Account 2022 2021
Accounts Subsidiary
receivable
Superior Industries (Shen $ 1,127 $ 258
Zhen) Co., Ltd.
Top-Team Technology 2,977 -
(Shen Zhen) Ltd.
Superior Plating 2,651 -
Technology(Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
Superior Plating 166 -
Technology
Holding(Thailand)Co.,
Ltd.
Joint venture
Ever Superior 190 1,747
Technologies
Corporation
$ 7,111 $ 2,005
Other Subsidiary
receivables
- Payment Superior Industries (Shen $ 63 § 3,211
for Zhen) Co., Ltd.
purchasing
on behalf
of others
- Payment Superior Plating
for Technology(Thailand)
purchasing Co., Ltd.
on behalf
of others 469 -
§ 532 § 3211

The outstanding trade receivables from related parties were unsecured. No
allowance for loss has been recognized for receivables from related parties in 2022
and 2021.
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(V) Lease agreement

Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021
Acquisition of right-of-use
assets

Substantive related party

Jia-Quan Investment Co., $ 3,150 $ -

Ltd.
Related Party December 31, December 31,
Account Category/Name 2022 2021

Lease liabilities ~ Substantive related party

Jia-Quan Investment $ 2,498 $ 378
Co., Itd.

Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021
Interest expense
Substantive related party
Jia-Quan Investment Co.,

Ltd. $ 112 $ 52

The Company leases office space from its related parties at a rental rate based
on the general market rate. The rental payment is paid monthly.

(VD Refundable deposits

December 31, December 31,
Account Related Party Category/Name 2022 2021
Refundable Substantive related party
deposits
Jia-Quan Investment $ 200 $ 200
Co., Itd.
(VII)  Endorsements/guarantees provided
Endorsements/Guarantees Provided for Others
Related Party Category/Name December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Subsidiary
Superior Industries (Shen
Zhen) Co., Ltd. USD2,050 thousand USD2,050 thousand
Top-Team Technology
(Shen Zhen) Ltd. USD 420 thousand USD 420 thousand
Superior Plating
Technology(Thailand) THB 50,000 THB 50,000
Co., Ltd. thousand thousand
Superior Plating
Technology(Thailand)
Co., Itd. USD2,000 thousand USD2,000 thousand
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As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the amount of collaterals provided by the
Company due to the aforesaid endorsement guarantee was NT$34,607 thousand and
NT$57,207 thousand, respectively.

(IX) Compensation of key management personnel

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 12,387 $ 33,817
Post-employment benefits 300 319
$ 12,687 $ 34,136

The remuneration of directors and key management personnel was determined
by the remuneration committee with regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

XXVII. Pledged Assets

The following assets have been pledged as collaterals to the financial institutions
for the Company’s borrowings and endorsement and guarantee provided by the
Company for its subsidiaries’ loans:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Pledged time deposits and reserve

account (recorded as other

financial assets — current) $ 34,610 $ 83,928
Pledged time deposits (recorded

as other financial assets —

non-current) - 19.453
34,610 103,381

XXVIII. Significant Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies

The following information was aggregated by the foreign currencies other than the
functional currencies of the Company and the exchange rates between the foreign
currencies and respective functional currencies were disclosed. The significant assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follows:

December 31, 2022

Foreign Currency Carrying Amount
(In thousands) Exchange Rate (in thousands)

Foreign currency

assets
Monetary items
USD $ 1,668 30.693 (USD :NTD) $ 51.186
Non-monetary
items
Subsidiaries
under the equity
method
RMB § 193,139 4.413 (RMB : NTD) $ 852,385

(continued)
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(continued from previous page)

Foreign currency Carrying Amount
(In thousand) Exchange Rate (In thousand)

Financial assets at

fair value

through profit

or loss —

non-current
USD 894 30.693 (USD :NTD) $ 27432

December 31, 2021

Foreign Currency Carrying Amount
(In thousands) Exchange Rate (in thousands)
Foreign currency
assets
Monetary items
USD $ 3,947 27.790 (USD :NTD) $ 109.698
Non-monetary
items
Subsidiaries
under the
equity method
RMB 198,487 4.366 (RMB : NTD) $ 866,603
Financial assets at
fair value
through profit
or loss —
non-current
USD 1,080 27.790 (USD :NTD) $ 30,020
Foreign currency
liabilities
Monetary items
USD 123 27.790 (USD :NTD) $ 3412

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, realized and unrealized net
foreign exchange losses were NT$6,963 thousand and NT$(4,768) thousand,
respectively. It is impractical to disclose net foreign exchange gains (losses) by each
significant foreign currency due to the variety of the foreign currency transactions and
functional currencies in the Company.

XXIX. Other Disclosures

ey

Information about significant transactions:
1.  Financing Provided to Others. (Table 1)
2. Endorsements/Guarantees Provided for Others. (Table 2)
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3. Marketable securities held (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures). (Table 3)

4.  Marketable securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least
$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital. (None)

5. Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least $300 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital. (None)

6. Disposal of individual real estate at prices of at least $300 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital. (None)

7.  Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least $100
million or 20% of the paid-in capital. (None)

8.  Receivables from related parties amounting to at least $100 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital. (None)

9.  Trading in derivative instruments. (None)

(ID) Information on Investees. (Table 4)
(1) Information on investments in mainland China:
1.  Information on any investee company in mainland China, showing the name,

principal business activities, paid-in capital, method of investment, inward and
outward remittance of funds, ownership percentage, net income of investees,
investment income or loss, carrying amount of the investment at the end of the
period, repatriations of investment income, and limit on the amount of
investment in the mainland China area. (Table 5)

2. Any of the following significant transactions with investee companies in
mainland China, either directly or indirectly through a third party, and their
prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or losses: (Table 5)

(1) The amount and percentage of purchases and the balance and percentage
of the related payables at the end of the period.

(2) The amount and percentage of sales and the balance and percentage of
the related receivables at the end of the period.

(3) The amount of property transactions and the amount of the resultant
gains or losses.

(4) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsements or guarantees or
pledges of collateral at the end of the period and the purposes.

(5) The highest balance, the end of period balance, the interest rate range,
and total current period interest with respect to financing of funds.

(6) Other transactions that have a material effect on the profit or loss for the
period or on the financial position, such as the rendering or receiving of
services.

(Iv) Information of major shareholders: list all shareholders with ownership of 5% or
greater showing the name of the shareholder, the number of shares owned, and
percentage of ownership of each shareholder. (Table 6)
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

Information on Major Shareholders

December 31, 2022

Table 6

Name of Major Shareholder

Shares

Total Shares
Owned

Ownership
Percentage

Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

5,559,776 shares

12.5%

Note: The information of major shareholders presented in this table is provided by the Taiwan
Depository & Clearing Corporation based on the number of ordinary shares and
preference shares held by shareholders with ownership of 5% or greater, that have been
issued without physical registration (included treasury shares) by the Company as of the
last business day for the current quarter. The share capital in the consolidated financial
statements may differ from the actual number of shares that have been issued without

physical registration because of different preparation basis.
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§The Contents of Statements of Major Accounting Items§

Item

MAJOR ACCOUNTING ITEMS IN ASSETS,

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Statement of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Statement of Changes in Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

Statement of Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income — Current

Statement of Accounts Receivable

Statement of Other Receivables

Statement of Other Financial Assets

Statement of Changes in Investments Accounted for
Using the Equity Method

Statement of Changes in Property, Plant and
Equipment

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Depreciation of
Property, Plant and Equipment

Statement of Changes in Right-of-Use Assets

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Depreciation of
Right-of-Use Assets

Statement of Changes in Intangible Assets

Statement of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Statement of Other Non-Current Assets

Statement of Short-term Borrowings

Statement of Long-term Borrowings

Statement of Other Payables

Statement of Lease Liabilities

Statement of Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

MAJOR ACCOUNTING ITEMS IN PROFIT OR LOSS

Statement of Operating Revenue

Statement of Operating Costs

Statement of Operating Expenses

Statement of Financial Costs

Statement of Employee Benefits, Depreciation and
Amortization Expenses by Function
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Statement 1

Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Cash and Cash Equivalents
December 31, 2022

Unit: NT$ thousand and foreign currency in

thousands
Item Description Amount
Petty cash $ 10
Demand deposits Including NTD 23,438 thousand and 23,967
USD 17 thousand, the exchange rate
is 30.693
Time deposits USD 500 thousand 15,346
$ 39,323
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Accounts Receivable
December 31, 2022

Statement 4 Unit: NT$ thousand
Name of Customer Description Amount
Non-related party:
Amulaire Thermal Technology, Technical service $ 920
Inc. income
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Other Financial Assets
December 31, 2022

Statement 5 Unit: NT$ thousand and foreign currency in
thousands
Item Description Amount
Other financial assets —
current
Restricted assets Pledged deposit (interest rate range from $ 34,610

1.05% to 2.8%, including NTD 3
thousand and USD 1,128 thousand, the
exchange rate is 30.693)
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Right-of-Use Assets
December 31, 2022

Statement 7 Unit: NT$ thousand unless otherwise
specified
Item Building Transportation Total
Equipment
Cost
Balance at the $ 3,621 $ 6,369 $ 9,990
beginning of the year
Decreased in the year 3,150 - 3,150
Lease modification - ( 294) ( 294)
Balance at the end of $ 6,771 $ 6,075 $ 12,846
the year

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at the $ 3,274 $ 193 $ 3,467
beginning of the year

Decreased in the year 1,040 2,206 3.246

Balance at the end of $ 4314 $ 2,399 $ 6,713
the year

Net, December 31, 2022 $ 2457 $ 3,676 $ 6,133
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Lease Liabilities
December 31, 2022

Statement 9 Unit: NT$ thousand
Item Description Lease Period Discount  Balance, end
Rate of period
Building Office Lease 2019/5/1-2025/4/30 1.73% § 2,498
Transportation Business 2021/11/23-2024/8/22 1.67% 3,707
Equipment Vehicles
6,205
Less: current ( 3.244)
portion
Lease liabilities — $ 2,961

non-current
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Operating Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Statement 10

Item

Administrative and technical service costs
(including wages and other labor cost)

Processing cost

283

Unit: NT$ thousand

Amount

$ 10,867
5.945

$ 16,812



Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Operating Expenses
December 31, 2022

Statement 11 Unit: NT$ thousand unless otherwise

specified
Item Administrative
expense
Salary expenses (including remuneration to $ 12,455
directors)
Professional service fees 4,544
Various depreciations 3,452
Other (Note) 6.004
$ 26,455

Note: The amount of each item in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance.
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

Statement of Employee Benefits, Depreciation and Amortization Expenses by Function

2022 and 2021
Statement 12 Unit: NT$ thousand
2022 2021
Operating Operating Operating Operating
costs expenses Total costs expenses Total

Employee benefit expense
Wages and Salaries § 8,844 § 8,907 $§ 17,751 $ 10,922 § 23,965 § 34,887
Labor and National

Health Insurance

Premiums 818 767 1,585 919 669 1,588
Pension expense 433 428 861 497 384 881
Remuneration to

directors - 3,120 3,120 - 10,393 10,393
Other employee

benefit expense 347 567 914 373 341 714

$ 10,442 $§ 13,789 $§ 24231 $§ 12,711 § 35,752 $§ 48.463
Depreciation expense $ - $§ 3.452 § 3.452 $ - $§ 1411 $ 1411
Amortization expense $ - $§ 1,192 $§ 1,192 $ - $ 855 $ 855
Note:
1. As of both December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had 29 employees. The non-employee directors of the

Company were 8 and 7, respectively.

2. (1)

)

The average employee benefit expense for 2022 was NT$1,005 thousand (“total employee benefit expense for
2022 - total remuneration to directors” / “number of employees for 2022 - number of non-employee directors™).

The average employee benefit expense for 2021 was NT$1,730 thousand (“total employee benefit expense for
2021 - total remuneration to directors” / “number of employees for 2021 - number of non-employee directors™).

The average salary expense for 2022 was NT$845 thousand (total salary expense for 2022 / “number of
employees for 2022 - number of non-employee directors”).

The average salary expense for 2021 was NT$1,586 thousand (total salary expense for 2021 / “number of
employees for 2021 - number of non-employee directors”).

3. Change in average salary cost adjustment (47%) (“Average salary expense for 2021 - Average salary expense for
20217 / Average salary expense for 2021)

4. Remuneration Policy:

(1)

The percentages or ranges with respect to employees’, directors’ and supervisors’ compensation set forth in the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation

Employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors as stipulated in the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation:

If the Company records profit before tax in a fiscal year, it shall appropriate 5%—-10% of such profit as
the employees’ compensation distributed in shares or cash by a resolution of the board of directors. Employees
who are entitled to the compensation include employees of its affiliates who meet certain requirements; the
Company may appropriate no more than 5% of the aforementioned profit as the directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration by a resolution of the board of directors’ meeting. The distribution of employees’ compensation
and remuneration to directors and supervisors shall be first reported to the shareholders’ meeting. However, if
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2)

there is any accumulated losses, it shall first offset the losses and then appropriate employees’ compensation
and remuneration to directors and supervisors according to the aforementioned percentages.

The Company’s remuneration policy for directors, supervisors, managers and employees:

A. The remuneration to directors and supervisors includes transportation, compensation and fees for performing
duties, and is determined in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. The Board of
Directors is authorized to determine the remuneration to directors based on the extent of their participation
in the Company’s operations and the value of their contributions, and with reference to industry standards
both domestically and internationally.

B. The compensation for managers and employees includes salaries, bonuses and employee profit-sharing,
which are determined based on the positions held, responsibilities undertaken and contributions made to the
Company, and with reference to industry standards; the compensation for managers is proposed to the
Remuneration Committee for review and approval, and then submitted to the Board of Directors for
resolution.
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V1. If the Company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties
in the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the
date of publication of the annual report, explanation of how said
difficulties will affect the company's financial situation: None.

287



L.

VIL

Review and Analysis of financial position and financial
performance, and assessment of risks

Financial position
(I) Main reasons for any material change in the Company's assets, liabilities, or equity
during the past 2 fiscal years, and the effect thereof:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Hiscal Year | 1y ember 31,2021 | December 31,2022 Variation
Item Amount %
Current assets 989,189 781,886 | (207,303) (21%)

Property, plant and 520,987 534,447 13,460 3%

equipment
Intangible assets 2,974 2,156 (818) (28%)
Other assets 312,291 335,710 23,419 7%
Total assets 1,825,441 1,654,199 | (171,242) (9%)

Current liabilities 630,333 435,131 (195,202) (31%)

Non-current 109,162 171457 62,295 57%
liabilities
Total liabilities 739,495 606,588 | (149,070) (20%)
Equity attributable 947,097 881,470 | (65,627 (%)
to owners of parent
Share capital 444,555 444,555 0 -
Capital surplus 325,322 325,322 0 -
Retained earnings 255,103 193,410 (61,693) (24%)
Other equit
interectlst y (44,326) (29,231) 15,095 (34%)
Treasury shares (33,557) (52,586) (19,029) 57%
Non-controlling 138,849 166,141 27,292 20%
mterest
Total equity 1,085,946 1,047,611 (38,335) (4%)

With a change over 20% and more than NT$10 million during the past 2 fiscal years:

1. Current assets: The decrease in current assets is mainly due to the repayment of
bank borrowings and reduced demand on the market.

2. Current liabilities: The decrease in current liabilities is mainly due to reduced
bank borrowings and demand on the market and the resultant decline in related
operating expenses.

3. Non-current liabilities: The increase in non-current liabilities is mainly due to the
extension of the lease period for plants of the subsidiary in Thailand in 2022.

4. Retained earnings: mainly due to the increase in the dividends distributed in 2022.

5. Other equities: mainly due to the accumulated conversion integers impacted by
the foreign currency exchange rate.

6. Treasury stock shares: mainly due to the buyback of treasury stock shares as
incentives for employees in 2022.

Where the effect is of material significance, measures to be taken in response: There is
no material change in the Company’s business except its growth in business scale.

(1)
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II.

Financial performance

(I) Financial Performance Analysis:

Unit: NT$ thousand

Fiscal Year Increase
Item Increase (decrease)
2021 2022 (decrease)
percentage
amount (%)
Operating revenue 1,356,633 1,131,956 (224,677) (17%)
Operating costs (861,379) (867,685) (6,306) (1%)
Gross profit 495,254 264,271 (230,983) (47%)
Operating expenses (199,699) (176,093) 23,606 (12%)
Operating income 295,555 88,178 (207,377) (70%)
Non-operating income (24,685) (26,594) (1,909) 8%
and expenses
Net income before tax 270,870 61,584 (209,286) (77%)
Income tax expense 0
(benefit) (37,502) (16,252) 21,250 57%
Net income for the 233,368 45332  (188,036) (81%)
current period
Other comprehensive (24,580) 25,693 50,273 205%
income
Total comprehensive 208,788 71,025 | (137,763) (66%)
income for the year
Main reasons for any material change in operating revenues, operating income, or
income before tax during the past 2 fiscal years:
1. Operating income, operating gross profit, operating net profit, net profit before
tax, combined gains or losses: The revenue dropped because of the reduced
demand on the market as a whole and the rising amount of raw materials and
regular materials around the world.
2. Tax income expenses: The decrease in income tax of 2022 is mainly due to the
reduced demand on the market as a whole and the accordingly reduced profits.

(I)  Possible impacts of expected sales quantities and their bases on the future financial
1. The Company, according to the macroeconomic changes, industrial dynamics, and
business development plan, driven by growths of new business departments, expects
that the sales will still grow in the coming year.
2. Expected possible benefits: It is expected that with the product yield and automation
increased, the production cost will drop and the Company will become more
competitive on the market to further expand its market share.

289



III. Cash flow

(I) Analysis of cash flow changes during the most recent fiscal year:

Unit: NT$ thousand

decreased.

Fiscal Year Increase
Item 2021 2022 (decrease) ratio
Cash flow ratio 54.13 57.48 3.35
Cash flow adequacy 82.68 123.77 41.09
ratio
Cash reinvestment ratio 20.57 10.20 (10.38)
Explanation:

1. Increase in cash flow adequacy ratio: Net cash flow from operating activities has
increased in the past five years
2. The ratio of cash reinvestment decreased: the long-term investment in 2011

(I) Improvement plan for the insufficient liquidity: None.
(IIT) Cash liquidity analysis for the coming year: The Company does not prepare the
financial forecast for the coming year, including cash flows forecast.

IV. Effect upon financial operations of any major capital expenditures

during the most recent fiscal year:

The Company’s operational status is sound and cash inflows from operating activities remain stable.
Therefore, sources of funding for material capital expenditure over the past few years have mainly
been its own operating funds; in other words, there are no material impacts on the finance of the

Company.
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V. Reinvestment policy for the most recent fiscal year, the main reasons
for the profits/losses generated thereby, the plan for improving
re-investment profitability, and investment plans for the coming year:

() Re-investment policy
As part of the Company’s reinvestment policy over the past few years, the scope of
investment focuses mainly on the expansion of surface treatment-related business and is
devoted to diversification of the surface treatment business.

The Company’s reinvestment policy is based on the internal control “investment
cycle,” the “Regulations Governing the Supervision and Governance of Subsidiaries,”
and the “Operating Procedure for Transactions Involving Specific Companies, Group
Businesses, and Related Parties” followed by respective departments. The Company
obtains operational and financial information from each of the subsidiaries periodically
in order to have an understanding of their financial standing and to have effective control
the operational performance of each subsidiary.

(I1) Earnings or deficits from reinvestments

Main 2022 Main reason for the earnings or
Name of Company Scope of Gains or | deficits
operation losses and improvement plan
. . Investment Mainly due to recognition of
Superior Plating Corp. holding 32,219 re-investment gains of subsidiaries

Mainly due to the absence of
Ever Superior | Surface revenue because of the fact that the

Technologies Corporation | treatment (18,932) Company is still under
construction.

Extensive Management | Investment 151.443 Mainly due to recognition of
Consultant Inc. holding ’ re-investment gains of subsidiaries
Superior Drilling (HK) |Investment (119,149) Mainly due to recognition of
Limited holding ’ re-investment losses of subsidiaries
Superior Plat.ing Investment Mainly due to recognition of
E;;Zﬁg;%%yco Ltd Holding holding 19,755 re-investment gains of subsidiaries
Superior Plating Surface Mainly due to optimal operation
Technology (Thailand) Co. treatment 26,398 | and properly controlled cost and
Ltd. expenditure of the Company
Superior Industries | Surface (124,765) Mainly due to the reduced demand
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. treatment ’ on the market as a whole.

Electroplating of

computer

eripherals, . . .

Top-Team Technology I(:omlinunication Mainly due to optimal operation
(Shenzhen) Ltd. equipment, and 151,257 | and properly controlled cost and

internal elements expenditure of the Company

of consumer

electronics
Dongguan Guanjie Metal Surface Mainly due to the start of mass

Surface Treatment Co., 400 | production after the company
treatment .
Ltd. began operation

(IIT) Investment plans for the following year: None.
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V1. Risk analysis and assessment of the following matters during the most
recent fiscal year and during the current fiscal year up to the date of
publication of the annual report:

() Impacts of changes in interest rate, exchange rate, and inflation on the Company’s gains or

losses and countermeasures in the future

1.

3.

Impacts of changes in interest rate and countermeasures in the future:

The amounts of expenses on interest as of the end of 2022 and 2021 of the Company
were NTD 14,082 thousand and NTD 9,948 thousand, respectively, while interest
income was NTD 2,352 thousand and NTD 1,424 thousand, respectively. The net
worth accounted for 1.04% and 0.63% of the net revenue, respectively. The Company
adopts a robust and conservative policy in the utilization of funds. The funds are
configured mainly with bank CDs and debts funds. The Company has generally
sufficient funds for the time being and keeps optimal relationships with banks to
hopefully obtain relatively preferred financing interest rates and to observe the interest
rate changes on the financial market on the Company’s funding so that
countermeasures may be taken at any time to remain flexible. In other words, changes
in the interest rate shall not have material impacts on the Company in general.

Impacts of changes in exchange rate and countermeasures in the future:

The Company deals primarily with natural hedging and the Company pays attention to
changes in exchange rates at all times and settles adequately in order to reduce foreign
currency positions exposed to the risk. The exchange gains or losses of 2022 and 2021
were NTD 81 thousand and NTD 10,023 thousand, respectively, accounting for 0.01%
and 0.74% of the net revenue, respectively. Due to the fact that the Group nearly
purchases and sells and allocates daily funds exclusively in RMB. The exchange gains
or losses are mainly from unrealized appraisal gains or losses incurred by foreign
currencies and have no material impacts on the actual operations of the Group. In cases
of changes in exchange rates that impact profits in the future, the following
countermeasures will be taken:

A. Stay in close contact with current banks in order to refer to expert opinions and
consult them at any time on exchange rate trends and related data to fully keep
track of the trends and to adequately adjust foreign currency positions so that the
exchange risk may be prevented.

B. The sales department shall apply the local currency in quotations wherever
possible in order to reduce foreign exchange time-related risk and to ensure profits
of the Company’s products.dd

C. Procurement staff shall pay in local currency wherever possible in order to avoid
the exchange rate risk.

Impacts of inflation and countermeasures in the future
Impacted by global inflation and rising costs of freight and logistics and the supply

chain, prices of raw materials and regular materials continue to climb internationally to
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result in the increase in the procurement cost. The Group will closely monitor price
fluctuations on the market at all times and sign long-term procurement agreements
with key suppliers to ensure that the impacts from fluctuating prices of key raw
materials and regular materials on the market to a minimum and seek alternative and
competitive suppliers for regular materials in large quantities in order to cope with
possible material impacts of inflation on the Company.

(I) Policies on high-risk, highly leveraged investments, loan of funds to other parties,

endorsements, guarantees and derivatives and Exchange, main reasons for the and its of
waste or losses generated thereby, and the year strategies.
The Group has been focusing on its mainstream business and runs business practically.
The financial policy is based on robustness and conservatism. No high-risk or
high-leverage investments are engaged in. In addition, the Company follows the policies
and countermeasures defined in accordance with the Group’s “Operating Procedure for
Lending to Others,” “Operating Procedure for Endorsement and Guarantee,” “Procedure
for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets,” and “Procedure for Trading Derivatives” when
lending funds to others, providing endorsements or guarantees, and trading derivatives.
Funds are lent and endorsements/guarantees are provided mainly because of the required
short-term financing funds with the recipient. The Company follows the procedures by
imposing applicable control.

(IIT) Future research and development plans and R&D expenses expected to be devoted
1. Future R&D Plans

The Company will focus mainly on the surface treatment of appearance pieces for its
deployment of product R&D in the future and target the investigation of related
technologies for wearable, appearance threshold, and customized products. The
solution system will continue to be improved and automatic production equipment will
be developed. The existing pearl nickel and bright nickel processes will be reinforced.
Meanwhile, in light of also the environmental protection trend, technologies to
improve the recycling and treatment of waste will be researched and developed and
reduced water and electricity consumption and reduced pollution discharge will
continue to be monitored and improved.
2. Devoted R&D expenditure

The Company values R&D staff and related equipment investments. Through internal
educational training, along with customer development qualification and collaboration
with external organizations, capabilities of the R&D team are accumulated. In addition,
product line planning is reinforced. New plating opportunities are being proactively
explored and automatic equipment is designed and introduced for improved efficiency.
In the future, the Company will continue to improve its techniques, optimize its
equipment, and introduce automation with gradual appropriations reflective of the
developmental status. Investments in the R&D of new products and expansion of R&D
staff will continue. It is expected that the R&D expenditure in the future will also

increase along with the growth in revenue in order to reinforce the competitive
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advantages of the Company on the market. It is expected that the R&D expenditure
mvested for 2023 will be NTD 28,300 thousand.

(IV) Impacts of the changes in important domestic and overseas policies and Act on the

V)

Company’s finance and business and countermeasures:

Being a professional surface treatment company, the Company has customers, competitors,
and suppliers spread throughout the world. Under such globalization trend, changes in
related important policies and laws in respective countries can all directly or indirectly
impact the whole industry chain (including the Company). Besides following applicable
domestic and international laws and regulations, the Company pays close attention to the
developments of domestic and international policies at all times and consult related
professionals and take countermeasures in a timely manner as required by local laws and
regulations. There are no material impacts to date.

Effects of technological changes and industrial changes on the financial standing of the
company and countermeasures:

The Company’s sales and R&D departments frequently analyze the evolutionary changes
to products and technologies on the market and get to know the changes in the supply and
demand of the industry and keep track of the impacts that technological and industrial
changes have on the Company in a timely manner. For the time being, technological and
industrial changes have no obvious impacts on the financial operation and the Company
continues to monitor related industrial changes and technological advancement and
adequately adjust related countermeasures and come up with effective ones in order to
timely research and develop products meeting the demand on the market and to improve

the competitive advantages of the Company.

(VI) Impacts of changes in the corporate image on the management of corporate risks and the

countermeasures:

Since it was established, the Company has been adhering to the operational principles of
integrity and steadfastness. The corporate image is valued and applicable regulatory
requirements are followed. Meanwhile, harmonious labor—-management and local relations
are maintained. There were no conditions that would impact the corporate image over the

past year and up to the date when the Annual Report was printed.

(VII) Expected benefits and possible risks of mergers and acquisitions and countermeasures:

Over the past year up to the date when the Annual Report was printed, the Company did
not engage in mergers and acquisitions. Should there be M&A plans in the future, they
will be carefully evaluated, taking into consideration whether or not they will bring about
substantial synergistic effects for the Company in order to precisely protect the interests of

the Company and those of the shareholders.

(VIII) Expected benefits and possible risks of the expansion of plants and countermeasures:

A major investment plan of the Company is to increase the ratio of reinvestment in
Superior (Thailand). For related expected benefits, possible risks and countermeasures,

refer to Four. Fund-raising “VIII. Implementation of Capital Utilization Plan.”

(IX) Risks associated with focused purchases or sales and countermeasures:
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1. Evaluation of focused purchases risk and countermeasures
The Superior Group is a professional metal surface treatment service provider. In light
of the industry characteristics, most of the solutions required for electroplating need to
be certified and approved by customers. Therefore, purchases of key raw materials of
the Group have been primarily from a single supplier. To avoid a shortage in raw
materials or price fluctuations on the market, however, the Group will pay close
attention to price fluctuations on the market and long-term purchase agreements are
entered into with key suppliers in order to ensure minimized impacts on the supply of
key raw materials and regular materials and price fluctuations on the market. Key
suppliers, on the other hand, are mostly domestic or international heavyweight solution
manufacturers so the supply is relatively steady.
The Company is devoted to maintaining close and long-lasting partnerships with key
suppliers and periodically evaluating the quality, lead time, and purchase prices of raw
materials of suppliers in order to have products of a quality meeting customer
requirements, smooth supply of key raw materials, and reduce the purchase cost.

2. Evaluation of focused sales risk and countermeasures
In order to avoid the risk of focused sales, the Company has gradually explored new
customers or devoted to providing existing customers with new products and surface
treatment service, constantly enhanced its technologies, and improved processes; in
addition, the Company proactively enters the market for new products and acquires
new surface treatment processes in response to the changes in demand on the market
and reflective of the developments in the application of products. All have
demonstrated efficacy.
In addition, the Company continues to evaluate the financial standing of and
substantial payments collected from main customers and evaluates periodically the
possibility of recovering accounts receivable.

(X) Impacts and risks of transfer or exchange of stock options in large quantities by directors,
or heavyweight shareholders holding more than 10% of all shares on the Company and
countermeasures:

There was no transfer or replacement of equities in large quantities over the past year and
up to the date when the Annual Report was printed among the Company’s directors or
shareholders with a holding ratio exceeding 10%.

(XT) Impacts and risks of the change in the management on the Company and countermeasures:
The management of the Company has been devoted to sustainable development of the
Company and has not been changed over the past year and up to the date when the Annual
Report was printed.

(XII) Litigation or non-litigation event, any material litigation, non-litigation or administrative
litigation for which judgment has been made or is pending for judgment related to the
company and its directors, President, actual responsible persons, and shareholders holding
more than 10% of the Company’s shares and, if the result thereof may have significant

influence on shareholders’ rights and interests or the price of securities, the fact, object
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amount, litigation commencement date, main parties involved and the settlement condition
as of the publication date of the annual report shall be specified: The Company’s
management team has been devoted to conforming transactions and there are no
determined or yet-to-be-determined lawsuits.

(XIII) Other important risks and countermeasures:
1. Information security assessment and analysis and the countermeasures measures:

A. At present, basically there are the Intranet and the Extranet, which are separated
from each other, adopted by the Company and a firewall and access control
between them in order to prevent intentional internal damage and intentional
external invasion.

B. For viruses and phishing scam letters, the Company adopts the third-party
filtration system to filter letters in large quantities and installs one of the Top 10
antivirus software from the annual review to be the daily preventive measure in
the Company

C. Information security education and periodical training on information

security-related measures are provided to newcomers.

VII. Other important matters: None.
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5. The information of the directors and general manager of each affiliate:
Unit: thousand shares December 31, 2022

Shareholding
Enterprise name Title Name or representative Number of | Shareholding
Shares percentage
Superior Plating Technology Co.,
. . . Ltd.
Superior Plating Corp. Director Corporate director representative: Li, 11,271 100
Su-Pai
Superior Plating Technology Co.,
Ever Superior Technologies . Ltd.
Corporation Director Corporate director representative: Li, 6,300 35
Su-Pai
. Superior Plating Corp.
Extensive Management Consultant Director |Corporate director representative: Li, 1,000 100
Inc. (Samoa) .
Su-Pai
Superior Plating Corp.
Superior Drilling (HK) Limited |Director |Corporate director representative: Li, 89,000 100
Su-Pai
. . Superior Plating Corp.
Superior Plating Technology . . L
Holding (Thailand) Co. Ld. Director gl(l)fll));)irate director representative: Li, 4,830 78
Superior Plating Technology Holding
Superior Plating Technology . (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
(Thailand) Co. Ltd. Director Corporate director representative: Li, 2,192 66
Su-Pai
. . Superior Drilling (HK) Limited
Superior Industries (Shen Zhen) Director |Corporate director representative: 89,000 100
Co., Ltd. .
Lai, Mao-Sheng
Extensive Management Consultant
Top-Team Technology (Shen . Inc. (Samoa)
Zhen) Ltd. Director Corporate director representative: 1,000 100
Sung, Cheng-Hsi
Dongguan Guanjie Metal Surface | .. Superior Dr-1111ng (HK) lelte.d
Director |Corporate director representative: 9,056 10
Treatment Co., Ltd. .
Lai, Mao-Sheng
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II.

III.

IV.

(IT) Consolidated Financial Statements of the Affiliates:

The entities included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements of the
affiliates for the year 2022 (from January 1 to December 31, 2022) in accordance with
the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business
Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” are identical to
those included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries in accordance with the IFRS 10, and the information required to be
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the affiliates was already provided
in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, so the
Company does not prepare the consolidated financial statements of the affiliates
separately.

(IIT) Affiliation report: None.

Private placement of securities during the most recent fiscal year or
during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the
annual report: None.

Holding or disposal of shares in the Company by the Company's
subsidiaries during the most recent fiscal year or during the current
fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None.

Other matters that require additional description: None.

If any of the situations listed in Article 36, paragraph 3, subparagraph
2 of the Securities and Exchange Act, which might materially affect
shareholders' equity or the price of the company's securities, has
occurred during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal
year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None.
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Superior Plating Technology Co., Ltd.

Responsible person: Li, Su-Pai iﬁ_
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匯鑽科技股份有限公司章
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